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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT
According to the Implementation Manual for Reporting by Public Higher Education Institutions of the Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET),
universities are required to report on their performance in relation to the “the key performance indicators and targets as stated in the Annual Performance
Plan” (Government Gazette, No. 37726, 9 June 2014).
1.

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES PER EMC PORTFOLIO

1.1.

Teaching, Learning and Technology

2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
1.1.1. To integrate
advisory/profession
al board/body
recommendations
into PQM and
curriculum content

2017 Smart
Objective
Establish new
and enhance the
functioning of
existing advisory
committees

Specific Activities

Performance Indicators

Revision of compilation of Revised Policy on
advisory boards in line
Advisory Boards aligned
with TUT policy
to HEQSF

Incorporation of
professional board
requirements and
recommendations into
programme delivery
To ensure
Phasing in of HEQSF
accreditation of all new programmes to meet
regulated
the 2019 target
programmes by
professional
boards
Staff training to meet the
requirements of the new
HEQSF

Minutes of Advisory
Board meetings

Approved HEQSF and
internationally
benchmarked
programmes
WIL component in
diploma programmes
Staff qualification
upgrade reports

Progress against Performance Objectives
The majority of approved programmes both in HEQSF aligned
programmes and the old programmes had Advisory Board meetings in
2017. The plan is to have all our programmes in the new HEQSF to have
advisory boards. The majority of our new programmes under construction
received valuable inputs from advisory boards.
Both ECSA and HPCSA, including the Pharmacy and Dental councils,
accredited all our programmes that were reviewed in 2017. TUT enjoys a
good working relationship with all the professional councils and their inputs
into our curriculum is given due consideration.
The majority of our programmes that were considered for accreditation
received full accreditation. Work Integrated Learning (WIL) remains a
cornerstone of our University and more than 85% of our students were
placed for WIL.

Currently more than 27% of our academic staff are in possession of
doctoral degrees. This figure keeps on fluctuating due to poaching by
sister universities. TUT is very generous in developing its staff, and the
plan to have 40% staff with doctoral degrees is within reach.
Challenges experienced regarding a retiring professoriate is also a factor
that adds to the fluctuating figures.

-1-

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Expanding staff’s
industrial exposure
opportunities

Staff industry exposure
reports

Industry engagement is ongoing through campus visits by industry
partners and industry visits by staff. This is an ongoing reciprocal activity.

Stakeholder deliberations
on the transformation and
de-colonisation of the
curriculum

Concept paper on
transformation and decolonisation of the
curriculum

All faculties have developed objectives for 2018 with regard to
transformation agenda. This emanated from the 2017 Transformation
Summit. All 7 executive deans will be evaluated against these objectives in
2018.
Faculties have established Transformation Committees that will track the
transformation imperatives in the alignment of the HEQSF.

1.1.6 To formulate
and integrate
graduate attributes
per programme

1.1.6. To support
the transition from
school to
University

To incorporate
critical graduate
attributes within
the curriculum

To monitor and
evaluate the
effectiveness of
TUT101

Develop concept on
Concept paper on
critical graduate attributes desirable graduate
attributes

As the new curriculum is being developed, graduate attributes such as
communication and presentation skills are being infused into the
curriculum.

Survey key stakeholders
on desirable graduate
attributes

Stakeholder survey and
outcomes

The first-year student survey is conducted annually and a lot of progress is
being realised with regard to first time entering students, with respect to
their adjustment into University education.

Student seminars and
workshops desirable
graduate attributes

Workshop programmes
and attendance register

DVC: TLT conducted a workshop with all faculty representatives and SRC
to concertize them about the Policy on Academic Exclusion and the
importance of developing special attributes of TUT graduates. This
workshop was well received by all attendees.

Compulsory attendance
of First Year Orientation
across all campuses and
faculties

Student success rate
reports

A new policy on Class Attendance as approved by EMC and SENATE is
on its way to Student Services Council. Currently, the policy is being
implemented in some faculties as a way to encourage class attendance of
80% and more by all students.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities
To imbed credit bearing
modules in TUT101
Profiling of first-year
entering students to
inform teaching and
learning
Longitudinal study to
inform the content of
TUT101

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Credit bearing module

TUT101 is now a cornerstone for our first-time entering students. The
University is developing some modules which will be credit bearing in
order to assist student adjustment into University education. An
introductory module has been developed for piloting in 2018 in the
Student profiles and
Fundamental Learning credits of Life Skills. The module uses DVD’s as
revised teaching and
learning material as well as online reflection exercises to cover the
learning plans
content. The content development is expected to continue in 2018. Ten
Tips to survive the first-year is firstly introduced after which each tip is
Longitudinal study report explored in detail.
Student Profiling is an annual activity that our first-year students go
through. Currently, this project is underway at TUT in order to identify
students at risk of failing and put measures in place to assist them in their
studies.
Tutors and mentors are being appointed for the year 2018. However, fewer
tutors will be appointed due to financial constraints.
By the end of 2017, the plan to train Mentors as First Year Buddy’s was
ready for implementation in 2018. These mentors will assist faculties
during orientation as well as where they will meet and engage with firstyear students as seniors assisting them with transition challenges. The
idea is that mentors become the bridge between the first-years and the
departments so that they will be monitored early for intervention where
necessary.
The longitudinal study is under way and faculties were informed that the
faculty that presents its results first will receive an award.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
1.3.1 Implement a
technology-based
teaching and
learning strategy

1.2.

2017 Smart
Objective
Implement
blended learning
in identified
programmes

Specific Activities
Develop content for
online learning
provisioning in identified
programmes
Train staff to optimally
use the learning
management system
Expand the use of the
learning management
system
Improve ICT
infrastructure

Performance
Indicators
Programmes with online
content

Progress against performance objectives
The project, with academic partners, will be piloted in March in the Faculty
of Humanities for Traffic and Policing programmes. The reason for this
pilot is to come with a possibility of rolling-out online programmes for TUT.

More than 200 staff in the Faculty of Science were trained in this project. In
Staff training materials
and attendance registers 2018, the trained staff is busy rolling-out the project with students in 4
departments within the Faculty of Science.
Learning management
TLT is working closely with ICT to realise this objective.
usage reports
Infrastructure spend
report

TLT is working closely with ICT to improve the infrastructure and to add
more Wi-Fi hotspots around our campuses.

Institutional Support

2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
4.4.1. To improve
all support
services each
year.
Ensure
satisfactory
delivery of
support services

2017 Smart
Objective
Decrease
customer
complaints by 10%
on a quarterly
basis

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Develop and enter into
SLA with University
clients (EMC)

Signed SLA between
the IS and EMC
members

Not yet finalised.

Taking corrective action
measures where there is
unacceptable
performance in terms of
the SLA
Monitor the services
rendered by contracted
service providers

Corrective action report
to IMC

On-going monitoring.

Performance reports on Template is being used for all minor projects and on-going monitoring.
service providers to IMC
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities
Enhance customer
satisfaction and
stakeholder focus by
conducting quarterly
customer satisfaction
surveys

Document and
Revise and develop IS
align IS work
work procedures for all
procedures and
environments
processes with the
Institutional Quality
Management
System models
Monitoring and
evaluation of IS
services on a
monthly basis

Progress against performance objectives

Surveys
Corrective measures
report

Not yet finalised.

Documented work
procedures and
processes on
SharePoint

Procedures are implemented as per SOP’s.

Directors to review
Monitoring and
performance in terms of
evaluation reports
work schedule and project
plans

Insourcing of
Develop staffing profile
landscape services Conduct work study

Timeous
completion of the
security tender

Performance
Indicators

Reports are tabled at FAC and oversite committee is monitoring progress
monthly.

Staffing profile
Work study reports

Completed.

Develop Business Plan
for the insourcing

Business Plan

Completed.

Develop and submit
tender specifications

Final Tender document

Completed.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
4.4.5. To acquire,
construct, install,
monitor and
maintain
infrastructure
facilities and
equipment of a
standard
conducive to
participating in
the modern
tertiary education
context

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Complete all IEF 3 Contractual and Project
projects by
Management to achieve
December 2017,
completion of projects
excluding PK33,
earmarked for
completion in April
2018

Minutes of the site
On-going and there were delays on three projects because of community
meetings and completed disturbance.
projects

Coordination of all
IEF 4 deferred
maintenance
projects for 50%
completion by end
of 2017

Implement 2017 deferred
maintenance plan

2017 deferred
maintenance monthly
reports

Deferred maintenance project almost 80% complete and capital is at
awarding stage.

Implement
statutory
maintenance plan
as prescribed by
legislation

Undertake statutory
maintenance

Statutory maintenance
reports

On-going.

Appointment of
professional team

Awarding stage, site hand-over at the end of April 2018.

Site hand-over
Project reports

It was delayed due to input from other stakeholders.

Complete 50% of
Finalisation of the
IEF 4 New Student professional team
Residence in GaRankuwa Campus Project implementation
Implement
CELCAT
centralised
timetable software
in five of the eight

Monthly Progress
reports and Completed
Projects

Implement CELCAT
Completed CELCAT
Phases 1 and 2 in the
timetable for phases 1
faculties of Engineering & and 2
Built Environment,
Economics and Finance
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Completed in 2016.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators
Project plan and
minutes of stakeholder
meetings for phase 3 to
5

Progress against performance objectives

phases

Prepare implementation
of CELCAT Phases 3, 4
and 5 in the faculties of
Management Sciences,
Sciences, and Arts

Finalisation of the
Student Bus
Transport Tender
for the next three
to five years

Evaluate and recommend Signed contracts and
the vendor appointment
SLA with successful
service providers

Finalisation of the
replacement fleet
acquisition tender
by the end of the
second quarter

Evaluate and recommend Delivery of fleet vehicles Completed in 2017.
the vendor appointment

Finalisation of the
pest control and
hygiene tender for
the next three
years

Evaluate and recommend Signed contracts and
the vendor appointment
SLA with successful
service providers

In progress.

Pilot the biometric
class attendance
and access system
at the Faculty of
the Arts

Develop and submit the
business plan

Completed business
plan

Completed.

Project plan and
implementation

Progress report on
implementation

In progress.
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Completed Phase 2 of CELCAT.

Completed and implemented new bus tender on 1 September 2017.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective
Repair of perimeter
fence, and install
perimeter lighting
at Soshanguve
Campuses

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Develop and submit the
project plan

Completed project plan

Perimeter completed.

Project plan and
implementation

Progress report on
implementation

100% Completed.

Finalisation of
Submission of Close-out
IESS pilot phase
report
project with the first
quarter of 2017

Close-out report

100% Completed.

Source funding for
the roll-out of the
IESS Projects at
distant campuses

Allocated funds

In progress.

Develop and submit the
business plan
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
1.3.

Human Resources and Transformation

2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
1.4. To
implement a
Performance
Management
(Monitoring and
Evaluation)
System

2017 Smart
Objective
To ensure optimum
performance by all
employees of the
University

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

Enter into a collective
agreement with Labour on
the implementation of the
Performance
Management System

A signed collective
agreement with Labour
on the implementation
of the Performance
Management System

Train all employees of the
University on the
Performance
Management System

100% of employees of
As at January 2018, 23% of the staff of the University had been trained on
the University trained on the Performance Management and Development System.
the Performance
The resumption of the training was delayed by the engagement that took
Management System
place with Labour at the Bargaining Forum.

Facilitate the development
of performance
agreements and
performance plans for all
staff of the University

100% of employees of
the University having
signed performance
agreements or plans

Due to the delayed conclusion of the engagement with Labour through the
TUT Bargaining Forum, the target for the signing of Performance
Agreements by all staff across the University was moved to 2018.

Monitor the processing of
quarterly evaluations

Quarterly monitoring
reports on performance
evaluations

Target moved to 2018. See report above.
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Completed. See minutes of the TUTBF meeting of 20 July 2017.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
1.4.

Finance

2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
4.4.4. To
ensure
continued
financial
sustainability

2017 Smart
Objective
To effectively
administer and
manage all the
financial aid
sources, especially
NSFAS to ensure
that 100% of all
funding is allocated
to deserving
students in 2017

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Regular engagements
At least 2 formal
with NSFAS management meetings during 2017
and relevant stakeholders with NSFAS
on NSFAS and financial
aid challenges

Progress against performance objectives
USAF / DHET / NSFAS meetings held on:
15 Sept, 9 Oct, 30 Oct, 16 Nov, 17 Nov, 11 Dec 2017.
NSFAS workshops – 19 Oct. ’17 and 15 Nov ’17.
NSFAS / FAPSA meeting at UNISA 14 Sept ’17.
29817 funded students by 31 Dec ’17 through official meetings with NSFAS
Officials.
Only 469 Unconfirmed students remained at 31 Dec ’17.

At least 1 workshop
during 2017 with
NSFAS
Quarterly reports to
NSFAS
At least 2 formal
meetings with Student
Leadership
At least 2 formal
meetings with SAED
At least 4 meetings with
Registrar’s Division and
other relevant role
players
At least 1 formal
meeting with Campus
Directors, staff and
student leaders
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NSFAS workshops held on 13 Oct, 19 Oct ’17.

99% of approved students signed LAFSOP’s by 31 Dec ’17.
R1.1b received by NSFAS by 31 Dec ’17.
Financial Aid Committee meeting held on 10 Nov ’17.
Ongoing and continuous engagements with SRC at all campuses.
SAED meeting with ISRC (top 19) & DVC: SAED held on 26 Sept ’17.
Meetings with ARLC w.r.t. accredited accommodation 18 Aug, 21 Aug, 17
Oct, 2 Nov ’17.
ARC meeting on 13 Nov ’17.
No other formal engagements.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities
Identify all financial
assistance allocated
elsewhere within the
University to eliminate
duplication and improve
reporting

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives

1 survey at faculties and Meeting held with Faculty of Science 21 Sept ’17.
other departments
during 2017
Meeting held with Faculty of Engineering 17 Nov ’17.

Report on the findings to Report to Financial Aid Committee meeting 10 Nov ’17.
the relevant committees
and EMC
Circular by CFO that all Included in policy review Dec ’17.
financial assistance is
routed through the
Financial Aid Office as
per the Policy
Engage sponsors of
Strategic partnership
Ongoing – ABSA donor engagement on 27 Nov ’17.
financial aid for additional with Advancement
support to students
Office

Ensure Financial
Sustainability

Increased debt recovery

Formal engagement of
sponsors of financial
support
Reduce the 2016 debt
by 60%
Reduce the 2017 debt
by 80%

The 2016 student outstanding debt book reduced by 65,8% (2015: 60,1%)
as at 31 December 2017.
Total payments of R1 653,4 million (2016: R1406,6 million) was received as
at 31 December 2017. This resulted in a cumulative reduction of the
student debt by 77,9% (2016: 77,2%) to R468,1 million nett. Students’
payments increased by R246,8 million when compared to the prior year
figure.
The NSFAS payment of R217,8 million for 2017 will further reduce the 2017
outstanding student debt by 88,2% once remittances are received and
allocation is made to the beneficiaries.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives

2017 Smart
Objective

Specific Activities

Performance
Indicators

Progress against performance objectives
An additional NSFAS payment of R29,2 million was outstanding as at the
31 December 2017. This will further reduce the 2017 student debt when
paid in 2018.

Improve the
University B-BBEE
level on supplier
and enterprise
development
Implement
austerity measures

Supplier/Enterprise
Development Initiatives
(including Workshops with
suppliers)

Trained suppliers
Improve the BBBEE
scorecard to 5% on
SD/ED

Consultant appointed and Verification Agency contracted.
Verification of all information submitted to commence in February 2018.

Communicate austerity
measures

Reduction in identified
operational expenditure
items

The implementation of the austerity measures is continuously being
monitored. All purchasing of computers and furniture must be approved by
the CIO and CFO. Any deviations from the austerity measures must
approved by the CFO.

Monitor and report on
adherence to austerity
measures to IMC and
EMC
Submission of the Engage with the various
Council approved
Financial Growth
stakeholders of the
Financial Growth and
institution regarding inputs Turnaround Strategy
and Turnaround
Strategy to Council into the Financial Growth
by its first meeting and Turnaround Strategy
of 2017

- 12 -

Certificate to be issued by end March 2018.

The respective task teams continue to meet on a regular basis.
The University has formed a company that will replace the BDU Steering
Committee. This company will be responsible for the growing of third
stream income going forward.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
1.5.

Vice-Chancellor

2014-19 ISP
Goals &
Objectives
Strategic
Driver 4.
(New) Reimagine
transformation
at TUT and
intensify actions
for deep and
comprehensive
change across
the University

2017 Smart
Objective
Advance
transformation at
the University at
the conceptual and
contextual levels

Specific Activities
Implement the Council
approved and amended
TUT Integrated
Transformation Plan
2013-2017

Performance
Indicators
Progress Report to the
EEC of Council

Conduct University-wide Stakeholder
discussions with
engagement reports
governance committees,
academics, staff, students
and stakeholders on
transformation
Draft a University
Draft a University
Transformation
Transformation
Framework for review and Framework
final approval by Senate
and Council

Ensure that Executive
Managers (levels 2-3)
have a KPA for
transformation relevant to
their portfolios

Executive Managers’
Performance
Agreements with
transformation activities
in their portfolios
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Progress as at 31 December 2017
The Vice-Chancellor and Principal provided reports to the EEC on actions
taken to advance the transformation project of the University and submitted
the draft Transformation Framework for comment and recommendation for
approval to EEC, as it did with the Institutional Forum and Senate.
The TUT Integrated Transformation Plan 2013-2017 has been concluded,
and the lessons drawn from the implementation have been incorporated
into the Transformation Framework, and will be extended to the
implementation of the next phase of the TUT transformation journey, in
particular, the implementation in each of the functional areas of each of the
executive managers portfolios.
Conversations were concluded in contributing to the finalisation and
approval of the TUT Transformation Framework and preparations for the
subsequent implementation of activities in 2018.
A successful Transformation Summit was held on 12–13 September 2017,
with over 280 participants from all campuses and environments, comprising
Council members, students and staff.
The Transformation Framework was approved by the University Council on
24 November 2017.
Executive managers received an instruction from the Vice-Chancellor and
Principal at the end of November 2017 to prepare detailed conceptual and
practical transformation implementation plans (using the SMART approach,
including the allocation of resources) in their environments for 2018 and
beyond, based on using the Transformation Framework as guideline.
The Vice Chancellor and Principal reviewed their KPAs and what has been
delivered with each executive manager, taking into account the cascading
of transformation to their staff in their environments, and holding staff to
accountability.

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
2.

STUDENT ENROLMENT TABLES

2.1.

Head Count Enrolments
Table 1: Headcount Totals: Contact and Distance
Target
2017
14 588

Actual
2017
14 822

57 540

59 829

(2 289)

593

570

23

1 779

2 010

(231)

593

401

192

Total postgraduate

2 965

2 981

(16)

Occasional students

0

222

(222)

60 505

63 032

(2 527)

First-time entering undergraduates
Total undergraduate
Postgraduate to master’s level
Master’s
Doctors

TOTAL ENROLMENT

Variance
(234)

Table 2: Total Headcount Enrolments by Qualification Type
Target
2017
Undergraduate diplomas & certificates

Actual
2017

Variance

43 757

45 256

(1 499)

0

0

0

Undergraduate degrees

13 783

14 573

(790)

Total undergraduate

57 540

59 829

(2 289)

593

570

23

1 779

2 010

(231)

Advanced diploma

Postgraduate to master’s level
Master’s
Doctors

593

401

192

Total postgraduate

2 965

2 981

(16)

Occasional students

0

222

(222)

60 505

63 032

(2 527)

TOTAL ENROLMENT

Table 3: Total Headcount Enrolments by Major Field of Study
Target
2017
24 904

Actual
2017
24 631

20 753

21 380

(627)

4 671

4 447

224

Other humanities

10 177

12 574

(2 397)

TOTAL

60 505

63 032

(2 527)

Science, engineering, technology
Business/management
Education

- 14 -

Variance
273

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
Table 4: Total Headcount Enrolments by Race Group
Target
2017
57 250
823
48
2 384
60 505

African
Coloured
Indian
White
TOTAL

Actual
2017
60 459
484
218
1 871
63 032

Variance
(3 209)
339
(170)
513
(2 527)

Table 5: Total Headcount Enrolments by Gender
Target
2017
30 204

Actual
2017
31 820

Male

30 301

31 212

(911)

TOTAL

60 505

63 032

(2 527)

Female

Variance
(1 616)

Table 6: FTE Enrolled Totals
Target
2017
Total undergraduate

Actual
2017

Variance

43 525

44 969

(1 439)

Postgraduate to master’s level

356

360

32

Master’s

712

544

168

Doctors

237

117

120

1 304

1 021

320

44 829

45 990

(1 161)

Total postgraduate
TOTAL ENROLMENT

Table 7: Total Key Ratios of FTE to Head Count Enrolments
Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Total undergraduate

76%

75%

1%

Postgraduate to master’s level

60%

57%

3%

Master’s

40%

27%

13%

Doctors

40%

29%

11%

Total postgraduate

44%

33%

11%

TOTAL ENROLMENT

74%

73%

1%
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
Table 8: Distance Students (FTE Degree Credits by Field of Study)
Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Science, engineering, technology

0

0

0

Business/management

0

0

0

Education

375

0

375

Other humanities

497

700

(203)

TOTAL

872

700

172

Table 9: Total FTE Degree Credits by Course Level
Target
2017
Total undergraduate

Actual
2017

Variance

32 880

34 761

(1 881)

Postgraduate to master’s level

249

64

185

Master’s

536

528

8

Doctors

128

51

77

Total postgraduate

913

643

270

33 793

35 404

(1 611)

TOTAL ENROLMENT

Table 10: Total Success Rates by Course Level (FTE Degree Credits Divided by FTE
Enrolments)
Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Total undergraduate

76%

77%

(1%)

Postgraduate to master’s level

70%

20%

50%

Master’s

75%

97%

(22%)

Doctors

54%

44%

10%

Total postgraduate

70%

65%

5%

TOTAL ENROLMENT

75%

77%

(2%)

Table 11: Total Success Rates by Field of Study (FTE Degree Credits Divided by
FTE Enrolments)
Target
2017
75%

Actual
2017
76%

Business/management

70%

73%

(3%)

Education

86%

87%

(1%)

Other humanities
TOTAL ENROLMENT

79%
75%

81%
77%

(2%)
(2%)

Science, engineering, technology

- 16 -

Variance
(1%)

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT REPORT (continued)
Table 12: Graduates by Qualification Type
Target
2017
Undergraduate diplomas

Actual
2017

Variance

9 774

8 856

918

0

0

0

4 231

5 359

(1 128)

14 004

14 215

(211)

Postgraduate to master’s level

146

187

(41)

Master’s

292

300

(8)

Doctors

146

55

91

TOTAL

14 588

14 757

(169)

Target
2017
6 104

Actual
2017
5 277

4 517

5 133

(616)

Education

1 423

941

482

Other humanities

2 543

3 406

(863)

14 588

14 757

(169)

Advanced diploma
Undergraduate degrees
Total undergraduate

Table 13: Graduates by Field of Study

Science, engineering, technology
Business/management

TOTAL

Variance
827

Table 14: Graduates as Percentage (%) of Headcount Enrolments

2.2.

Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Total undergraduate

24%

24%

0%

Postgraduate to master’s level

25%

33%

(8%)

Master’s

16%

15%

1%

Doctors

25%

14%

11%

TOTAL

24%

23%

1%

Staff Tables
Table 15: Headcount Totals of Permanently Appointment Staff by Category
Target
2017
1 312

Actual
2017
971

Executive/management professionals

104

58

46

Support professionals

184

168

16

1 600

1 197

403

Instruction/research professionals

Total professional staff
- 17 -
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Target
2017
40

Actual
2017
45

1 560

1 392

168

30

20

10

377

622

(245)

Total non‐professional staff

2 007

2 079

(72)

TOTAL PERMANENT STAFF

3 607

3 276

331

Technical staff
Non‐professional administrative staff
Crafts/trades staff
Service staff

Variance
(5)

Table 16: Highest Formal Qualification of Permanently Appointed Instruction/
Research Staff
Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Doctoral degree

330

288

42

Master’s degree

457

407

50

Other

277

276

1

1 064

971

93

TOTAL
Table 17: Research Outputs

Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Publication units

377

351

25

Research master’s graduates

292

174

118

Doctoral graduates

146

55

91

WEIGHTED TOTAL

815

580

235

Table 18: Ratios of Research Outputs to Permanent Academic Staff Numbers
Target
2017

Actual
2017

Variance

Publication units

39%

36%

3%

Research master’s graduates

22%

18%

4%

Doctoral graduates

11%

6%

5%

WEIGHTED TOTAL

72%

60%

12%
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1.

INTRODUCTION
The Council functioned effectively. The Committees of Council fulfilled their delegated
functions. The Council paid special attention to the revision of policies, with special focus
on Information and Communication Technology and compliance with a view to improve the
governance framework.

2.

ACHIEVEMENT OF THE COUNCIL’S OBJECTIVES

2.1

Statement of self-assessment
The Council constituted in accordance with the Institutional Statute, discharged its
responsibilities as provided for in the statute, which, amongst others, included the following:
• Governance of the University.
• Establishment of Committees with clear terms of reference and the appointment of
members, as well as the co-option of persons with expertise to assist in the relevant
Committees.
• Determined tuition fees, accommodation fees, and any other relevant fees to be paid
by students and where applicable by staff.
• Consideration and approval of the provisional annual budget and annual performance
plan for 2018.
Detailed information on some of the issues addressed in 2017 will be provided in the
relevant sections of the report.

2.2

Attendance at meetings
Council convened for one special meeting and four ordinary meetings during 2017.
Dr B Masuku, Mr N Motsatse, Prof JI Grobbelaar, and Ms L Nare were re-appointed as the
Ministerial appointees on the Council for the second term. Mr TA Mathidza was appointed
as the Ministerial appointee on the Council.
Mr Miyambo was appointed to the Council as the co-opted expert on banking and
investments.
Dr P Masegare was appointed as an independent expert on the Audit and Risk Committee.
Prof DV Soni was re-appointed as the independent expert on the Planning and Risk
Committee.
The table below shows the frequency of attendance of ordinary and special meetings:
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Four ordinary meetings of the Council and one special meeting, as well as a workshop
were held in 2017. The special meeting and the workshop took place on 17 February 2017.
On 17 February 2017, Dr Masuku was re-elected for the remainder of his second term as
Chairperson of Council after his membership of Council expired on 21 January 2017.
The attendance of meetings is reflected below:
Table 20: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Council
%
PER MEMBER

DATES OF MEETINGS

MEMBERS
17-02-2017

21-04-2017

23-06-2017

15-09-2017

24-11-2017

Full members
LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

N Motsatse (Mr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

TA Mathidza (Mr)

x

x

x

A

x

80%

Membership Expired

A Mji (Prof)
RE Moraka (Dr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

EL Borole (Mr)

A

x

x

x

x

80%

RO Lamola (Mr)

x

x

x

A

A

60%

T Manyoni (Mr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

B Masuku (Dr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

JI Grobbelaar (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

H Masunda (Mr)

x

x

x

x

Membership
Expired

100%

JG Ritchie (Ms)

x

x

x

A

x

80%

MF Sikhosana (Mr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

M Ramataboe (Ms)

A

x

x

x

x

80%

JT Chiloane (Mr)

x

A

A

x

x

60%

x

100%

Prior to Membership

M Ngobeni (Mr)
x

x

x

x

A

80%

Prior to
Membership

x

x

x

x

100%

R Leshaba (Mr)

x

x

x

A

x

80%

R Miyambo (Mr)

Prior to Membership

x

x

x

100%

K Mohale (Ms)

A

x

x

x

A

60%

AE Nesamvuni (Dr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

TL Nedambale (Prof)

x

x

x

x

Membership
Expired

100%

L Nare (Ms)
HM Maserumule (Prof)
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%
PER MEMBER

DATES OF MEETINGS

MEMBERS
17-02-2017

21-04-2017

23-06-2017

15-09-2017

24-11-2017

DH Tshiporo (Mr)

x

x

x

x

x

100%

VM Motloutsi (Ms)

x

x

A

A

x

60%

x – Present
A – Apology

2.3

Council committees
Four ordinary meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee and two special meetings were
held in 2017. The special meetings took place during November 2017 and focussed on the
adjudication for the tender for external audit services. The attendance of meetings is
reflected in table 21 below:
The Committee was chaired by Ms MJ Ramataboe.
Table 21: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee
DATES OF MEETINGS

MEMBERS

% PER
MEMBER

23-02-2017

01-06-2017

17-08-2017

02-11-2017

03-11-2017

10-11-2017

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

Full members
M Ramataboe (Ms)

TL Nedambale (Prof)

Prior to
Membership
Prior to
Membership

TR Ramuedzisi (Ms)

x

x

x

x

A

A

67%

SAB Ngobeni (Mr)

x

x

A

x

x

x

83%

L Nare (Ms)

A

A

x

x

A

A

33%

JI Grobbelaar (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

JT Chiloane (Mr)

x

A

x

x

A

x

67%

ER Moraka (Dr)

x

x

A

x

x

x

83%

SA Mahlalela (Mr)

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

D Naidoo (Dr)

x

x

x

x

A

A

67%

Internal Auditors

x

x

A

x

A

A

50%

External Auditors

x

x

x

x

A

A

67%

P Masegare (Dr)

100%

Membership Expired

By Invitation

x – Present
A – Apology
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Four scheduled meetings of the Employment Conditions Committee took place in 2017,
Ms Nare was re-elected for the second term as Chairperson of the Committee after the
expiry of her membership of Council on 21 January 2017.
The attendance of meetings is reflected in Table 22 below:
Table 22: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Employment Conditions Committee
%
PER MEMBER

DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS
23-02-2017

01-06-2017

17-08-2017

02-11-2017

L Nare (Ms)

A

x

x

x

75%

K Mohale (Ms)

A

x

x

x

75%

Prior to
Membership

x

x

Membership
Expired

100%

M Umlaw (M)

x

x

A

A

50%

J Grobbelaar (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

Prior to
Membership

x

A

A

33%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

DH Tshiporo (Mr)

A

x

x

x

75%

x

x

x

x

100%

Full members

TL Nedambale (Prof)

HM Maserumule (Prof)

By Invitation
M Mokuele (Ms)
x – Present
A – Apology

Four ordinary meetings of the Executive Committee took place. The Committee was
chaired by Dr B Masuku, Chairperson of Council.
The attendance of meetings is reflected in Table 23 below:
Table 23: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Executive Committee of Council
DATES OF MEETINGS

MEMBERS

%
PER
MEMBER

30-03-2017

21-06-2017

01-09-2017

10-11-2017

B Masuku (Dr)

x

x

x

x

100%

NM Motsatse (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

ER Borole (Mr)

A

A

x

x

50%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

M Ramataboe (Ms)

A

x

x

x

75%

Full members
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DATES OF MEETINGS

MEMBERS

%
PER
MEMBER

30-03-2017

21-06-2017

01-09-2017

10-11-2017

JT Chiloane (Mr)

x

A

x

x

75%

T Manyoni (Mr)

A

x

x

x

75%

Membership
Expired

x

x

x

100%

L Nare (Ms)
x – Present
A – Apology

Mr EL Borole chaired the Finance Committee during 2017. Four ordinary meetings took
place during the period under review. The first scheduled meeting of 24 February 2017 was
postponed to 8 March 2017.
The attendance of the meetings is reflected in table 24 below:
Table 24: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Finance Committee
%
PER MEMBER

DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS
08-03-2017

01-09-2016

16-08-2017

01-11-2017

EL Borole (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

QN Ambe (Ms)

x

x

x

x

100%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

A

67%

x

x

x

100%

Full members

R Miyambo (Mr)

Prior to
Membership
Prior to
Membership

R Leshaba (Mr)

x

A

x

x

75%

R Lamola (Mr)

x

x

A

x

75%

DH Tshiporo (Mr)

x

x

A

x

75%

MF Sikhosana (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

SA Mahlalela (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

AM Mogashoa (Mr)

x – Present
A – Apology

The Tender Committee of Council (TCC) was chaired by Mr R Lamola in 2017. Four
meetings of the Committee were scheduled. The dates of the first, second and fourth
scheduled meetings were changed from 20 February to 2 March 2017, 25 May to 13 June
2017, 25 to 27 October 2017 respectively.
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The attendance of meetings is reflected in the table 25 below:
Table 25: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Tender Committee
DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS

%
PER MEMBER

02-03-2017

13-06-2017

10-08-2017

27-10-2017

RO Lamola (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

R Leshaba (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

JG Ritchie (Ms)

x

x

x

x

100%

I Ka-Mbonane (Mr)

x

x

x

A

75%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

x

x

100%

Full members

By Invitation
SA Mahlalela (Mr)
x – Present
A – Apology

Two scheduled meetings of the Governance and Council Membership Committee took
place in 2017. The first scheduled meeting of 1 March 2017 was postponed to 30 March
2017.
The attendance of the meetings is reflected below:
Table 26: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Governance and Council Membership
Committee
DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS

%
PER MEMBER

30-03-2017

31-08-2017

B Masuku (Dr)

x

x

100%

NM Motsatse (Mr)

x

x

100%

R Lamola (Mr)

A

A

0%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

100%

Full members

x – Present
A – Apology

Three ordinary meetings of the Remuneration Committee were scheduled for 2017. The
initial scheduled dates of 2 February, 5 May and 3 November 2017, were revised to
17 February, 21 June and 10 November 2017.
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The attendance of the meetings is reflected in table 27 below:
Table 27: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Remuneration Committee
%
PER MEMBER

DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS
17-02-2017

30-03-2017

21-06-2017

10-11-2017

B Masuku (Dr)

x

x

x

x

100%

NM Motsatse (Mr)

x

x

x

x

100%

EL Borole (Mr)

A

A

A

x

25%

L Nare (Ms)

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

x

x

100%

Full members

By Invitation
LR van Staden (Prof)
x – Present
A – Apology

The Planning and Resources Committee (PRC) was chaired by Mr T Manyoni in 2017.
Four ordinary meetings of the Committee were scheduled for 2017. The first scheduled
meeting of 16 February 2017 was postponed to 8 March 2017. The fourth scheduled
meeting was postponed from 25 October to 26 October 2017. The attendance of ordinary
meetings is reflected in table 28 below:
Table 28: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Planning and Resources Committee

08-03-2017

25-05-2017

10-08-2017

26-10-2017

%
PER
MEMBER

x

x

x

A

75%

Prior to
Membership

x

x

x

100%

TA Mathidza (Mr)

A

A

x

x

50%

DV Soni (Prof)

x

x

x

x

100%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

A

x

x

75%

J Ritchie (Ms)

x

x

x

x

100%

A

Membership
Expired

33%

Prior to Membership

x

100%

Membership in abeyance

Membership
Expired

DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS

Full members
T Manyoni (Mr)
AM Mogashoa (Mr)

H Masunda (Mr)

A

M Ngobeni (Mr)

x

By Invitation
I Tlhabadira (Mr)
SA Mahlalela (Mr)

x

x

x

A

75%

NP Zingitwa (Mr)

Prior to
Membership

x

A

x

67%

x

x

x

x

100%

D Naidoo (Dr)
x – Present
A – Apology
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Three meetings of the Information and Communication Technology Governance
Committee (ICTGC) were scheduled for 2017. The first scheduled ordinary meeting was
cancelled.
The attendance of ordinary meetings is reflected in table 29 below:
Table 29: Attendance of ordinary meetings of the Information and Communication
Technology Governance Committee
DATES OF MEETINGS
MEMBERS

%
PER MEMBER

07-06-2017

27-10-2017

TJ Chiloane (Mr)

A

x

50%

D Dagada (Prof)

A

x

50%

VM Motloutsi (Ms)

x

A

50%

D Naidoo (Dr)

x

A

50%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

100%

A Mashego (Mr)

x

Membership Expired

100%

T Manyoni (Mr)

x

A

50%

M Moiloa (Ms)

x

x

100%

M Mphahlele (Prof)

x

x

100%

RE Moraka (Dr)

x

x

100%

SA Mahlalela (Mr)

x

x

100%

I Tlhabadira (Mr)

Membership in
abeyance

Membership Expired

-

M Nkambule (Mr)

x

x

100%

Full members

By Invitation

x – Present
A – Apology

3.

MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANCE CONSIDERED BY THE COUNCIL DURING 2017
The special meeting held on 17 February 2017 considered the following critical matters:
• Elections for the position of Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson of Council. Dr
Masuku and Mr Motsatse were re-elected as Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson
respectively.
• Deployment of members of Council on the Committees of Council.
• Constitution of the Senior Appointments and Selection Committee of Council.
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The first ordinary meeting held on 21 April 2017 considered the following matters of
consequence:
• The presentation on the Leadership Fundraising and Engagement Plan.
• The progress report on the filling of senior management positions.
• The report on the review of post-retirement benefits.
• The presentation on the Integrated Marketing and Communication Strategy.
• The report on the management and resourcing of the Convocation.
• The progress report on finalisation of the Policy on staff doing business with the
University.
• The Management report to Council.
• The mid-term review of the approved Strategic Plan: 2014-2019.
• The strategic risk register.
• The reports of the Senate, the Institutional Forum, and the Student Services Council.
• The reports of the Committees of Council.
• The appointment of Mr R Miyambo as the co-opted expert in banking and investments
on the Council.
• The appointment of Mr P Masegare as an independent expert on the Audit and Risk
Committee.
• The payment of the honoraria for meeting attendance to the two representatives of the
Convocation on the Institutional Forum.
• The Report of the South African Human Rights Commission on Transformation in
Public Higher Education Institutions.
• The 2017 revised operational budget.
• The Financial Growth Strategy 2018-2022.
• The following tenders:
a. The lease of student accommodation at the Polokwane Campus.
b. The tender for bus transport services.
c. The deviation on the acquisition of computer equipment.
d. The extension of the service contract for Campus Protection Services.
• The Annual Performance Plan: 2017.
• The nomination of the representatives of Council on the Honorary Awards Committee,
a Joint Committee of Council and the Senate.
• The following policies were approved:
a. The Policy on Records Management.
b. The Policy on the Accreditation of Private Student Accommodation.
c. The Policy on the Payment of Tuition and Residence Fees.
d. The Policy on the Writing-off and Provision of Impairment of Student Debt.
The second ordinary meeting held on 23 June 2017 considered the following matters of
consequence:
• The progress report on the filling of senior management positions.
• The report on the review of post–retirement benefits.
• The progress report on the finalisation of the Policy on staff doing business with the
University.
• The Management report to Council.
• The reports of the Senate, the Institutional Forum and the Student Services Council.
• The reports of the Committees of Council.
• The following ICT related submissions:
a. The ICT Governance Framework.
b. The TUT Access to Information Manual.
c. The TUT Cyber Security Plan.
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•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The conferment of honorary doctoral degrees to Ms L Dube and Prof J Karger-Kocsis.
The 2016 annual report and financial statements.
The following tenders:
a. The tender for bus transport services.
b. The tender for the supply of desktop and laptop computers.
c. The tender for managed printing services.
d. The tender for security services.
The Annual Performance Plan – EMC priorities as at 31 March 2017.
The revised Student Enrolment Plan: 2017-2019.
The performance assessment of the Vice-Chancellor and Principal.
The list of accredited private student accommodation.
The TUT’s plans on strategies for phasing-in of the minimum standards and norms of
the Department of Higher Education and Training.
The constitution of the Senior Appointments and Selection Committee.
The report on transformation at TUT.
The following policies were approved:
a. The Policy on Overtime.
b. The Policy on the Procurement of Goods and Services.
c. The Policy on Personal and Protective Equipment (PPE).

The third ordinary meeting held on 15 September 2017 considered the following matters
of consequence:
• The progress report on the filling of senior management positions.
• The report on the review of the post-retirement benefits.
• The report on anti-sexual harassment.
• The report on the student drop-out rate.
• The conferment of honorary degree: Amendment of the field of endorsement – Prof J
Karger-Kocsis.
• The Management Report to Council.
• The strategic risk register.
• The reports of the Senate, Institutional Forum, and the Student Services Council.
• The reports of the Committees of Council.
• The business case for the establishment of a privately held company as a vehicle for
generating growth and third-stream income for the University.
• The performance assessment of the Council and Committees of Council for 2016.
• The establishment and terms of reference of the Residence Governance Committee.
• The establishment and the terms of reference of the Advancement Advisory
Committee.
• The R21 million owed to TUT by Sefako Makgatho University.
• The revised schedule of authorities (Signing Powers).
• The integrated security strategy.
• The principles on the TUT distant campus model.
•
The following policies were approved:
a. The Policy on Private Work.
b. The Policy on Performance Management and Development.
c. The Policy on Third Stream Income.
d. The Policy on Certification, Conferring and Issuing of Qualifications.

- 29 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
REPORT OF THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE COUNCIL (continued)
The fourth ordinary meeting held on 24 November 2017 considered the following critical
matters:
• The progress report on the filling of senior management positions.
• The report and recommendations on the recruitment process to the post of ViceChancellor and Principal.
• The report on the review of the post-retirement benefits.
• The report on anti-sexual harassment.
• The report on the student drop-out rate.
• The recommendations of the Senate on the TUT relations with the State of Israel,
Israeli Institutions and Organisations.
• The Management Report to Council.
• The mid-term report on the approved Strategic Plan.
• The annual performance plan for 2018
• The reports of the Senate, Institutional Forum and the Student Services Council.
• The reports of the Committees of Council.
• The proposed business model of the TUT Enterprise Holdings (Pty) Ltd.
• The risk appetite and tolerance statement.
• The internal audit charter.
• The employment equity plan: 2018-2022.
• The terms and conditions for the recognition of labour unions within the University.
• The proposal on the deferment of insourcing of catering services.
• The preliminary 2018 operational budget.
• The following tenders:
a. The extension of the lease agreement between TUT and Jebell Trading for the
Cape Town service centre.
b. The tender for security services on the University’s campuses and service points.
c. The tender for internal audit services.
• The revised terms of reference of the Finance Committee of Council.
• The Campus Infrastructure Master Plan.
• The proposal on the acquisition of six houses from the eMalahleni Local Municipality
located on portion 119 of the farm Joubertrust JS 310 at the eMalahleni Campus of
TUT.
• The TUT Transformation Report and the Transformation Framework.
• The applications from staff for doing business with the University in 2018.
• The proposal on the Naming and Renaming of TUT Facilities.
• The following policies were approved:
a. The Policy on the Provision of Legal Services.
b. The Revised Policy on the Procurement of Goods and Services.
c. The Revised Policy on Investments.
4.

EVENTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS
The following are the most important events that took place at the University and some of
the achievements of its staff, students and alumni:
•
•

On 17 February 2017, Dr B Masuku and Mr Motsatse were re-elected as Chairperson
and Deputy Chairperson of Council for the remaining portion of their second term of
office.
On 30 May 2017, the University signed an extension of the Memorandum of Agreement
with Haaga Helia University of Applied Sciences from Finland with a view to increase
the areas of collaboration between the two institutions.
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COUNCIL
The following persons were members of the Council during the year and are members at the date
of adoption of the report (composition partly in terms of the Standard Institutional Statute (SIS)
and partly in terms of the Institutional Statute):
Chairperson
Dr B Masuku
Deputy Chairperson
Mr NM Motsatse
Members
Executive Management
Prof LR van Staden
Dr RE Moraka

Vice-Chancellor and Principal
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development

Ministerial Appointment
Dr B Masuku
Mr NM Motsatse
Prof J Grobbelaar
Mr TA Mathidza
Ms L Nare

re-appointed from February 2017
re-appointed from February 2017
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Non-academic Employees
Mr MA Mogashoa
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Student Representative Council
Mr H Masunda
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Mr M Ngobeni
appointed from October 2017
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Ms K Mohale
Mr R Leshaba
Expert in Finance
Mr EL Borole
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Mr JT Chiloane
Mr T Manyoni
Co-opted Experts
Ms VM Motloutsi
Mr R Miyambo
Ms MJ Ramataboe

appointed from December 2016
appointed from April 2017

COMMITTEES OF COUNCIL
Council executes the governance and oversight function through the committees as listed below.
The committees have clear terms of reference and are chaired by external members of Council:
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Dr B Masuku
Members
Mr NM Motsatse
Ms MJ Ramataboe
Ms L Nare
Mr EL Borole
Mr T Manyoni
Mr T Chiloane
Prof LR van Staden

Vice-Chancellor and Principal

GOVERNANCE AND COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Dr B Masuku
Members
Mr NM Motsatse
Mr RO Lamola
Prof LR van Staden

Vice-Chancellor and Principal

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Mr EL Borole
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Members
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Mr DH Tshiporo
Mr MA Mogashoa
Prof LR van Staden
Mr SA Mahlalela

Vice-Chancellor and Principal
Chief Financial Officer

TENDER COMMITTEE (sub-committee of Finance Committee)
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Mr RO Lamola
Members
Mr I Ka-Mbonane
Ms J Ritchie
Mr R Leshaba
Prof LR van Staden
Mr SA Mahlalela

Vice-Chancellor and Principal
Chief Financial Officer

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Ms MJ Ramataboe
Members
Ms L Nare
Prof JI Grobbelaar
Prof TL Nedambale
Prof LR van Staden
Dr RE Moraka

until September 2017
Vice-Chancellor and Principal
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development

Independent Experts
Ms MT Ramuedzisi
Mr SAB Ngobeni
Dr P Masegare

appointed from September 2017

Attendance by Invitation
Dr D Naidoo
Mr SA Mahlalela
SizweNtsalubaGobodo
PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Chief Information Officer and Executive Director: Quality Promotion
and Risk Management
Chief Financial Officer
Internal Auditors
External Auditors
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Prof DV Soni
Mr T Manyoni

until February 2017
appointed from March 2017

Members
Ms JG Ritchie
Mr MA Mogashoa
Mr TA Mathidza
Mr M Ngobeni
Prof LR van Staden

appointed from 23 January 2017
appointed from October 2017
Vice-Chancellor and Principal

Attendance by Invitation
Mr I Tlhabadira
Mr N Zingitwa
Dr D Naidoo
Mr SA Mahlalela

Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Institutional Support
until September 2017
Executive Director: Institutional Support
from October 2017
Chief Information Officer and Executive Director: Quality Promotion
and Risk Management
Chief Financial Officer

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Dr B Masuku
Members
Mr MN Motsatse
Mr EL Borole
Ms L Nare
Attendance by Invitation
Prof LR van Staden

Vice-Chancellor and Principal

EMPLOYMENT CONDITIONS COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Ms L Nare
Members
Mr DH Tshiporo
Ms K Mohale
Ms M Umlaw
Prof JI Grobbelaar
Prof HM Maserumule
Prof TL Nedambale
Prof LR van Staden
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until September 2017
Vice-Chancellor and Principal
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Ms M Mokuele

Executive Director: Human Resources and Transformation
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INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Chairperson
Mr JT Chiloane
Members
Prof R Dagada
Ms VM Motloutsi
Mr T Manyoni
Ms MMR Moiloa
Dr D Naidoo
Mr I Tlhabadira
Mr N Zingitwa
Attendance by Invitation
Dr RE Moraka
Prof M Mphahlele
Mr M Nkambule
Mr SA Mahlalela

Chief Information Officer and Executive Director: Quality Promotion
and Risk Management
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Institutional Support
until September 2017
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Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development
Executive Dean: Faculty of Information and Communication
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Chief Financial Officer

MAIN BANKERS
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS
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1.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The following statement is made to assist readers of the financial statements to gain an
understanding of the governance procedures applied by the Council of the Tshwane
University of Technology.
The Tshwane University of Technology (“the University”) is committed to the principles of
transparency, integrity and accountability as advocated in the King IV Report on Corporate
Governance. Currently, the Council endorses and applies the Code of Corporate Practices
and Conduct (“the Code”), as set out in the King IV Report.
In supporting the Code, the Council recognizes the need to conduct the business of the
University with integrity and in accordance with generally accepted practices. Monitoring
compliance with King IV is one of the functions of the Council’s Audit and Risk Committee.

2.

GOVERNING BODY
The Council executes the governance function and is constituted by academic and nonacademic persons appointed in terms of the Tshwane University of Technology Institutional
Statute gazetted on 18 August 2017. The role of the Chairperson of the Council is
separated from the role of the Chief Executive, namely the Vice-Chancellor and Principal.
The functions of Council and the governance issues reserved for Council are outlined
specifically in the Institutional Statute and generally in the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act
101 of 1997), as amended. The Council is accountable for providing the broad strategic
direction, approving major developments, setting policies, and ratification of decisions of
other structures of the University.
The Council meets four times a year, and is advised on various issues by the Executive
Committee, the Governance and Council Membership Committee, the Audit and Risk
Committee, the Finance Committee, the Planning and Resources Committee, the
Employment Conditions Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Information and
Communication Technology Governance Committee. From 2018, the Council will meet
three times a year.
All the above mentioned Committees have been constituted and each has its own terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Finance Committee was reviewed in 2017. The
revisions included the alignment of the functions of the Finance Committee of Council in
order to strengthen the oversight on financial matters. The Committee members are mainly
non-executive members of Council. The Committees are chaired by non-executive
members, and where applicable, persons with specialized expertise have been co-opted.
The Council reviewed some policies in the area of financial management, procurement,
performance management, as well as occupational health and safety. As part of the
management of the strategic risks, the Council approved the risk appetite and tolerance
statement. The development work on the Combined Assurance Model is at an advanced
stage.
The Council regards the need for alignment of the University’s governance framework to
the generally accepted practices and/or best practise as very importance. It is with this in
mind that the Council undertook the review of the ICT Governance Framework to bring it in
line with the recommended practices in the King IV Report.
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The information below provides an outline of the Committees of Council:
2.1

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee deals with governance matters between Council meetings and
reports on these at the subsequent Council meetings.

2.2

Governance and Membership Committee
The mandate of the Committee is to ensure that:
• The membership of Council and sub-committees of Council is in accordance with the
Institutional Statute.
• The Code of Conduct for members of Council is upheld.
• It recommends to Council on the allocation of responsibilities of members of Council
and if required, the co-option of independent experts in designated Committees.

2.3

Finance Committee
The Committee advises the Council on financial and investment matters, as well as on long
term infrastructure development. In fulfilling the function, the Committee assists to reinforce
the Council’s governance function with regard to sound, responsible and effective financial
planning, financial administration, financial governance, and proper financial reporting.
The Committee makes use of a subcommittee, namely, the Tender Committee in
consideration of major procurement projects.

2.4

Remuneration Committee
The Committee attends mainly to the employment contracts, remuneration and
performance evaluation of the Vice-Chancellor and other members of Executive
Management.

2.5

Employment Conditions Committee
The Committee is entrusted to do the following:
• To ensure that adequate human resources policies and strategies are in place.
• To monitor the implementation of the human resources policies and strategies in
accordance with the set criteria and procedures.
• To oversee all human resources and employment equity-related aspects, as well as
service conditions which are not within the scope of the Remuneration Committee.
• To monitor compliance with statutory requirements related to human resources and
employee relations.

2.6

Audit and Risk Committee
The Committee is entrusted to do the following:
• Oversees the adequacy of and the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls,
accounting practices, information systems, and auditing processes;
• Oversees the University management’s role in creating and maintaining a proper risk
management process;
• Advises Council regarding the appointment and costs of the University’s internal and
external auditors;
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Reviews the scope and function of the external auditors;
Considers reports emanating from the external audit process and the internal audit
process;
Monitors all risk areas that the University may be exposed to;
Monitors compliance with all relevant legislations, statutory requirements, Council
directives and policies;
Oversees the implementation of the Audit and Risk Charter;
Considers and attends to any ad hoc matters as required and/or requested by Council;
Monitors that the Finance Department has the capacity, in terms of resources and
systems, to provide an effective and efficient financial management function;
Reviews the management accounts on a quarterly basis and recommends the annual
financial statements to Council;
Follows-up on a regular basis all items raised in the annual audit management letter;
and that internal audit reports are addressed and that actions previously taken to
address these issues are still in place and effective;
Satisfies itself that policies are in place to guarantee the protection of the University’s
assets from loss or unauthorized use; reports to the Department on material losses
arising from unauthorized or illegal actions; and actions taken to remedy the situation;
Considers sustainability matters in the integrated report;
In the event of that the University’s audit report is qualified, the ARC makes a statement
to the effect and explains the reasons for the qualification and/or statement of matter
and outlines, in reasonable detail, what actions have been implemented to ensure
immediate reversal of this state; and
Oversees compliance with the University’s Ethics and Corporate Citizenship; and Code
of Ethics.

The Committee provides a channel of communication between the Council, management,
the internal audit function, and the external auditors. The Committee has unrestricted
communication with the Chairperson of Council (who is not a member of the Committee),
the Vice-Chancellor, the Chief Financial Officer, and the internal and external auditors.
2.7

Planning and Resources Committee
The Committee is responsible for the following:
• Overall planning arrangements of the University.
• Ensures the equitable allocation of resources to give effect to the strategic objectives.
• Works closely with management, faculties and students in advancing the University’s
core mandate.

2.8

Information and Communication Technology Governance Committee
The Committee is responsible for the following:
• Review whether the demand-side of ICT teaching, learning and research has been
prioritized in terms of the strategic plans; and monitors the achievement of the stated
objectives thereof;
• Review the alignment of ICT with the performance and sustainability objectives of the
University;
• Monitors and evaluates significant ICT investment and expenditure;
• Monitors the ICT-related risks in general and those which form part of the strategic risk
register; and
• Monitors that ICT assets are managed effectively.
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2.9

Advancement Advisory Committee
The Council established the Advancement Advisory Committee as a means to
strengthen fundraising initiatives; and as a structure for continuous stakeholder
engagement with the donor community. The functions of the Committee are as follows:
• To provide advice, guidance and support on strategies to increase third-stream income
for the University.
• To enhance donor management, networking, fundraising and strategic partnerships
within the University’s Strategic Plan, the Institutional Advancement Plan, and the
external donor community.
• To lobby and advocate support for the University’s development, priorities and strategic
objectives and programmes within government, the private sector, funding
organisations, parastatals, and “high net worth” individuals.
• To be the voice of fundraising matters and represent the funding community and
stakeholders on Council.
• To build an affinity for the TUT brand and assist in positioning the University externally;
and
• To provide relevant reports and feedback to Council as and when required.

2.10

Residence Governance Committee
In compliance with the Policy on the Minimum Standards and Student Housing at public
higher education institutions issued in terms of the Higher Education Act (Act No. 101 of
1997), the Council established the Residence Governance Committee.
The Committee will operate at institutional level in order to develop and monitor the plans
and strategies for the phasing-in of the minimum standards for student housing in the
University. The Committee will make recommendations to Council on student housing
related matters.

3.

CONFLICT MANAGEMENT
Council embraces the principle of alternative dispute resolution as a mechanism to address
conflict situations before they escalate to unmanageable proportions. This includes
disputes between employees and structures of the University.

4.

STATUTORY BODIES
The Tshwane University of Technology Institutional Statute, derived from the Higher
Education Act (Act No. 101 of 1997), provides for the following governance structures:

4.1

Senate
The Senate performs its function under the control of the Council and is accountable to the
Council for the academic and research functions of the University, as well as for any other
function relating to academic matters that may be delegated to it by the Council.
Membership of the Senate is determined in terms of the Institutional Statute. The Senate
strives, inter alia, to support the mission of the University by –
• Exercising control over teaching and learning, and the standards of teaching and
learning;
• Exercising control over the admission of students and the granting of credits and status
to students;
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•
•

Exercising control over research with a view to obtaining higher qualifications, research
promotion and development, and independent research for industry; and
Creating or terminating programmes or courses, subject to the Council’s approval.

The Senate does not exercise any executive powers, but submits recommendations for the
approval of the Council. The Senate is represented in Council.
4.2

Institutional Forum
The Institutional Forum advises the Council on issues affecting the University, as
contemplated in the Act. The Institutional Forum comprises the following:
• members of the Council;
• Management;
• student representatives;
• members of the Senate; and
• employee representative structures.

4.3

Student Services Council
The Student Services Council (SSC) considers all matters relating to student support
services and the well-being of students on campus. The SSC consists, inter alia, of
members of the Council who are not employed by the University, members of the EMC,
heads of student support environments, students from the various campuses, as well as
other relevant stakeholders. The SSC strives to support the mission of the University by • promoting a balanced student life for all students;
• acting in an advisory capacity in respect of programmes that foster and enhance the
multicultural character of the student community at the University; and
• acting in a co-ordinating and guiding capacity in terms of student accommodation,
student development, sport development, student counselling, study guidance, student
governance, campus medical services, and financial aid.
The SSC does not exercise any executive powers, but submits its recommendations for the
approval of the Council.

4.4

Convocation
The Convocation comprises:
• the Vice-Chancellor;
• the Deputy Vice-Chancellors;
• part-time and full-time academic employees; and
• Alumni of the University.
The Convocation may discuss and make its opinion known to the Council on any matter
concerning the University, including matters which may be referred to the Convocation by
the Council. The Convocation is represented on the Council.

4.5

Institutional Students’ Representative Council (ISRC)
The new Institutional Statute replaces the term “Central Students’ Representative Council”
with “Institutional Students’ Representative Council’’. This structure comprises
democratically elected members of the various Students’ Representative Councils (SRCs)
at the University campuses.
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1.

INCLUSIVITY OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Council undertook its performance assessment and that of its Committees, including the
review of the functions of the Committees; a case in point was the review of the terms of
reference of the Finance Committee of Council.
In order to address the financial sustainability of the University, Council approved the Policy
on Third Stream income, paving the way for the establishment of a business entity to
undertake the growth of third-stream income. The Policy on Investments was also approved
in order to address the split in investment asset allocation, the criteria for the appointment
and the monitoring of the performance of the investment managers based on the
performance objectives.
In line with the commitment to rigorous and competitiveness in its system of procurement,
the Council twice reviewed and approved the Policy on the Procurement of Goods and
Services and the Policy on Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment.
As part of the addressing the nation’s concern on student accommodation, the Council
approved the establishment of the Residence Governance Committee. It is envisaged that
the Committee will, amongst others, fulfil an oversight role to ensure compliance with the
norms and standards for the accreditation of private student residences and advice the
Council accordingly.
In order to cultivate and ensure continuous stakeholder engagement in the area of
fundraising, the University established the Advancement Advisory Committee as a channel
and the means of facilitating dialogue between the donor community and the University.

2.

GOVERNANCE, STRATEGY, RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

2.1 Links between governance, strategy, risks and opportunities
2.1.1

2.1.2
2.1.3

2.1.4

The higher education sector remained in a state of flux for the period under review.
The University continued to monitor developments in the wider political, social and
economic macro-environment and align its Annual Performance Plan 2017
accordingly.
One of the key strategic initiatives was to re-imagine transformation at TUT and
intensify actions for deep and comprehensive change across the University.
The University continued to manage its resources prudently by ensuring continued
financial sustainability, implementing performance management and development
system, and ensuring effective delivery of support services.
The academic project was strengthened by integrating advisory/professional
board/body recommendations into PQM and curriculum content, formulating and
integrating graduate attributes per programme, supporting the transition from school
to university, and implementing a technology-based teaching and learning strategy.

- 43 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
COUNCIL STATEMENT ON SUSTAINABILITY (continued)
2.1.5

2.1.6

2.1.7
2.1.8

The University continued to explore opportunities in online and blended learning to
mitigate risks associated with disruptions to the University business and the academic
project.
The University made further progress in deploying its new management model
towards greater decentralisation by delegating authority to campus management
committees to ensure greater responsiveness, effectiveness, and efficiencies.
The Strategic Risk Register was updated to effectively manage strategic risks related
to the ethical governance, leadership, and management of the University.
Quarterly progress reports on the effective management of the risks are submitted to
the Audit and Risk Committee and to Council.

2.2 Key performance indicators
The University’s key performance indicators that are monitored relate to the core teaching,
learning and research missions, and specific executive management priorities for the year.
The Council approved Annual Performance Plan (APP) and the Mid-Term Report submitted
to the DHET elucidates the key performance indicators and targets and the progress made
thereto.
These include, student enrolment, academic performance indicators such as pass rates,
retention rates and graduation rates and research related indicators such as master’s and
doctoral enrolments and graduation rates as well as research publications. The University
also tracks efficiency indicators related to budgets, cash flow and MTEF estimates as well as
staffing. These are reported elsewhere in this report.
3.

INNOVATION, FAIRNESS AND COLLABORATION
The redevelopment of the TUT Website is an example of an innovative, collaborative project
that is “proudly TUT”. The Website, which was launched on 26 September 2017, only utilised
internal expertise and resources, including Arts students, who developed the look and feel,
internal resources from ICT Services developed the back-end on SharePoint 2016, and staff
members from Corporate Affairs and Marketing to copy write new content and populate the
site.
Corporate Affairs and Marketing continued its collaborative role with the Advancement and
Partnership Office, and in particular with the TUT Bursary and Scholarship Fund, aimed at
assisting academically deserving, but financially needy students. Another collaborative
initiative between Corporate Affairs and Marketing and the Advancement and Partnership
Office during the period under review was the VC’s Journalism Alumni event, aimed at
building stronger relations with the media by drawing the University’s own alumni closer to
the brand.
As a People’s University, it is important that we communicate effectively and inclusively to all
external stakeholders. To this end, various spokespersons, fluent in African languages, and
all staff members of the University, were utilised in media interviews to respond to specific
topics and issues. Parents meetings were also instituted during the period under review, for
the Tshwane campuses, and the distant campuses in eMalahleni, Mbombela and
Polokwane. Interaction with parents at these meetings was also conducted in languages
spoken in the specific region.
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4.

SOCIAL TRANSFORMATION
The purpose of this statement is to develop a vision for the social transformation of the
Tshwane University of Technology into a Socially Transformed University for the 21st century.
This vision statement outlines what is possible and delineates the necessary goals to
accomplish such transformation. The process and implementation of social transformation
project was accompanied by the development of the framework which intends to inform and
contribute to the next iteration of the University’s strategic and operational plans and staff
performance agreements, which include transformation as an accountable deliverable to
each portfolio or area of responsibility. These will be closely monitored, reviewed and
improved for the period of the next Strategic Plan.
In South Africa, social inequalities were embedded and reflected in all spheres of social life,
as a product of the systemic exclusion of Blacks and women under colonialism and
apartheid. The higher education system was no exception. Social, political and economic
discrimination and inequalities of a class, race, gender, institutional and spatial nature
profoundly shaped, and continue to shape South African higher education. Given this, South
Africa’s new democratic government committed itself in 1994 to transforming higher
education as well as the inherited apartheid social and economic structure and
institutionalising a new social order.
In response to the changing economic markets and pressures brought about by
globalization, the restructuring of higher education in South Africa over the past ten years (in
which South Africa became a democratic country) has meant that universities have to play a
critical role in social transformation. This need has been exacerbated by the slow pace of
economic transformation and development in areas in which universities exist and thus focus
on the public good mandate of universities as envisaged in White Paper 3 (1997) in the
areas of equity and redress, quality, development, democratisation, academic freedom,
institutional autonomy, effectiveness and efficiency, and public accountability (DoE,
1997:1.18-1.25).
Therefore, the focus at TUT becomes the transformation of a university into a vibrant
community that embeds diversity and inclusiveness throughout the institution, including (but
not limited to) advancing knowledge in all its forms, including indigenous knowledge through
research; provides quality service to students, staff, local communities and society; educates
well-rounded students, appreciative of their culture and contribution to the good of society for
the 21st century challenges; develops students as graduate leaders, critical citizens and
agents of change; fosters freedom, democracy and social and economic justice; strengthens
identity, belonging and inclusion of students and staff; prioritise gender redress and tackling
discrimination in its varies forms, and promotes shared values and symbols. TUT employs a
broad and inclusive definition of diversity that includes (but is not limited to) disability, gender
identity and expression, sexual orientation, age, religion, disability, race, ethnicity, nationality,
and other important social dimensions that are part of the campus community.
TUT is recognised for its research and its leading role in developing applied research that
crosses traditional disciplinary and institutional boundaries to engage with the opportunities
and challenges presented by changing labour market, technological, physical and
geopolitical environments.
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The TUT Social Transformation Project will thus create a discourse among the TUT
community on the agenda of transformation for the University in all areas of its core
functions, and link it with the discourse and impact of these changes on the pace of social
and cultural transformation in our nearby communities, the SADC region, African continent,
and across the globe. It is our hope that the Project will spill over to the entire higher
education sector in South Africa and initiate a sectoral discourse aimed at understanding and
engaging with the national and globalising forces that are increasingly technologically
mediated, but that continue to be configured by spatial, economic and socio economic
temporal constraints.
The TUT academic project is conceptualised with the social transformation paradigm and
therefore, it is aimed at transforming the curriculum, enabling access with success,
managing success and sustainability, community engagement as an integral part of
teaching, learning, and research in service of social and economic transformation and on the
empowerment of students (and local community members) as critical thinkers, leaders and
agents for positive change. In sum for the purpose of addressing Social Transformation at
TUT, the Social Transformation Project is defined as a strategy for providing leadership in
identifying, addressing, and resolving the variety of economic, sustainability, and social ills
confronting our nation, continent, and global community. While the University develops
partnerships with local communities, researchers and academics are expected to reflect on
the University’s role as a vibrant partner in responding to our most pressing social, political,
civic, economic, and ethical problems confronting society and the continent for transforming
TUT into an institution that conceptualises inclusiveness as part of social transformation.
The concept of Social Transformation (articulated and endorsed by the South African
Constitution of 1996, the 1997 Higher Education Act and the White Paper) moves a
university away from a simplistic definition of diversity to a more inclusive, comprehensive
and omnipresent notion of inclusiveness, melds inclusiveness and academic excellence into
one concept (to practice inclusiveness is excellence); shifts the responsibility for diversity
and inclusiveness to everyone on campus as opposed to one unit or department shouldering
the responsibility and moves an institution away from conceptualizing diversity only in terms
of a numerical goal of diverse constituents.
A socially transformed institution, in pursuit of a multiplicity of educational and social
outcomes, capitalises on the varied rich backgrounds, experiences, perspectives, gifts and
talents, institutional culture, policy review, language, student participation and cultures that
diverse individuals and groups bring to an institution of higher learning. Such universities
advance social progress among the communities they serve and also promote inclusive as a
resource that offer tremendous benefits and subsequently, work towards cultivating, utilizing,
and embedding the concept in all areas of the institution.
By achieving and maintaining socially transformed student, staff, governance structures,
senate, institutional forums and faculty bodies, along with creating an inclusive climate, TUT
as an institution successfully connects with the reality of our evolving society and makes
contribution toward a better world. Ultimately, TUT as an institution gains a competitive edge
in educational and research opportunities and in preparing all TUT students for living and
working in a diverse democracy and an increasingly complex global society.
5.

SEP ANALYSIS
In 2017, TUT registered a total of 63 032 student headcount. Of these, 2 981 were registered
for postgraduate, 59 829 undergraduate, and 222 occasional studies.
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Attendance mode for contact were 62 000 students and 1 032 distance.
In 2017, a total of 14 757 graduated in both postgraduate and undergraduate studies.
Currently, the success rate for 2017 is not available due to audit which only takes place after
April each year.
The majority of our students took more subjects as compared to the previous years. SCTL
encourages all students to take more than 80% of their subjects. The more our students
increase in success rate and graduation rate, the more funding is generated.
TUT Council suggested to SCTL that all subjects that score below 60% be regarded as high
impact subjects, such subjects will be targeted for improvement.
TUT101 was also implemented in 2016, to address poor adaptability of our first-year
students. A new Policy on Class Attendance was approved by EMC and Senate in 2017.
TUT101 is the cornerstone for our first time entering students. The University is developing
some modules which will be credit-bearing in order to assist student adjustment into
University education.
All faculties appointed student mentors, tutors, and excellence co-ordinators to assist our at
risk students. By the end of 2017, the plan to train mentors as First Year Buddy’s was ready
for implementation in 2018. The mentors will assist faculties during orientation as well as
where they will meet and engage with first-year students as seniors assisting them with
transition challenges. Senate is seriously monitoring academic performance of our students
and a target of 80% success rate is set for 2019.

The University is committed to creating an environment in which its students
successfully transit into higher education through transformative and student-centred
teaching and learning, and further seeks to ensure that its graduates are employable,
entrepreneurial, and socially responsible citizens. One of the strategies employed by the
University in achieving this objective was to ensure that the academic staff is trained in
transformative student-centred teaching methodologies. For this purpose, the University
entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) with Haaga-Helia University of Applied
Sciences (based in Finland) to train TUT academics as university teachers. In April 2016,
32 academic staff members enrolled for the Vocational Teacher Training programme.
This first cohort of our staff has since completed their programme and graduated on
17 February 2017.
21 academic staff members enrolled as a second cohort in November 2016 and
graduated in October 2017. The other 23 academic staff members have enrolled at this
stage for the third intake that is scheduled to start in June 2017 and will be graduating on
9 June 2018.
6.

ALTERNATIVE FUNDING STREAMS
The University’s Academic Project and support operations continued to be funded under the
following key streams, NSFAS allocations, state appropriations (government subsidies and
grants), Tuition, and other Fee Income, Income from Contracts – Research, Investment
Income, Sale of goods and services, Bursaries, Sundry income, and Third-Stream income.
The Council approved the Investment Policy and Strategy, and also continued to ensure that
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INTRODUCTION
Transformation of higher education in South Africa remains a critical priority for the sector, more
so in 2017 and into the future. Since the advent of democracy and even more in recent legislative
documents, and since the two Higher Education Transformation Summits convened in 2010 and
2015, respectively, it has been noted that universities have had limited success to effect
comprehensive transformation across their institutions. In addition, the December 2016 critical
report by the South African Human Rights Commission called Transformation at Public
Universities in South Africa confirmed what is already well known: that the task of realising
transformation in the higher education sector, and at universities in particular, remains
inadequate. The task of advancing a thoughtful, comprehensive and conceptually strong
transformation narrative underpinned by effective implementation and monitoring is a priority.
A notable national transformational change was the decision to merge universities, and in the
case of TUT, three institutions were merged in 2004 into the Tshwane University of Technology
(TUT). It established TUT as the largest contact university in the country. A number of
achievements have been realised in the merger period for the University, but in 2016 it was
particularly identified by Council and Executive Management that there remains outstanding and
incomplete aspects from the actual merger which are linked to the wider transformation objective
and require ongoing attention. Some of these issues included consolidating and developing a
progressive institutional culture, finalising human resources-related issues and establishing a
comprehensive and new transformation narrative for the University. Beginning in the second half
of 2016 and continuing through 2017, the University dedicated resources to give attention to
drafting and finalising a Transformation Framework to guide future plans and actions at the
University. Council approved the Transformation Framework on 24 November 2017.
As a constituent part of society and a national educational asset, and with Council approval of the
Transformation Framework, TUT has committed to meaningfully support and deeply translate
national priorities and constitutional values in a real way within the University community and in
engagement with its partners in a context of limited resources and in instances of socially
untransformed attitudes and values by some staff and students. Deeply embedding the values of
a transformed society and University, namely human dignity, social inclusion, freedom of
expression and a human rights tradition in the academic programmes and research, in campus
and residence life, and in University practices (institutional culture) remains an urgent and
ongoing task. Confronting sexist, racist, patriarchal, classist, tribal, nationalist, and discriminatory
attitudes by staff and students cannot be condoned in any manner or form and it is dealt with
without fear or favour when identified.
The context in which TUT operates is impacted by the global impact of the massification and
democratisation of higher education, the national imperative of transformation of the post-school
education and training system, the politicisation of higher education, and in the last couple of
years, the #FeesMustFall movements. All of these impact significantly on the University. Other
major challenges confronting the University include refining its role and purpose as a university of
technology in the national, regional and international context as the People’s University made up
the majority of students who are representative of the country’s poor and working class;
strengthening its governance, leadership and management systems; developing the academic
and research project of the University; strengthening the institutional support and human
resources functions; addressing green campus and sustainability priorities; and transforming the
institutional culture of the University in line with constitutional imperatives and academic values.
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Based on the 2010 National Higher Education Transformation Summit outcomes, the
development and implementation of the TUT Integrated Transformation Plan 2013 – 2017 Plan
required by the DHET of all universities was reviewed to identify where progress has occurred
and where focussed attention must be given to a next iteration of the plan for the coming years.
ACTIVITIES IN 2017 AND THE NEXT STEPS
Steps were taken by the Vice-Chancellor in 2016 to ensure that there is transformation progress
through engaging by leadership, management, students, staff and stakeholders of the University
community on what ‘transformation’ means at TUT, what a transformed TUT would look like,
what areas of the University it must cover and address, in order to develop a shared TUT
Transformation Framework which is comprehensive in nature and is conceptually sound and
intellectually robust.
This engagement process on what transformation means at TUT was accompanied by a
successfully held TUT Transformation Summit held on 12 – 13 September 2017 on the Pretoria
Campus. Staff and students were invited to the Summit, with over 280 participants. External and
internal conversation leaders were invited to speak and over 20 staff and students made
presentations during the summit in parallel sessions. The Summit engagements were frank and
robust. Many of the suggestions and ideas expressed found expression in the approved
Transformation Framework.
In many respects, TUT intends to be one of the leaders in the transformation initiative. The plan
is to see that TUT’s Transformation Framework is comprehensively integrated in its coverage and
plans of action – which will be a change from the activities, sometimes lacking integration, which
have taken place. Such an approach allows for a greater chance of success in changing the
University and allows for clearer reporting of activities. Needless to say, it is enabling significant
change through engagement at the level of the individual which underpins meaningful and
enduring transformation and which must accompany any transformation activities.
This process should take the University to the next level of engagement and action with respect
to the approval of the Transformation Framework and a new University transformation narrative.
While the work undertaken in the second half of 2016 and in 2017 brought some measure of
reflection and intellectual engagement for leadership at various levels of the University, the task
in 2018 is to establish a deep and shared understanding of transformation across the University
which is conceptually and intellectually strong, with moral purpose, which will be embedded in the
strategy and operational plans, and that sets measures and targets for the various areas of the
University to implement and monitor transformation.
STATEMENT OF COMMITMENT
This statement of commitment, endorsed by the Executive Management and Council of the
Tshwane University of Technology (TUT), reflects the earnest intention of the institution to
achieve the vision and goals of transformation of the higher education system as outlined in the
Education White Paper 3: A Programme for the Transformation of Higher Education (1997) the
National Plan for Higher Education of 2001; and the White Paper for Post-School Education and
Training: Building on Expanded, Effective and Integrated Post-School Education of 2013. It also
gives serious consideration of the two national Higher Education Transformation Summits and
their recommendations in 2010 and 2015, respectively.
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It is important to start by providing a context of the environment in which the University
was operating during the period under review in 2017. Like all other higher education institutions
in South Africa, TUT has grappled with many of the various aspects which affected students and
financial wellbeing of the organisation. Its operations were affected by both global and national
issues such as massification, access to fee free higher education, student accommodation
shortages, decolonization, insourcing of staff and other important national transformation
imperatives affecting post-school education system. The University has rallied its intellectual and
other resources to tackle many of these challenges in various ways and it has experienced
significant progress.
The year 2017 started without major disruptions, except those experienced at the Pretoria and
eMalahleni campuses respectively, during mid-February and March. The major issue was
shortage of students’ accommodation, which has been resolved with the approval of the Policy on
Accreditation of Private Accommodation. A memorandum of agreement was signed between
management and the institutional SRC. The MoU implementation was closely monitored by EMC
until all the tasks and activities were successfully implemented. In addition, executive
management met with parents across all campuses. It was clear from the discussions, that
parents supported TUT in its attempts to have the students continue with the academic project in
order to give them every possible opportunity to complete the year successfully as well as the
University obligation to address student issues.
Students’ sporadic protests were experienced in some campuses but was contained mainly due to
management continued engagement with the students and staff structures on campus. TUT has
been recognised and commended for the approach it has pursued to engage with students and
manage the unrest and violence. Some of the key strategies included:
•
The constant open and ongoing communication with recognised student leadership
structures by the Executive Management Committee (EMC).
•
Regular meetings by the EMC and the Institutional Management Committee (IMC), with
all campuses included in the conversations and decisions.
•
Regular and appropriate interactions, while ensuring the independence of the University
and care taken to avoid any police or external presence where possible and practical,
with relevant national structures such as SAPS, Police Intelligence, the Hawks, the
DHET, and Universities South Africa (USAf).
•
Engagement with parents in all campuses.
The University continued to grapple with the refining of its role and purpose as the university of
technology in the national, regional and international context as a People’s University. It is within
this context that it embarked on various activities and processes to strengthen its governance,
leadership and management systems, reviewing and developing the academic and research
project; strengthening the institutional support and human resources functions and transforming
the institutional culture. Amongst the most notable processes initiated by management was the
continuation of the transformation project and approval and launch of the TUT Ethics
Management Framework. Both these projects will be rolled out to all levels of the University
community in 2018.
Generally, the academic project progressed with reasonable stability and was concluded
successfully with all students participating in the final assessments according to the official
schedule. The University is indebted for the success of the academic project and stability in this
period of reporting, to the support and commitment of its students, staff and external
stakeholders.
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Transformation Project
Steps were taken by the Vice-Chancellor in 2016, and which continued for the duration of 2017,
to ensure institutional transformation progress by engaging leadership, management, students,
staff, and stakeholders of the University community in discussions on what ‘transformation’
means at TUT, what a transformed TUT would look like and what environments of the University
it must cover and address in order to develop a shared TUT Transformation Framework which is
comprehensive in nature and is conceptually sound and intellectually robust. By November 2017,
more than 500 TUT staff and students participated in these conversations. Many of the
comments and ideas which were expressed would be captured in the Framework.
This engagement process on what transformation means at TUT was accompanied by a
successfully held TUT Transformation Summit held on 12 and 13 September 2017 on the
Pretoria Campus. Staff and students were invited to the Summit, with over 280 participants.
There were representatives from all campuses. Some Council members attended. External and
internal conversation leaders were invited to speak and over 20 staff and students made
presentations during the Summit in parallel sessions. The Summit engagements were frank and
robust. Once again, many of the suggestions and thoughts expressed found expression in the
Council approved Transformation Framework.
With the approval of the Transformation Framework at the Council meeting of 24 November
2017, members of the Executive Management were requested in late 2017 to initiate their
planning for the next iteration of transformation in their environments while making use of the
Transformation Framework to guide their plans and strategies.
In 2018, each University environment is expected to conduct an analysis and develop operational
goals aligned to the University plan and strategy, including the Annual Performance Plan and
operational plans, to ensure the implementation of the transformation objectives. These goals are
expected to have timeframes, specific actions and deliverables with the accountable individuals,
to allow for monitoring, evaluation and improvement. The development of key performance areas
and metrics will be essential for accountability purposes and to demonstrate transformation
progress. In addition, attention must be given to ensure that University policies and procedures
are updated and relevant so as not to frustrate or hinder its implementation.
1.

ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE PLANS, GOALS AND OBJECTIVES SET
The year under review saw the University continuing with the implementation of the
Institutional Strategic Plan (ISP): 2014 to 2019 that was approved by the University Council
on 17 April 2014.
The seismic disruptions in the higher education landscape in general, the implications for
TUT and TUT’s local context(s) provided an opportune occasion to revisit the TUT
Institutional Strategic Plan: 2014 to 2019 and, where necessary, reframe relevant goals and
objectives and their corresponding key performance indicators, targets and benchmarks.
Strategic Goals (2014-2019):
1.

2.

To prepare diverse students for rewarding careers and responsible citizenry by providing
a student-centred learning experience that is underpinned by a scholarship of teaching
and learning.
To promote a culture of inquiry and social enterprise through technology-based
postgraduate studies, research and innovation in current and emerging niche areas.
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3.
4.

To promote mutually-beneficial academic, social and economic partnerships.
To provide a supportive teaching and learning, working and living environment for staff
and students.

The theme of the 2017 Executive Management Committee (EMC) Priorities was
Repositioning TUT in a Rapidly Changing Higher Education Landscape.
In addition, the Executive Management Committee (EMC) developed the nine ( 9 )
strategic priorities for 2017. The strategic priorities formed part of TUT’s Annual
Performance Plan as indicated in table 30 below:
Table 30: Strategic Priorities for 2017
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2017
Re-imagine transformation at TUT and intensify
actions for deep and comprehensive change
across the University
Ensure continued financial sustainability
Implement a Performance Management
(Monitoring and Evaluation) System
Integrate advisory/professional board/body
recommendations into PQM and curriculum
content
Formulate and integrate graduate attributes per
programme
Support the transition from school to university

Implement a technology-based teaching and
learning strategy

Ensure satisfactory delivery of support services
To acquire, construct, install, monitor and
maintain infrastructure facilities and equipment of
a standard conducive to participating in the
modern tertiary education context

RESPONSIBLE EXECUTIVE
Vice Chancellor & Principal

Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director: Human Resources and
Transformation
DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology

DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology
DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology
Executive Deans
HEDS
DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology
Executive Director: Institutional Effectiveness
and Efficiency and
Chief Information Officer
DVC: Institutional Support
Executive Director: Institutional Support
DVC: Institutional Support
Executive Director: Institutional Support

The Executive Management Committee (EMC) reports to Council and its subcommittees
on an ongoing basis regarding progress on strategic priorities.
Goal 1: To prepare diverse students for rewarding careers and responsible citizenry
by providing a student-centered learning experience that is underpinned by a
scholarship of teaching and learning.
TUT met its student enrolment targets for 2017. It exceeded the targets in some faculties
and CESM fields. The 0% fee increase and additional funding for NSFAS qualifying
students enabled increased enrolments at the University.
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The summary of the 2017 student enrolment data between targeted and actual enrolment is
shown in table 31 below:
Table 31: Student Head Counts enrolments Undergraduate and Postgraduate for 2017
Target
enrolments SEP
2017
13 783

Actual
enrolments HEMIS
2017
14 573

57 540

59 829

2 965

2 981

60 505

63 032

Science, Engineering & Technology Major Field

24 904

24 631

Business/Management Major Field

20 753

21 380

4 671

4 447

Other Humanities Major Field

10 177

12 574

TOTAL

60 505

63 032

First Time Entering undergraduate (FTEN)
Total Undergraduate
Postgraduate
TOTAL
CESM Categories

Education Major Field

The data in table 31 shows that for First time entering undergraduates, the University had
exceeded its targeted Student’s Enrolment Plan figures for FTEN. There has been a slight
increase in the number of enrolled students (2981) in the postgraduate level in 2017 as
compared to the 2016 actual enrolment of 2636. However, the increase in student numbers
is mainly due to a number of students who are unable to complete their studies in record
time rather than an over enrolment by the University.
The University is committed to creating an environment in which its students successfully
transit into higher education through transformative and student-centered teaching and
learning strategies, and further seeks to ensure that its graduates are employable,
entrepreneurial and socially responsible citizens. One of the strategies employed by the
University in achieving this objective was to ensure that the academic staff is trained in
transformative student-centered learning and teaching methodologies. For this purpose, the
University entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) with Haaga-Helia University of
Applied Sciences (based in Finland) to train TUT academics as university teachers. In April
2016, 32 academic staff members enrolled for the Vocational Teacher Training programme.
This first cohort of academic and support staff has since completed their programme and
graduated on 17 February 2017. An additional 21 academic staff members enrolled as a
second cohort in November 2016 and graduated in October 2017. The third intake of 23
academic and support staff members have enrolled in the programme in June 2017 and will
be graduating on 9 June 2018.
Another measure in place to determine whether TUT prepares students for rewarding
careers is by examining the institution’s Programmes and Qualifications Mix (PQM) and in
what direction is it changing. TUT is predominantly an undergraduate university. In terms of
the CESM fields of study, TUT exceeded the 2017 enrolment target in Business and
Management Sciences (20 753 vs 21 380) and other Humanities fields (10 177 vs 12 574).
However, there was a notable drop on targeted versus actual enrolments in Science
Engineering and Technology (SET) enrolments (24 904 vs 24 631) and Education (4 671 vs
4 447).
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Another important area for the University to renew its recruitment strategy is in distance
education. The University had targeted head count enrolment of 1 304 for distance
education students. However, it could only enrol 1 021 distance students in 2017. The
University is now addressing this problem. In December 2016, the University signed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Academic Partnerships, a US-based
organisation to increase distance education enrolments. The launch of the Academic
Partnership project was held in March 2018.
To further enhance student success at TUT, various programmes have been initiated at
TUT. Two of the significant initiatives are Tutorship and Mentorship programmes, which
ensures that first-year students are allocated tutors and mentors to support them throughout
the year. The project is funded through the Teaching Development Grant. However, the
impact of these student support initiatives on student success are still to be evaluated.
The University also continues with TUT101, a programme that prepares students for higher
education study. TUT101 remains the cornerstone of support for the first time entering
students. Since its implementation, the institutional First Year Orientation statistics have
shown a significant improvement in the attendance of the event in 2017 as compared to
previous years where there were no institutional planning for orientation and faculties and
campuses implemented orientation differently or not at all. This clearly indicates the need
and positive response of student to the event and its role in assisting them with social and
academic integration into the university environment. TUT student profile data shows that
many of its students are first generation university students in their families and may not
have the necessary support from home to prepare them for the challenges that come with
transitioning from high school into the university learning environment. This is the main aim
of the TUT101 project and other related activities with this focus are gaining momentum at
the University. It is envisaged that by end on 2019, all three activities of the project i.e. First
Year Orientation, Buddy Mentors and the TUT101 module, would have been implemented
even though at different phases.
2017 Graduation Statistics
The University continues to improve its graduation rate at both undergraduate and
postgraduate level, with 14 757 students graduating in 2017. A notable achievement of the
2017 graduation ceremonies was the awarding of fifty five (55) doctoral qualifications. This
is the first time in TUT’s history that such a large number of students obtained their doctoral
qualifications. Another highlight during the Spring Graduations was the first doctorate
awarded in Fashion Design in the Faculty of the Arts.
Two honorary doctorates were also bestowed on Ms Lillian Dube and Prof Joseph KargerKocsis respectively during Spring Graduation Ceremonies.
Goal 2: To promote a culture of inquiry and social enterprise through technology
based postgraduate studies, research and innovation in current and emerging niche
areas.
TUT has a mandate from DHET to be a predominantly undergraduate institution with an
emerging research focus. TUT is intent on the development of research and innovation
(R&I) capacity in strategically selected areas of strength that are relevant to national and
regional needs, priorities and opportunities.

- 56 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
VICE-CHANCELLOR’S REPORT (continued)
Some of these priorities and opportunities are:
•
Building an enabling environment and institutional culture for R&I;
•
Staff development;
•
Increasing the number of postgraduate students and postdoctoral fellows;
•
Strengthening leadership and platforms for R&I;
•
Facilitating knowledge transfer and commercialization;
•
Increasing R&I funding and output.
The Directorate: Research and Innovation (R&I) is the operational arm of the Senate
Committee for Research and Innovation (SCRI) and functions as a central institutional
advice and support service for mobilising resources for R&I, and aims to ensure effective
administrative support systems. Stability was achieved in 2017 with the permanent
appointment of the DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research, Innovation and Engagement in
October 2017. In our efforts to increase postgraduate student enrolments and graduations,
the University managed to achieve its set DHET enrolment targets in 2017. TUT was
expected to have enrolled 1 779 Master’s and 593 Doctoral students, which is a total of
2 372 students. A total of 2 981 students were enrolled for postgraduate studies in 2017.
This was an increase in comparison to the year 2016.
In terms of graduations statistics for 2017, a total of 300 Master’s and 55 Doctoral students
completed their studies. This was an enormous increase of postgraduate students
graduating as compared to the 2016 statistics.
The University continued to invest another R10 million in postgraduate scholarships. For
more than three years, the DHET provided research development grants to the University to
mainly enhance the capacity of academics with postgraduate qualifications. The three-year
funding cycle came to end in March 2017; however the Department introduced a phase-out
programme that ensured smooth transition from the old to the new University Capacity
Development Programme. An amount of R7 260 000 was allocated for this period in 2017 to
support projects as listed below. Table 32 below provides an indication of the categories
within which the research and development grant was distributed.
Table 32: Research Development Grant allocations from DHET in 2017
DEVELOPMENT AREA AND BENEFICIARIES
Improvement of Qualification: Masters
Improvement of Qualification: Doctorates
Postdoctoral Fellowships

Number
supported
60
64
11

Academic exchange to improve research skills & research exposure

12

Mentoring/Supervisory training programmes and research capacity
development programmes for recent doctoral recipients
National Research Foundation (NRF) co-funding for staff capacity development
TOTAL

138
19
304

In terms of the National Research Foundation rating, in 2017, three more academics were
rated, which brought the number of NRF-rated researchers at TUT to 47. These numbers
might increase if the five (5) staff members currently on the NRF rating track funding apply
for a rating after three years of being funded.
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The University hosted a total of eleven (11) research chairs in 2017, i.e. seven (7) awarded
by the Department of Science and Technology (DST) and National Research Foundation
(NRF), three (3) by the Rand Water Board, and one by Gibela Rail Transport Consortium.
The table 33 below provides the details of the 11 research chairs that were active in 2017:
Table 33: Research Chairs
Type of chair

Research chair name
Agrochemurgy and Plant Symbioses
Acid Mine Drainage
Phytomedicine

DST-NRF

Water Quality and Wastewater Management
Enabled Environment and Assistive Living
Phytochemical Food Network to improve Nutritional Quality for Consumers
Innovation Studies
Electrical Engineering

Rand Water

Organic Chemistry
Water utilization

Gibela

Manufacturing and Skills Development

To align research activities with available resources at TUT, in 2017, the University
embarked on the review of niche areas which led to decrease of 19 niche areas to nine.
When the review of the niche areas was finalised, seven niche areas remained and
additional two new were established. See table 34 below for TUT niche areas that were
active in 2017.
Table 34: Revised TUT Research Niche areas
Niche Areas

Faculty

Appropriate architecture for South Africa
Sustainability Management Accounting &
Governmental Financial Governance
Control, Image Processing and Machine
Intelligence

Engineering and the Built Environment
Economics and Finance

Climate Change and Disaster Management

Engineering and the Built Environment

Assessment for learning
Reconstruction of the past and crafting a new
multicultural South African landscape through the
arts
Critical Studies in Visual Arts
Information and Communication Technology for
Development (ICT4D)
Applied Refrigeration and Thermal Energy Systems

Humanities

Engineering and the Built Environment

The Arts
The Arts
Information & Communication Technology
Engineering and the Built Environment

An enabling research and innovation environment at TUT is created through various
activities. One of these is the Vice-Chancellor’s Prestigious Seminar series hosted at TUT on
an annual basis. Three of such seminars across various disciplines were presented by
acclaimed international scholars in May, September and November 2017. The seminars
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were presented by Professors from India (Indian Institute of Technology), Nigeria (University
of Port Harcourt), and the Sweden (Linköping University of Sweden) who were hosted by the
faculties of Management Sciences, The Arts, and Information Communication and
Technology, respectively. The presentations were based on the following topics (i) Ethics,
Business and Society, (ii) Decolonisation and Africanisation: The re-closing of the African
Mind and (iii) Deviance in Audit Society – Enacting Global Standards in Software Developing
Organizations.
The subsidy generated from Research Output Units (ROUs) publications only; has fluctuated
from R31 489 000 in 2015 (for 2013) to R30 579 772 in 2016 (for 2014) and then
R32 366 054 in 2017 (for 2015). There has been an overall increase in subsidy generated for
research output (postgraduate graduations and publications) from R59 587 000 in 2015 (for
2013) to R68 242 000 in 2016 (for 2014), and to R70 966 000 in 2017 (for 2015). This
increase over the years has kept TUT as a leading University of Technology in the country.
The Institute for Advanced Tooling (IAT), a technology station from the Faculty of
Engineering and the Built Environment (FEBE), received the highly acclaimed ISO 9001
certificate of quality assurance for its quality management system in October 2017. The ISO
9001 Quality Management System (QMS) is internationally recognised as the world’s leading
quality management standard. The purpose of the standard is to assist organisations in
meeting statutory and regulatory requirements relating to their products and/or services while
achieving excellence in their customer service and delivery.
In 2017, a total number of seven provisional patents applications were filed: 1) A walk-assist
apparatus, 2) Wheelchair-Assistive driving Control System, 3) Wireless Electrocardiogram, 4)
Treatment of contaminated water, 5) Exoskeleton Arm for assistance in upper limb
rehabilitation therapies, 6) Plant derived medicinal composition and 7) Cubic 38.
In May 2017, IP creator recognition certificates were awarded at the inventors’ forum event
for (i) the creation of a Communication tool used by visually impaired consumers, (ii) heating
arrangement invention (iii) Differential Driven Mobility Aid, (iv) Mobile Phone Charging
Station, (v) Integrated Electro Mechanical Slip and Energy Recovery Generator, and (vi)
Microbial Wound Dressing invention.
The Office of Innovation and Technology Transfer (OITT) hosted a business breakfast in
April 2017, under the theme Water Technologies. The aim of the event was to showcase
some of its water technologies, wastewater management projects and network with
stakeholders. The jam-packed event included presentations, and showcasing of products
and remarkable purification systems from internal and external stakeholders such as
Phenduka Industrial, CSIR, Ngululu Holdings, Lonza water, TIA, Eunever Trading, Mhlathuze
Water, Multotech, Prodomus, Future strategy, Watericon, Department of Water and
Sanitation, Rand water, City of Tshwane, The Innovation Hub, Innopreneur and Absolutely
Water. Some of the topics discussed at the event included water treatment, treatment of
heavy metal contaminated wastewater and pre-concentration extraction procedures for
organic contaminants in water.
Technology Innovation Agency (TIA) awarded TUT seed fund in February 2017 for the
following projects: (1) Sour maize beverage R500 000, (2) Share Water System R250 000,
(3) Chemisorption of toxic Chromium and (4) from smelter wastewater R500 000. The
following were approved to be funded (1) Development and fabrication of pre concentration
kit R520 000, (2) Wireless Electrocardiogram R631 209 and (3) Use of Biomass for the
production of low-cost, environmentally-friendly briquettes R650 000.
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The Directorate of Research and Innovation has been assisting the University with
internationalization activities since 2012. These involved the mobility of staff and students
between TUT and European universities, for 2015-2017, the EU-AESOP+ programme was
active. A number of departments in the University participate in these EU funding
programmes. In 2017, there were nine (9) active Erasmus+ projects, and one (1) Horizon
2020 project and three (3) negotiated agreements which were approved.
Goal 3: To promote mutually-beneficial academic, social and economic partnerships.
Industry partnerships: TUT has various ongoing relationships with various companies, which
continued during the reporting period. The following companies were involved as TUT
partners during our Career Expo, Career Fairs, WIL workshops, WIL placement and
internships: AB, Transnet, Nestle, Rebone Manufacturing, Sun International, Distell SANDF,
Denel, Coca-Cola, Amscor, Anglo American, Necsa, Sappi, Erwat, CSIR, MA Automotive,
John Deere, Volvo, Ford, BMW, DetNet, MASSMART, Truworths, Tubecon, Financial
Services Board, Powertech, PT Transformers, Department of Labour, NTTP, Bridgestone,
Westfalia Fruit, General Electric, amongst others.
Work-Integrated Learning and internships: Regular engagement with sector education and
training authorities (SETAs) takes place to facilitate student placement for work-integrated
learning, internships and bursaries. This resulted in securing funding of R4 million from HW
Seta for Health Sciences WIL Students, Services SETA gave internships for
Entrepreneurship diploma students, AgriSETA funded for WIL, internships and bursaries for
Agriculture students and Post Graduates; Logistics and Sport Management departments
managed to secure R17 million in bursaries from W&RSETA. TLT is grateful that the Faculty
of Science has set up Advisory Committees in all 14 of their departments.
Partnership with the City of Tshwane (CoT): A high-level strategic engagement meeting
took place in August 2017 between the University and the CoT. The Executive Mayor,
Councillor, Solly Msimanga, and the Vice Chancellor and Principal, Prof Lourens Van
Staden, with their respective teams once again agreed on mutually beneficial areas for
collaboration. The final Memorandum of Understanding to be signed for the next five years
is currently in the approval stage at the CoT and will be signed by the end of April 2018.
Goal 4: To provide a supportive teaching and learning, working and living
environment for staff and students.
TUT has dedicated staff and students development divisions aimed at supporting the
achievement of this goal. The activities of the various divisions in support of this goal are
indicated below:
a. Curriculum Development and Support: The Directorate of Curriculum Development and
Support (CDS) is responsible for the academic staff development activities in general. In
2017, eight hundred and seventy one (871) academic staff members attended continuing
professional development programmes for academic staff offered by the Directorate of
Curriculum Development and Support (CDS). These programmes include the Academic
Leadership Programme (ALP), the Licence to Teach Orientation Programme for
Permanently Appointed Lecturing Staff, the Licence to Teach Orientation Programme for
Part-Time Lecturing Staff, the Assessment and Moderation in Higher Education Short
Learning Programme (SLP), the Curriculum Development SLP, the Licence to Teach
SLP, the Licence to Guide Orientation Programme for Tutors, the Licence to the
Professoriate Programme for new Professors, the Licence to Lead Programme for Heads
of Departments (HoDs), a Portfolio Development Workshop for Lecturers, the Licence to
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Teach Module 6 on the use of the Learning Management System of TUT, as well as Ad
hoc Programmes (on demand professional development workshops that CDS conducts
for academics).
b. Human Resources Development (HRD): The Human Resources and Development (HRD)
Directorate focuses on generic professional, leadership and competence development for
staff members. During this reporting period, the following staff development activities took
place:
• TUT Leadership Development Programme: As a key-player in a rather volatile
higher education sector, the current higher education landscape poses complex
challenges for TUT, which will require highly competent and effective leadership to
address them efficiently. The TUT LEAD programme is a customised and strategically
aligned leadership development programme for both academic and support
managers, which forms part of a broader leadership capacity building project which
was launched in 2015. The aim of the LEAD programme is to build the required
leadership capacity to enable managers to execute the strategic objectives of the
University, to drive change and transformation and to improve the way the University
functions. The programme has successfully run since 2016.
Table 35: Lead Modules attendance information for 2017
Lead Programme name
Cluster 1: Collaborative Leadership: Change Resilience
Cluster 1: Collaborative Leadership: Module 1: Transformation
Leadership
Cluster 2: Strategy Translation & Innovation: Module 2: Power and
Politics: Leading and Operating in a Politically vibrant environment
Cluster 2: Strategy Translation & Innovation: Module 3: Creativity with
Intent and Design Thinking
Cluster 3: Impact Relationships: Engaging With Conflict
Cluster 3: Impact Relationships: Module 4: Leadership and SelfDeception: Developing and implementing an outward mind-set
Cluster 3: Impactful relationships: Leading with emotional intelligent
Cluster 4: Disciplined Results Orientation: Rebuilding the broken racial
walls
Cluster 4: Disciplined Results Orientation: The dark side of leadership:
Identifying & overcoming unethical behaviour in yourself and others
TUT Lead Programme 2017 LAUNCH
The Politics of Team Dysfunction the Role of the Leader
Think tank: Proposal for management and leadership development
strategy 2018
HERS-SA Academy 2017
Grand Total of actual staff benefiting from Leadership
Development programmes

Distinct Count of
Staff number
38
101
80
81
22
58
11
44
37
78
8
7
5
570

• Orientation of New appointed TUT Staff members: Orientation of newly appointed
TUT staff members was held on the 20 November 2017. About 397 academic, support
and insourced staff members attended the orientation programme. This has been a
substantial number of orientation participants recorded in ten years.
•

Mandatory Grant: The ETDP-SETA during 2016-2017 awarded the University a
Discretionary Grant to the value of R1 000 000. This was over and above the
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Mandatory Grant as stipulated in the Skills Development Act. To access this Grant,
the University submitted a project proposal to the ETDP SETA. The selected training
project courses were:
- National Certificate: Information Technology: End-User Computing
- Further Education and Training: Information Technology: Technical Support
- National Certificate: Information Technology: System Support
Twenty (20) beneficiaries have been trained for each qualification in line with their
Individual Development Plans (IDPs). This funding was intended to provide training
and development to staff members as it reflects in the WSPR.
•

Discretionary Grant 2017/2018: The EDTP SETA has, since made available a
funding opportunity for key and strategic education and training interventions to an
amount of R1 576 453 to the University. This amount of money is envisaged to be
shared among priority projects identified in the WSPR 2017/2018, and to be
implemented and finished in 2019. The project proposals identified will enhance the
skills of the Information Technology Services and Administrative Assistance staff.

•

Training for Implementation of Performance Management and Development
System (PMDS)
According to the TUT Institutional Statute, all employees are subject to continuous
evaluation in performance of their duties in terms of the policies of the University. To
advance this intent, the TUT Council has approved the implementation of the
Performance Management and Development System (PMDS) for all staff of the
University.
Human Resources Development Directorate has embarked on implementing PMDS
training for the all TUT staff. The training started in August 2017 until November 2017.
The training will continue throughout 2018, to give all TUT staff an opportunity to
attend. Table 36 below provides information on the number of staff members who
participated in the 2017 training sessions:
Table 36: PMDS Staff Training Statistics for 2017
MONTH
August 2017
September 2017
October 2017
November 2017
TOTAL

NUMBERS
35
208
137
213
593

c. Student Development and Support (SDS): In providing a supportive environment for
students, the Directorate Student Development and Support (SDS) rendered several
academic development and support programmes to students. The Student Tracking
System, used by SDS on the Higher Education Data Analyser (HEDA), assists in
monitoring and identifying students in need of support interventions. In 2017, 11 522
students participated in an SDS intervention. A total of 27 816 intervention services were
rendered across the SDS portfolios, excluding a further 2 750 TUT applicants who
participated in the TUT Potential Assessment for admissions purposes.

- 62 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
VICE-CHANCELLOR’S REPORT (continued)
d. Infrastructure: Adequate and up to date infrastructure is crucial to providing an enabling
and supporting environment for students and staff. Therefore, TUT is highly indebted to
the DHET for earmarked support given to the institution from the Infrastructure Efficiency
Funding (IEF). Table 37 provides the progress on the Infrastructure Efficiency Fund
activities until 31 December 2017:
Table 37: Infrastructure Efficiency Fund Projects as at 31 December 2017
IEF 3

R'
6 200 000

Actual
Expenditure
R'
4 494 670

3 262 000

3 166 173

FC4-SCI1-BUILDING ALTERATIONS LAB
1-4
FC4-SCI1-EQUIPMENT HEALTH
SCIENCES
FC4:TLWT:MINIMUM
STANDARDS(EQUIP&FURN)
FC5-SC3-ALTERATIONS BUILDING 7

13 576 086

12 494 795

27 253 282

27 303 196

-

(49 914)

7 858 632

7 257 245

-

601 387

10 010 910

8 469 966

1 410 877

130 068

FC5-SC3-FURNITURE & EQUIPMENT

16 988 874

16 531 541

236 933

220 400

7 987 126

6 697 274

33 066

1 256 787

1 160 000

181 022

5 502

973 476

350 000

338 102

-

11 898

2 600 000

2 545 886

-

54 114

735 000

734 748

-

252

370 000

369 220

-

780

FC7A-SDS-NEW BUILD GA-RANKUWA
RESIDENCE
FC7A-SDS-NEW BUILD SOSH SOUTH
RESIDENCE
FC7A-SDS-REFURB GA-RANKUWA
RESIDENCE
FC7B-SDS-EXTENSION RESIDENCE

64 838 569

54 778 480

4 669 192

5 390 897

57 382 821

54 771 566

2 312 026

299 228

22 000 000

6 258 376

15 133 346

608 278

7 250 100

3 751 232

2 659 839

839 029

FC7B-SDS-RENEW & ALTERATIONS
RESIDENCE
FC8-HUM-NEW BUILD SOSH NORTH
CAMPUS
FC8-HUM-ENHANCE LANDSCAPE SOSH
NORTH
FC10-ECON-NEW AUDITORIUM GARANKUWA
FC10-ECON-NEW CLASSROOMS GARANKUWA
FC10-ICT-CONVERSION RESEARCH & PG
LAB
FC10-B&E-STRUCTURAL REPLACE
10,13,19,55
FC11-B&E-PROJECT MANAGEMENT

12 408 898

3 131 901

9 164 167

112 830

70 704 270

39 122 872

23 093 563

8 487 834

9 997 000

9 370 638

80 913 448

79 088 140

1 797 878

27 431

87 529 328

54 940 590

32 125 364

463 375

1 095 000

1 025 380

68 126

1 493

Allocation

Description
FC1-TEED-UPGRADE DISABILITY
ACCESS
FC1-SDS-UPGRADE DISABILITY ACCESS

FC5:TLWT:MINIMUM
STANDARDS(EQUIPM&FURN)
FC6-SCI2-REFURB SEISMOLOGY LAB
FC6-SCI2-PORT X-RAY SPECTROMETER
FC6-SCI2-ICB MASS SPECTROMETER
FC6-SCI2-ATOMIC ABSORB
SPECTROMETER
FC6-SCI2-PORT MICRO GC

6 100 000
4 000 000

IEF3-FPMC-INTEREST
TOTAL

721 912
523 293 257
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3 858 091
400 681 103

Committed
Expenditure
R'
1 757 280
1 011 495

-

Balance
R'
(51 950)
95 827
69 796

626 362

-

6 100 000

-

141 909

-

721 912

95 478 654

27 133 500
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IEF 4
Description
Deferred Maintenance
IEF MAINT: ARTS CAMPUS

R'
27 278 453

Actual
Expenditure
R'
15 625 175

Committed
Expenditure
R'
6 303 219

1 077 480

533 621

433 470

110 389

323 244

291 651

19 469

12 124

Allocation

IEF MAINT: ARCADIA CAMPUS

Balance
R'
5 350 060

IEF MAINT: BON ACCORD FARM

1 131 354

319 646

50 000

761 708

IEF MAINT: E-MALAHLENI CAMPUS

4 568 516

2 530 839

225 359

1 812 318

IEF MAINT: ES’KIA MPHAHLELE

1 077 480

237 837

762 000

77 643

IEF MAINT: GA-RANKUWA 1

9 178 652

4 732 591

3 356 657

1 089 404

IEF MAINT: MBOMBELA CAMPUS

873 312

693 192

-

180 120

IEF MAINT: POLOKWANE CAMPUS

614 164

596 994

-

17 170

IEF MAINT: PRETORIA CAMPUS

5 167 669

3 916 105

983 693

IEF MAINT: SOSH NORTH 1

1 427 661

1 183 001

149 771

94 890

IEF MAINT: SOSH SOUTH 1

1 838 921

589 700

322 800

926 421

70 413 330

13 005 813

10 303 035

47 104 482

IEF MAINT: TOPPIESHOEK

1 077 480

331 787

IEF MAINT: GA-RANKUWA 2

49 564 089

4 652 828

4 512 671

40 398 590

IEF MAINT: SOSH NORTH 2

12 822 014

4 828 923

5 540 796

2 452 295

IEF MAINT: SOSH SOUTH 2

6 680 377

3 084 168

249 568

3 346 641

269 370

108 107

New and Refurbishment

IEF MAINT: BUSINESS SCHOOL
INTEREST
TOTAL

11 614 531
109 306 314

28 630 987

-

267 871

745 693

-

161 263

-

11 614 531

16 606 254

64 069 072

IEF 5
Description

Allocation
R'

Actual
Expenditure
R'

Committed
Expenditure
R'

R'

IEF MAINT: ARTS CAMPUS

2 779 123

-

IEF MAINT: ARCADIA CAMPUS

2 961 341

-

IEF MAINT: E-MALAHLENI

1 100 000

-

-

1 100 000

IEF MAINT: GA-RANKUWA

2 497 692

-

-

2 497 692

IEF MAINT: MBOMBELA

2 196 541

-

-

2 196 541

614 468

-

IEF MAINT: POLOKWANE

88 944

2 779 123
2 872 397

338 567

275 900

628 400

5 077 525

21 350

5 515 535

IEF MAINT: PRETORIA

5 830 000

IEF MAINT: SOSH NORTH

5 536 885

-

IEF MAINT: SOSH SOUTH

3 916 037

-

-

3 916 037

IEF MAINT: UNIV PRIORITY PROJECTS

8 266 665

-

-

8 266 665

IEF5 - E-MALAHLENI CAMPUS
RESIDENCES

88 000 000

-

-

88 000 000

IEF5 - SOSHANGUVE RESIDENCES

33 000 000

INTEREST
TOTAL

7 210 981
163 909 733
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124 076

-

Balance

42 753
166 829

1 709 912
2 787 173

31 247 334
7 210 981
160 955 731
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2.

MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION
The Management of TUT was as follows during the year under review. See Table 38 below:
Table 38: Management structure of TUT in 2017
POSITION

STATUS

Vice-Chancellor and Principal

Prof LR van Staden

Substantive

Senior Deputy Vice-Chancellor (SDVC)

Dr RE Moraka

Acting

DVC: Teaching, Learning & Technology

Prof MS Mukhola

Substantive

DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research &
Innovation

Dr AE Nesamvuni

Acting until 30 September 2017

Dr Thandiswa Mgwebi

Substantive from October 2017

Dr RE Moraka

Substantive

Dr M Mushaathoni

Substantive

Chief Financial Officer

Mr SA Mahlalela

Substantive

Executive Director: Human Resources &
Transformation

Ms MR Mokuele

Substantive

Executive Director: Quality, Planning & Risk
Management and Chief Information Officer

Dr D Naidoo

Substantive

Executive Director: Institutional Support

Mr A Mashego

Acting contract ended in July
2017

Executive Director: Institutional Support

Mr N Zingitwa

Substantive from July 2017

Strategic Support Vice Chancellor’s Office

Prof M Hay

Contract

Executive Director: Strategic Operations

Mr T Bhengu

Resigned in July 2017

Senior Director: Strategic Operations

Dr MC Selepe

Acting from August 2017

Director: Corporate Affairs and Marketing

Ms B Watson

Substantive

DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research &
Innovation
DVC: Student Affairs & Extracurricular
Development
Registrar

3.

INCUMBENT

THE ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURES AND RESOURCES –
BOTH STAFF AND SYSTEMS
Various administrative units exist at TUT to carry out specific mandates as explained below:

3.1

Advancement and Partnerships Office (APO)
Reporting to the Vice-Chancellor, the role of the Advancement and Partnerships Office
(APO) is to engage stakeholders in order to foster positive community and business
relationships to promote long-term donor funding partnerships that will assist the
University in providing quality education and improve the lives of the students. APO thus
supports the financial well-being of the University by mobilising resources aimed at
increasing third-stream income in support of the core business of the University. This has
become more of a need in the current climate of fiscal challenges in higher education.
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The APO further provides advice, guidance and support to various departments within the
University that need funding for garnering financial support from individuals, business,
trusts, foundations, and government to advance the educational and other strategic
priorities of the University. It is also responsible for maintaining donor and alumni records
and rendering a service of donor research and stewards. The graphs below indicate the
amounts of money that were mobilised by the APO during the reporting period.
The Advancement and Partnership Office (APO) remained focussed on its mandate to
secure philanthropic grants, donations, and legacy gifts from our alumni, corporations and
other grant-making partners, locally and abroad to advance the goals of TUT. The APO
worked in collaboration with academic and non-academic colleagues throughout the
University to build enduring relationships with external constituencies and to secure
increased financial support towards strategic and flagship projects.
The APO is the official home of Alumni Relations, dedicated to the core mandate of
engaging alumni and friends to promote and position the University to attract additional
resources and funding towards our development projects, unique research and other niche
areas. During 2017, the Alumni Relations Office successfully engaged with alumni on four
occasions. Senior leadership and Council members were present to inform our alumni of
their role and the latest developments within the University.
Furthermore, APO fostered relationships with the community and business, which
promoted long-term strategic funding partnerships, assisting us in improving the quality of
education and the standard of living of those we serve. Through this, the unit bolsters the
University’s capacity to fulfil its mission of teaching and learning, research and community
engagement.
It is essential that we nurture our relationships and manage them in a manner that will
strengthen selfless, value-adding and mutually beneficial partnerships. Therefore, the
University again recognised their donors and stakeholders during the Annual Donor and
Stakeholder function.
For the period under review, the University received over R64 million from its donor
partners as compared to the R27 million it received in 2016. The tables below shows the
donations received from various sectors allocated to official institutional projects.
The tables 39 to 42, show the individual and other contributions towards the TUT Bursary
and Scholarship Fund to date. We are proud to mention and recognise our internal staff
and University leadership who remain committed to support this Fund.
To date, we raised a total amount of R4 176 346 towards the Fund and the first allocations
will be made in 2018.
Table 39: 2017 Donations per Sector
Project Category
Corporate
Embassy/Foreign Mission
Government Agency
Government
International Foundations & Trusts
Local Foundation/Trust

Amount (R)
14 784 075
1 085 038
37 180 170
3 427 866
1 817 356
6 274 690
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Project Category
NPO
SMME’s
Individual - Alumni
Individual - Other
Individual - University Leadership
Individual - University Staff
TOTAL

Amount (R)
72 500
13 160
5 000
16 419
83 700
150 825
64 910 801

Table 40: 2017 Donations per TUT Project Category
TUT Project Category
Community Development
General
Institutional Development
Research
Student financial support
TOTAL

Amount (R)
4 612 976
4 764 776
1 617 306
2 084 864
51 830 877
64 910 801

Table 41: 2017 Donations towards the TUT Bursary and Scholarship Fund
Project Category
Corporates
Individual – Alumni and other
Individual - University Leadership
Individual - University Staff
TOTAL

Amount (R)
277 000
16 419
83 700
150 825
527 944,

Table 42: Accumulative Donations Report – Bursary and Scholarship Fund
Project Category
Corporates
Government
Individuals (Alumni, University Staff and
Leadership, and other individuals)
Local Trust and Foundations
Internal transfers and contributions
TOTAL AMOUNT
3.2

Amount (R)
2 372 351
250 000
542 423
50 000
961 571
4 176 346

Business Development Unit (BDU)
The TUT EMC held a Strategic Planning Workshop on 13 to 15 September 2015, which
identified as one of the strategic priorities the following objective: “to increase and diversify
income streams”. This includes maximising income streams through the establishment of a
Business Development Unit and the development of strategies for increased third-stream
income and initiating an Institutional Capital Campaign. It was the decision of the EMC that
this strategic priority be driven from the Office of the Vice-Chancellor.
The TUT Business Development Unit (TUTBDU) was therefore established as a relatively
new entity which only commenced its duties on 1 February 2016 when the Head of the
entity assumed office.
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After the establishment of TUTBDU, it became clear that required a neutral private
business environment outside University processes to operate effectively and successfully.
The current University processes proved to be not aligned with day to day desired
environment in terms of delivering desired business outcomes efficiently. In order to
facilitate this process effectively, the new TUTBDU Steering Committee was established
and comprised of the following members:
MEMBERS
Prof LR Van Staden
Mr NM Motsatse
Dr RE Moraka
Mr T Manyoni
Dr EA Nesamvuni
Prof MS Mukhola
Mr SA Mahlalela
Mr MS Monyane

ENVIRONMENT
VC & Principal
Deputy Chairperson of Council
DVC: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development
Member of Council
Acting DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research and Innovation
DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology
Chief Financial Officer
TUTBDU Head

The mandate of the Steering Committee was to develop and advance an effective Business
Case to Council in terms of the establishment of a private company that will serve as the
TUT vehicle for third-stream income generation. The Steering Committee completed the
TUT BDU Business Case and Third Stream Income Policy which served at the TUT
Council. The TUT Business Case and Third Stream Income Policy were approved by the
Council in November 2017.
Consequent to the TUT Council approval of the Business Case, the Steering Committee
was then transformed into the TUTBDU Interim Board with the following Board of Directors:
Directors
Prof LR Van Staden
Mr NM Motsatse
Dr RE Moraka
Mr T Manyoni
Mrs MJ Ramataboe
Dr T Mgwebi
Prof MS Mukhola
Mr SA Mahlalela
Mr N Zingitwa
Mr MS Monyane

Environment
VC & Principal (Chairperson)
Deputy Chairperson of Council
DVC: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development
Member of Council
Member of Council
DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research and Innovation
DVC: Teaching, Learning and Technology
Chief Financial Officer
Executive Director: Institutional Support
TUTBDU Head

The TUTBDU Interim Board mandate ending in March 2018 is to establish a fully
operational TUT Enterprise Holdings (Pty) Ltd.
3.3

Corporate Affairs and Marketing (CA&M)
During the year under review, CA&M continued with the implementation of the
recommendations of the Integrated Marketing and Communication Strategy (2016 – 2019)
and a range of operations in marketing and communication in support of the strategy.
More details are provided below and include, among others, the:
• Launch of the Strategic Marketing Committee (SMC).
• Introduction of a weekly integrated planning meeting to discuss and plan all upcoming
marketing and communication activities.
• Creation of centralised emails for news and marketing.
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•
•
•
•

Launch of the central campaign theme of “People’s University”.
Establishment of partnerships with a number of media houses.
Initiating of functional reporting lines for Faculty Marketers and other communication
officers to the Director: CA&M.
Introduction of an annual Journalism Alumni event to draw journalists and editors who
studied at TUT closer to the brand.

Reputation and Brand Management: In general, the year was marked by relatively low
levels of activities deemed to be damaging to the University’s reputation and image.
There was exceptionally good media coverage of the autumn graduation ceremonies,
which saw TUT, for the first time, exceeding the 10 000 mark in the number of
qualifications awarded to successful graduates. The spring graduations, particularly the
honorary doctorates bestowed on Lilian Dube and Prof Joseph Karger-Kocsis, also
received excellent coverage across print, broadcast, and online media.
Some of the other issues that received good coverage included the awarding of the
Benjamin Phehla Bursary for the first time, as well as the SAAPAM breakfast seminar
focusing on State Capture: Myth or reality. A number of TUT academics contributed
significantly to positive coverage through expert opinion in areas such as tourism and as
political analysts.
However, an adverse incident during the men’s final of the Varsity Football marred the
period, causing in excess of R1,4 million in PR damage to the University. The ongoing
security strike by security workers as part of the #Outsourcingmustfall, as well as a
number of enquiries about the awarding of tenders for student accommodation in
Polokwane also resulted in negative publicity.
The Directorate continuously focused on generating positive publicity around the
University’s achievements and successes, issuing 152 press releases, 31 media alerts, 30
opinion pieces and responses to enquiries as they were received. The possible increases
in student fees in 2018 and the release of the Heher Report on fee free higher education
dominated media enquiries during October and November. The December 2017
announcement that Government would introduce “fully subsidised free higher education
and training for poor and working-class South Africans”, dominated media enquiries during
December and the first part of 2018.
The use of different spokespeople, fluent in African languages, continued during the year.
The website landing page was updated regularly with the top newsworthy articles.
The University partnered with Mail & Guardian and contracted an independent writer to
provide opinion pieces on a range of topics to keep the transformation dialogue
spearheaded by TUT active in the media space.
The integrated use of the official social media platforms continued during the period under
review, and likes and followers showed a steady growth during 2017. The official TUT
Facebook and Twitter platforms were updated daily with highlights, linking the exposure to
other communication platforms such as advertisements, press releases, articles in the
staff and student newsletters, the website, promotions and events. Facebook Live was
also introduced during the period under review, particularly during key official events such
as public lectures and the TUT Transformation Summit 2017, and served to expand
exposure significantly.
- 69 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
VICE-CHANCELLOR’S REPORT (continued)
TUT website: The redeveloped, scalable website was launched on 26 September 2017.
This “proudly TUT” project utilised only internal resources during the redevelopment
process, including staff from Corporate Affairs and Marketing, and ICT Services, and
students from Faculty of The Arts.
Events and promotions: The Directorate plays a vital role in coordinating and assisting
with corporate events. In the period under review, a number of high-level events were
hosted, including:
• The highly successful TUT Transformation Summit 2017, facilitated by the ViceChancellor’s Office in collaboration with Corporate Affairs and Marketing.
• Hosting of the First Famelab competition for upcoming young scientists.
• Parents Meetings at TUT campuses.
• Academic Excellence Awards.
• Vice-Chancellor’s Prestigious Seminar series.
• Autumn and Spring Graduation ceremonies.
• Living the Legacy of Nelson Mandela Public Lecture, with Mac Maharaj.
• VC’s first engagement with Journalism Alumni.
• Long Service Awards.
• Annual Game Stud Breeders Bursary Awards Ceremony.
• Professorial Inaugural Lectures.
• Regular on-campus promotions for internal and external stakeholders.
Advertisements: During the year under review, advertising predominantly focused on
recruitment, the accreditation of private accommodation, the Parents Meetings at TUT
campuses, and the proposed changes in higher education (HEQSF in partnership with
SATN).
Newsletters: Eight editions of the popular electronic student newsletter, Heita!, were
published during the period under review. eTUTor, the daily interactive electronic staff
newsletter, published 262 articles covering major developments, news and events during
the period under review.
Internal communication: A series of regular VC’s Communiqués, with a distinct style and
character, were published to ensure staff members remain updated on important issues
within the University.
Marketing material: The following brochures and publications were published:
• Flyers and posters for the various Parents Meetings at TUT campuses.
• Research Niche Areas.
• General Information Booklet.
• Grades Companion.
• INSIGHT into the Tshwane University of Technology.
• TUT Rated Researchers.
• TUT Transformation Summit programme.
• New corporate folders.
• Honorary doctorate commendation’s (Lilian Dube and Prof Joseph Karger-Kocsis).
• Standardised corporate presentations for EMC members.
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Information Services: Information Services represents the University’s front-line public
relations and provides a critical over-the-counter and Contact Centre services. During the
period under review, the Department disseminated 42 889 copies of the Prospectus,
59 404 General Information booklets, as well as 43 193 Grades Companions.
In addition, staff assisted with career guidance for prospective students by communicating
University rules and regulations, student policies and enrolment procedures, course
requirements, career advice and support, as well as calculating admission scores and
referrals.
During the period under review, the Department handled more than 119 000 general
enquiries, 65 478 email enquiries, as well as 1 894 SMS enquiries.
The Department hosts, on-request, campus visits for schools, which saw more than 5 000
learners experiencing focused and customised visits to the University’s campuses in the
year under review.
The Department also updated Electronic Notice Boards across campuses with important
dates and events for the 2017 academic year.
Mentorship programme: The Editor of Heita! and the Manager: Channels mentor
journalism interns on a yearly basis in order to grow our own timber. In 2017, two interns
participated in the weekly programme, during which a critical analysis and discussion of
news items published in the daily staff newsletter e-TUTor, as well as national and
international news took place. A report is also provided and a discussion facilitated on
statistics and trends on TUT’s and other social media sites.
3.4

Employee Relations
The role of the Employee Relations at TUT is to proactively establish and optimise positive
relationships between the University and staff and among all staff and to ensure a work
climate that inspires achievements of TUT’s strategic goals and objectives. It is the function
of Employee Relations to ensure effective mechanisms for communication and
participation; a safe and effective work environment; and commitment and motivation of all
staff. This entails:
• Promoting channels of labour-related communication at all levels between the
University and staff;
• Identifying and expanding common areas of interest between all staff;
• Anticipating and defusing conflict, wherever possible;
• Encouraging staff to articulate concerns and conflict and seek resolution of underlying
issues; and
• Providing channels for conflict resolution and development of mutual trust between the
University and its employees.
a. Bargaining Forum: One of the structures with which the University ensures peace in
the workplace is the Bargaining Forum. The existence of a Bargaining Forum has
improved relations between management, the labour unions, and staff members. The
Bargaining Forum had 14 successful meetings in 2017, i.e. 10 and 12 January,
8 February, 2 and 23 March, 26 April, 18 May, 22 June, 20 and 27 July, 17 August,
14 September, 16 and 20 November 2017.
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Some of the key issues discussed were:
• Training on Targeted Selection (training);
• Human Resources policies – e.g. Promotions, Leave, Performance Management
and Development, Staff Assistance, Awards Categories, Study Benefits;
• Review of Pension Funds;
• Filling of vacancies (promotional positions);
• Selling of leave days;
• Group life assurance;
• Standardisation of job profiles;
• Appointment of medical aid brokers;
• Conditional appointments;
• Insourcing of employees in outsourced services;
• Substantive positions of labour unions (NTEU);
• Income tax amendments;
• TUTBF Constitutional amendments;
• Fixed term contracts with external funding; and
• Negotiations on salaries and substantive issues.
b.

Collective Agreement: A Collective Agreement between the University and the
National Education and Allied Workers Union (NEHAWU) and The National Tertiary
Education Union (NTEU) on salaries and other substantive matters for 2017 - 2018
was signed on 19 January 2018.

c.

Training: Faculties of Humanities and ICT were trained on Fixed Term and Permanent
appointments. Training on the Disciplinary Code and Procedures was presented at
several departments within TUT.

d.

Disciplinary matters: The University continues to face a number of grievances and
disciplinary cases, some of which end up at the Commission for Conciliation, Mediation
and Arbitration (CCMA) as well as at the Labour Court. An analysis of these disputes
indicates lack of trust between management and employees, especially in the areas of
recruitment and selection. A process has been put in place to strengthen these areas
so as to reduce the soaring of grievance cases.

e.

Grievances: A total of 131 employees referred grievances to the Employee Relations
Department (ER) of which 100 were resolved and 31 still remained unresolved. Out of
the 131 grievances, 3 revolved around appointments (which the employees applied for
but were not the successful candidates). A total of 22 employees complained that they
were being victimised by their line managers and 2 employees were aggrieved
regarding their acting allowance. Only 12 employees had a dispute regarding their post
levels. 70 employees referred an equal job for equal pay dispute and 1 regarding
harassment. A total of 12 employees referred unfair labour practice disputes. 1 referred
a dispute that his contract was not renewed. 7 referred grievances for lack of
leadership. 1 employee was aggrieved regarding his salary.

f.

Disciplinary Hearing Cases: A total of 20 disciplinary matters were referred to ER of
which 13 were resolved and 7 still remained unresolved. From the 20 disciplinary
cases, only 1 employee was charged for gross negligence, 3 for harassment, 2 for
leaking question papers, 1 for absent from work, 1 for financial misconduct, and then 8
matters were referred for dishonesty/fraud, 3 for gross insubordination, and 1 for not
complying with TUT policies and procedures.
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3.5

g.

CCMA Cases: A total of 168 employees were referred CCMA disputes to ER of which
128 were resolved. A total of 4 disputes were referred to for interpretation and
application, 25 disputes were referred to the CCMA for unfair labour practice, 17 for
non-renewal of fixed-term contracts, 103 unfair dismissal disputes, 18 equal pay for
equal work disputes, and 1 salary dispute.

h.

Labour Court Cases: A total of 44 Labour Court cases were referred to ER of which 3
were finalised. Out of the 44 cases, 7 were for unfair discrimination, 3 for disputes
about retrenchment, 1 referred a unilateral change of terms and conditions case, 7
review applications, and 24 cases for breach of contract.

Finance
The Directorate is focused on the continuous improvement of policies and procedures.
During the year under review, specific attention was given to a wide range of policies,
especially those related to the area of supply chain management, signing authorities and
delegation. The Executive Management Committee, through the Finance Department,
keeps the financial sustainability as an area of focus every year. The EMC reports on the
sustainability of the institution to Council and relevant subcommittees of Council.
In 2017, the budgeted distributable income proportions for TUT were as indicated in Table
43 below.
Table 43: Budgeted distributable income proportions in 2017
Income Source
Government subsidy
Tuition fees
Other income
TOTAL

Income (R)
1 548 562 871
799 138 697
65 134 575
2 412 836 143

Proportion (%)
64%
33%
3%
100%

TUT’s Finance Directorate plays a crucial role in attending the Finance Executives Forum, a
forum convened by Universities South Africa (USAf). As such, all new policies relating to
financial reporting and related matters discussed at USAf have been engaged in at TUT.
The Expenditure Section has been working directly with various sections of the University
community to ensure adequate support in the execution of their operations and projects,
while at the same time ensuring that proper fiduciary controls are applied.
The Financial Control Section works with budget managers to ensure that funds are spent
according to the institutional priorities and are made available in a manner that supports
their business plans. A key function of the Financial Control Section is to ensure that
accounting records are accurate and that financial statements are properly compiled.
The Revenue Section ensures that the raising and collection of fees is adhered to and in
accordance with the National Credit Act. The collection of student debt is done sensitively,
yet firmly, as student fees are one of the major sources of income for the institution.
However, the Revenue Section also plays an important role in ensuring that students who
perform well academically receive financial assistance to pursue their qualifications.
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The Treasury Section ensures that creditors are paid in a timely manner so that the
University maintains a good credit rating and gets the maximum interest from its own cash
investments. This section also manages the insurance portfolio to ensure adequate
insurance cover and it manages business continuity carefully so that, should there be
disruption of operations, essential creditors and wages are still paid.
The section also oversees the allocation of private and corporate sponsors’ bursary
contributions to students who meet the awarding criteria either though their own selection
methods or through the selection methods of the Financial Aid section.
3.6

Information and Communication Technology (ICT)
This report provides a summary of the achievements of the ICT Services on key priority
activities for 2017. This ICT report outlines major issues raised in both the Strategic Risk
Register and the 2014-2018 Strategic Plan. The introduction of decentralised management
approach led to ICT Services introducing new requirements and review of its internal
processes and to make sure they were able to support the new decentralised management
approach.
In addition, the report provides a brief of the future plans in the short and long term. Table
44 outlines progress made in relation to ICT Services priorities.
Table 44: Key Performance Areas (ICT)

Planned Activity

Deadline
and time on
task

Target Performance
Indicator

Progress achieved to date

LAN Upgrade and
Cabling Refurbishment.
Wi-Fi access points to
be installed at Monitor,
Soshanguve North &
South, Tempo, Telkom,
Heidehof, Legae &
Kollegehof.

30/04/2017

Test and project sign-off Core switch upgraded
Network management tool
installed and functional

Telephone
Management System
(TMS) upgrade

30/4/2017

Test and project sign-off PhoneEx One Installed User
Training commenced
Customised reports to be
finalised

Implement a Managed
Print Service (MPS)
environment.

10/2017

Reduce printing cost
and implementation of
a Managed Print
Policy

Appointed the service
provider. MPS has been
implemented across the
University

Staff development: One of the practices of the ICT Services Directorate is to keep abreast
of developments in the area of ICT. As such, senior staff members attend workshops,
seminars, conferences and symposia.
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Future Plans:
• After hours support: There is an increasing demand to have ICT Services after hours.
• Training with regard to Windows 10 and SCCM: This will enable the ICT technical team
to assist with the migration to Windows 10.
• The acquisition of Aruba by HP: This acquisition has introduced compatibility issues
with regard to Aruba Access Point. The internal team is busy with an investigation on
how to integrate all Access Points.
• Wi-Fi Connectivity: There are still a number of areas that are not covered by Wi-Fi
network. A roll-out plan has been put in place. However, more funding will be required
to ensure that the plan is implemented.
• Technology refresh cycles: ICT Services currently does not have a window for planned
upgrades and maintenance. This poses a challenge within the ICT infrastructure when
it comes to implementing new changes.
• Approval and implementation of the Service Charter.
• Audit: ICT Services requires an end-to-end audit of our new project office. In terms of
process and document requirements.
In addition, the Directorate is currently developing a technology strategy as well as an
Enterprise Architecture that will guide how all IT investments will be implemented. Once this
is finalized, we might have to realign the ICT organisational structure and all IT processes.
There will be a comprehensive development plan to support this.
3.7

Quality Promotion
The mandate of the Directorate of Quality Promotion (DQP) is to ensure exceptional and
excellent practice at the University by fulfilling a quality promotion and quality assurance
function. The assurance function is executed through DQP’s oversight role on programme
approval and accreditation, programme reviews, audits, surveys, the office of the Student
Ombudsman, and the quality assurance of the University’s short learning programmes.
DQP promotes quality through information dissemination, capacity building and
consultation services. In addition, DQP’s mandate also serves to provide assurance to the
University stakeholders that there are effective and efficient controls to assure the quality of
academic and non-academic providing to enhance institutional effectiveness.
In line with its mandate, the DQP executed the following quality assurance and promotion
projects across the institution in 2017:
Programme approval and accreditation: The HEQSF project is one of the strategic
priority projects for TUT and DQP executed its oversight role satisfactorily in terms of output
for 2017. In fulfilling its quality assurance mandate, seventy five (75) PQM clearance
application forms were quality assured and submitted to DHET. TUT received outcomes for
fifty five (55) applications. Forty five (45) of the 55 were granted PQM clearance and ten
(10) were not approved by end of 2017, TUT was still awaiting PQM clearance outcomes
from DHET for twenty (20) applications.
DQP quality assured seventy four (74) HEQC accreditation forms for new programmes to
ensure compliance with the minimum accreditation criteria as set by the CHE. Sixty six (66)
of the 74 quality assured HEQC accreditation applications were submitted to the CHE for
accreditation.
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TUT received accreditation outcomes for seven (7) accreditation applications that were
submitted in 2016 and all 7 programmes were accredited, and 13 additional programmes
which were accredited with conditions were also accredited. DHET approved nineteen (19)
TUT programmes for funding and uploading on the HEQSF aligned PQM, which were part
of the applications that were submitted in 2016. By the end of 2017, fifty three (53)
qualifications were uploaded on the TUT HEQSF aligned PQM, and SAQA had registered
forty seven (47) TUT qualifications on the NQF.
DQP conducted two (2) capacity building sessions for the Faculty of Humanities on the
HEQC online accreditation to ensure that academics were enabled, through training, to
comply with the CHE accreditation criteria and to complete the accreditation applications
with relevant information.
Academic reviews and professional bodies’ accreditation: It is critical for the
University to ensure that professional programmes continue to meet the professional and
licensure requirements of the professional bodies. In preparing the programmes for the
external professional bodies accreditation, DQP conducted seven (7) site visits and
subsequently generated a total of ten (10) review reports for the following professional
programmes: Civil Engineering (N Dip & B Tech), Mechanical Engineering (N Dip & B
Tech), Electrical Engineering (N Dip & B Tech: Pretoria), Radiography (N Dip), Chemical
Engineering (N Dip & B Tech), Metallurgical Engineering (N Dip & B Tech), Mechatronic
Engineering (N Dip & B Tech), Industrial Engineering (Dip & B Tech), Building and
Construction Management (N Dip & B Tech) and Computer Systems Engineering (N Dip
& B Tech).
In addition, DQP conducted four (4) readiness reviews and generated four (4) readiness
reports for the following programmes: Bachelor of Environmental Health, Clinical
Technology (N Dip, B Tech, M & D Tech), Veterinary Technology (N Dip, B Tech, M & D
Tech) and the Bachelor of Architecture.
Surveys: Student surveys have become one of the most frequently used data source for
providing University management with intelligence on the student experiences of the
educational provisioning. In delivering to the DQP mandate on surveys, DQP administered
the 2017 First Year Initial Experience Survey (FYIES) across all campuses of TUT. The
findings of the FYIES were generated and presented at the following platforms: Student
orientation forum, Senate (October), Institutional Forum, Polokwane and the Mbombela
campuses. In addition, four articles from the campus FYIES reports (Arts, Arcadia,
Polokwane and Ga-Rankuwa) were published on e–TUTor. The comprehensive campus
reports will be published in 2018. The postgraduate satisfaction survey was also
conducted to ensure that Masters and Doctoral students were given an opportunity to give
their views regarding their experiences of postgraduate provisioning and support services.
The survey was a first for TUT and the results will be published in 2018.
Office of the Student Ombudsman: It is worth noting that the Office of the Student
Ombudsman has been effective in intervening in the lives of current and former TUT
students. The Office of the Student Ombudsman has adjudicated a total of fifty-five (55)
complaints from various environments within the University. All students’ complaints were
resolved with 58% in favour of the students and 42% against the students. Those that fell
outside the mandate of the Office of the Student Ombudsman were referred to the relevant
environments for resolution.

- 76 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
VICE-CHANCELLOR’S REPORT (continued)
Student quality literacy: The orientation of new first-year students was a success, where
DQP presented sessions on the student quality literacy and awareness about the Office of
the Student Ombudsman at the first-year student orientation sessions for the following
faculties and distant campus: Information and Communication Technology, Humanities,
Management Sciences (Marketing, Sports & Recreation, Tourism Management),
Engineering and the Built Environment, and students at the Polokwane Campus.
Quality Assurance of Short Learning programmes: DQP quality assures short-learning
programmes (SLPs) to ensure compliance with quality standards and relevant regulatory
frameworks and policies such as CHE and SAQA. In 2017, DQP quality assured nine (9)
new SLP applications and all were recommended for approval. In addition, three (3) SLPs
were submitted for re-approval and all three were also recommended for approval.
Quality Management System: A quality management system ensures that an organisation
or unit has a documented management system that is secured and organised to ensure
that policies, procedures, and relevant documents are developed, maintained, and regularly
improved. DQP successfully deployed the eQMS in the following EMC environments:
Human Resources and Transformation, Institutional Effectiveness and Technology,
Institutional Support, Registrar, and Student Affairs and Extra Curricular Development.
Participation in national sector organisations: DQP participates actively in the
following external agencies’ activities: Garmin, Higher Education Quality Committee
(HEQC), Quality Council for Trades and Occupations (QCTO), and South African
Technology Network (SATN) HEQSF National working group.
3.8

Safety and Health Environment (SHE)
Training: Eleven different SHE Training courses were presented in 2017. First Aid was the
only course presented by an external training provider. The remainder of the courses was
presented internally by the SHE Office and the TUT Fire Officer. In total, 657 persons
(Including 319 students) were trained in 2017.
Table 45: Courses presented in 2017
Course Name
First Aid Training (Level 1)
SHE Induction
ACTRAC (OHS Act Overview)
Personal Protective Equipment
HASREP (Health and Safety Rep)
ELECTRAC (Electrical Safety for Non-electricians)
HIRA (Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment)
CLAIMTRAC (Compensation Claims training)
NOISETRAC (Noise induced hearing loss training)
FIRETRAC (Fire Fighting training)
SUPERTRAC (Supervisor Safety training)
Basic Fire Fighting
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SHE Committees: Active SHE Committees are the cornerstone of an effective SHE
program in the institution; and meetings need to take place every second month, in line with
the SHE Policy. A total of 53 meetings, by 16 active SHE committees on all campuses, took
place in 2017. Some committees still struggle to meet the requirement of 1 meeting every
second month; and a SHE Committee register was therefore established in order to monitor
the frequency of meetings by the different SHE Committees on TUT premises. This SHE
Committee register is presented at the SHE Forum in order to check that the statutory
requirements for SHE Committees are met.
The SHE Forum met three times in 2017, on 16 March, 28 June, and 9 November. The
meeting of 4 August 2017 did not quorate due to a misunderstanding with the time for the
meeting.
SHE Incident Statistics: The Disabling Incident Frequency Rate (DIFR), Table 46, that
gives an indication of the relation between disabling injuries and the total hours worked by
staff members over a 12-month period, went up from 0.2 in December 2016 to 0.3 in
December 2017. This is because of an extra disabling injury recorded for 2017 compared to
2016.
A disabling injury is recorded when an injury causes a person to be off-duty for a day or
longer. 13 disabling injuries were recorded in 2017 as compared to the 12 disabling injuries
in 2016. The monthly disabling injury comparison is reflected in Table 47.
Slip/Trip and Fall (35%) and Struck By or Bump Against (27%) are the major causes of
accidents and contribute to the majority of the total injuries at TUT. The breakdown of minor
and disabling injuries is reflected in Table 48.
Table 46: Disabling Injury Frequency Rate (DIFR)
INJURIES
Month

Staff
Complement

Hours
Worked

TOTAL

Minor

Disable

JANUARY
FEBRUARY
MARCH
APRIL
MAY
JUNE
JULY
AUGUST
SEPTEMBER
OCTOBER
NOVEMBER
DECEMBER
TOTALS

4 404
4 863
4 724
4 653
5 055
5 144
5 137
5 441
5 512
5 557
5 756
5 318
61 564

757 488
836 436
812 528
800 316
869 460
884 768
883 564
935 852
948 064
955 804
990 032
914 696
10 589 008

3
3
3
0
3
0
4
1
3
4
2
0
26

1
1
0
0
1
0
3
1
2
2
2
0
13

2
2
3
0
2
0
1
0
1
2
0
0
13

LOST
TIME
(Hours)
32
96
384
0
96
0
32
0
64
184
0
0
888

DIFR
0.53
0.48
0.74
0
0.46
0
0.23
0
0.21
0.42
0
0
0.26

The Disabling Injury Frequency Rate is measured over a twelve-month period (DIFR =
Disabling injuries x 200 000 / Total hours worked).
The monthly disabling injury comparison is reflected in Table 47. From the breakdown of
the injury sources, as reflected in Table 48, it is clear that Slip/Trip and Fall (36%)
contribute to the majority of the total injuries at TUT.
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When one investigates the cause of the Slip/Trip and Fall incidents, it becomes clear that in
more than 90% of the cases, the incident was caused by unsafe behaviour on the part of
the employee and not because of unsafe working conditions.
Table 47: Disabling injuries per month for 2017 compared to 2016
Month
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
TOTAL

2016
2
2
0
1
2
2
1
0
1
0
1
0
12

2017
2
2
3
0
2
0
1
0
1
2
0
0
13

Table 48: Injury sources breakdown for January 2017 – December 2017
Immediate incident cause
Slip/Trip and Fall
Struck by object/Bump against
Object lifting/handling
Vehicle
Sharp object cut
Assault
Total

Minor
3
4
3
1
1
1
13

Disabling
6
3
2
1
0
1
13

Total
9
7
5
2
1
2
26

Safety inspections/audits: The SHE Office conducted various inspections and audits in
2017. The reports with recommendations were then forwarded to the relevant departments
for action. See Table 49 below for the SHE Audits conducted.
Table 49: SHE Audits conducted
Follow-up Audits
Cafeteria & Kiosk - Ga-Rankuwa

New Audits
Jewellery Department - Arts

New Auditorium Contractor - Ga-Rankuwa
Financial Aid - Ga-Rankuwa
Registration & Examination - Ga-Rankuwa
Technology Station in Chemicals - Ga-Rankuwa

Economics Department - Ga-Rankuwa
Printing Department - Arts
Technical Services - Ga-Rankuwa
Lecture Block, Library, Administration and
Kitchen - Mbombela
New Lecture Block Contractor - Ga-Rankuwa
Sport Facilities - Soshanguve and Pretoria
Department of Chemistry Offices - Pretoria
Biomedical Sciences - Arcadia
ASTRA Residence - Pretoria
Public Sector Finance - Ga-Rankuwa
HEDS Building 6 - Ga-Rankuwa

Audit & Accounting - Ga-Rankuwa
ICT Services - Ga-Rankuwa
eMalahleni Campus
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Follow-up Audits

New Audits
Ceramics Building 4 - Arts
Financial Aid Building 53 - Pretoria
Building 22 - Arts
Residence Extension - Ga-Rankuwa
CURA Building and Economics Department Ga-Rankuwa

General: The Annual Safety Health and Environment Campus Association of SA
(SHECASA) Conference was held at the Vaal University of Technology on 7 to
8 September 2017.
4.

THE ADEQUACY OF STAFFING LEVELS, PARTICULARLY IN CRITICAL AREAS
As was the case in the previous years, the University continues to experience difficulties in
attracting and retaining academics in scarce skills areas such as Science, Engineering and
Technology (SET). The Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) brought
some relief to South African Institutions by introducing the “Staffing South African’s
Universities’ Framework” (SAAUF). Phase 1 of this Framework involves the recruitment of
new academics as part of the “New Generation of Academics Programme (nGAP). Through
this programme, the DHET has allocated a number of nGAP scarce skills posts to
universities. In Phase 1 and 2, a total of nine (9) nGAPs staff were appointed. In 2017,
Phase 3 was initiated and three (3) nGAPs staff were appointed.
The University has, during 2017, filled the following senior Management positions both in
academic and administration:
• Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Postgraduate Studies, Research, Innovation and Engagement
• Deputy Vice Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extra Curricular Development
• Executive Dean: Faculty of Engineering and Built Environment
• Executive Dean: Faculty of Management Sciences
• Executive Dean: Faculty of Economics and Finance
• Executive Dean: Faculty of the Arts
• Executive Director: Institutional Support
• Executive Director: Institutional Effectiveness and Technology
• Senior Director: HEDS
• Registrar

5.

THE EXTENT TO WHICH EQUITY TARGETS IN THE WORKPLACE HAVE BEEN MET
In 2017, the total number of African staff members showed a slight increase (42 African
females, 163 African males) as compared to 2016. African males dominated most new
appointments, which is a different scenario as compared to the previous years. The figures
in Table 50 below indicate a decrease in the number of Coloured female employees due to
two resignations. There was no change in the number of both male and female Indian
employees. The White component indicates stability in the female component. However
there was a decrease in the number of White males as compared to the previous years. In
the year under review, foreign national appointments decreased slightly as compared to
2016.
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Table 50: Permanent staff profile by race and gender
Race
African

2016
Female
Male
1 087
1 059

2017

2016
Total
2 146

Female
1 129

Male
1 222

2017
Total
2 351

Coloured

30

10

40

28

12

40

Indian

38

26

64

38

26

64

White

469

297

766

469

282

751

Foreign Nationals

12

60

79

10

58

68

Grand Total

1 636

1 452

2 802

1 674

1 600

3 274

Percentage

52.98%

47.02%

51.13%

48.86%

The University is working on different strategies, such as promotions and other appropriate
approaches, which will assist the institution in addressing the under-representation of
women in the upward mobility of their careers at TUT. Progress was made at middle and
senior management level with the appointment of women as assistant deans/associate
professors, and full professors in the academic faculties.
The Directorate of Transformation, Employment Equity and Diversity (TEED) conducted
awareness sessions about Employment Equity Act, No. 55 of 1998 for insourced
employees across TUT campuses. Intensive consultation with different environments and
other stakeholders as prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, No 55 of 1998 as
amended, were held across the University. In partnership with Corporate Affairs and
Marketing division, TEED organised Sports Day events and fun walk in recognition and
commemoration of the World AIDS Day, 16 Days of Activism against Women and Children
Abuse, Disability Day.
The development of the TUT Employment Equity Plan for 2018-2022 is underway.
6.

STUDENT SERVICES AND EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
The executive responsibility for student affairs and extracurricular development activities
lies with the Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development
(SAED). The current Deputy Vice-Chancellor: SAED is also acting Senior Deputy ViceChancellor, which assists in the integration of student affairs with Institutional Support and
strives to be an innovative contributor to a vibrant University community through the holistic
development of students to enable them to succeed academically as responsible catalysts
of social re-engineering. The Division is actively engaged in promoting student success and
supporting students’ well-being. SAED carries out its mandate through the following five
Directorates:
• Accommodation, Residence Life and Catering
• Extracurricular Development
• Health and Wellness
• Sport and Recreation
• Student Governance and Leadership Development
This report summarises the SAED Directorate’s performance and activities in 2017. It
highlights the achievements and challenges with regards to meeting the key SAED
Strategic Plan 2014 - 2019 in keeping with TUT Strategic Plan 2014 – 2019, and the 2017
Strategic Priorities.
- 81 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
31 DECEMBER 2017
VICE-CHANCELLOR’S REPORT (continued)
6.1

Accommodation, Residence Life and Catering (ARLC)
a.

Achievements: The Directorate of Accommodation, Residence Life and Catering
(ARLC) main achievements in 2017 were:
•

Implementation of accommodation accreditation system: A policy, together with its
associated processes were developed and approved for private student
accommodation. By the end of September 2017, the policy was already being
implemented. The success of policy implementation led to an increase in the
number of accredited private spaces for student accommodation.

•

Provision of accommodation: The total number of beds available for ARLC
managed accommodation in 2017 was 12 436 of which 7 996 spaces were in
TUT-owned residences, and 4 440 spaces in leased residences. On average, a
95% occupation rate was maintained throughout the year.

•

Policy development: The review and approval, in consultation with student
leadership, of all the major rules and documents in the residence environment was
conducted. The governance documents and rules reviewed were: Policy for the
Placement of Undergraduate Students in TUT Accommodation; Residence rules;
Disciplinary measures in residences, and residence governance structures

•

Resolution and progress on the immediate future of catering services: Due to the
uncertainty regarding the insourcing of catering services, the contract with the
current service providers had to be extended. The Council has however approved
by the end of 2017 that catering services should not be insourced for another three
years and a tendering process for new catering services was initiated. Significant
changes to the previous catering model and specification criteria for evaluation
were introduced for the new catering services provisioning. The most important of
these was the elimination of the payment of a management fee that should result
in a cost saving of approximately R14 million. This paid-off and it is expected that
quality-catering services, at affordable prices will be rendered to students from the
second semester of 2018.
The vibrant residence life continued with standard central programmes such as:
residence committee elections and training; mentorship programme; orientation
programme for first-year students; and green campus projects. A variety of extracurricular and developmental activities were also conducted in each residence or
per campus

b.

Challenges: The following are some of the challenges experienced by ARLC:
•

Organisational structure and human resource capacity: Despite the 2016 review
process and increase in the number of residences to be managed, the ARLC
organisational structure inadequacy on human resources capacity is still a
challenge. In addition, the implementation of the accreditation system introduced
an entire new operational function with no additional human resource capacity.
The lack of provision for adequate human resources is viewed as detrimental to
the organisational effectiveness and efficiency.
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6.2

•

Disruptions caused by major residence renovation projects: Major renovations are
the responsibility of Building and Estates but these projects were delayed for long
periods. This resulted in the residence life being severely disrupted. Renewed
efforts are being made to improve planning and communication to address this
challenge in future.

•

Residence security: Another long-standing challenge is the lack of security access
control in residences. Though it is the responsibility of Campus Protection Services
to control access to residences, however, it was only effectively done in the case
of a few residences. The lack of access control results in unauthorised residents
and other unacceptable behaviour that is difficult for residence advisors to control.
An associated challenge is the safety and security of residence advisors and their
families residing in or close to the residences especially during protests.

Extracurricular Development (DED)
The main purpose of the Directorate of Extracurricular Development (DED) is to provide
extracurricular development programmes and out of class curriculum aimed at holistic
development of students.
In spite of all the challenges that the Directorate has experienced since the beginning of the
year 2017, it managed to roll-out all the programmes which culminated in the TUT choir
participating in SATICA choral singing competitions that were held at Durban University of
Technology on 4-10 July 2017. Table 51 below provides a summary of the achievements in
the DED:
Table 51: Achievements for 2017
Achievements

6.3

Impact

Future plans in this regard

1. Choir performance in
Meloding ya Tshwane
Competitions and Intercampus
Choral Festival

Moral of students boosted

More support by DVC:SAED
and EMC to be given

2. Ga-Rankuwa Campus Choir
obtaining position one in the
SATICA silver category
3. Soshanguve Campus Choir
obtaining position two in the
SATICA gold category
4. Establishment of the Arcadia
Campus office

Moral of students boosted and
encouraged to work harder

Build stronger choir(s) who
will be competitive

Moral of students boosted and
encouraged to work harder

Build stronger choir(s) who
will be competitive

Service to more students who
were previously excluded/
neglected

Better staff component to
manage the office

Health and Wellness (H&W)
The Directorate embarked on various health and wellness campaigns, programmes,
activities, and seminars across all campuses. A total of 2 883 students participated in the
various programmes. Table 52 below provides a list of activities as well as the participation
rate.
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Table 52: Student participation in health and wellness programmes
Activity/Programme
#Lets Choose Life Campaign
Alcohol and Substance Abuse Campaign
First Things First Campaign
Healthy Lifestyle Campaign
Men's Health Awareness Presentation
Relationship Workshop
TB and Related Illnesses Campaign
Grand Total

Sum of Total number of
students participated:
99
604
154
460
1 325
41
200
2 883

•

HIV Awareness Campaigns, Programmes, Activities and Seminars
The Directorate embarked on various campaigns, programmes, activities, and
seminars on HIV awareness. About 2 734 students participated in various activities
such as “first-things first”, Candle light memorial and HIV testing and awareness
campaigns.

•

Community Outreach Programmes
A total of 750 students participated in the school outreach programme. Each learning
site identified a school that they partnered with to execute outreach activities for the
Mandela Day commemoration in July 2017.

•

Peer Education Programme
The Peer Education online application was activated for peer educators for the 2017
intake. A total of 942 online applications were received across all six learning sites. A
total number of 240 peer educators were enrolled and actively participated in the peer
education programmes for 2017. Of the 240 students that enrolled, 234 received
certificates of participation in October/November 2017. A total of 1 732 participated in
more than ten (10) planned peer education activities.
A Peer Education Academia Day was held in October 2017. The event was attended
by 200 students and staff members.

6.4

Sport and Recreation
TUT Sport continued to contribute positively by producing athletes, administrators and
technical staff in the year 2017. The uncontested appointment of the Director of Sport and
Recreation as the Chief Finance and Marketing Officer in the new NEC of USSA was a sign
that TUT Sport is on the right track.
The University football teams won the USSA National Football Championship. Softball,
Hockey, and Supa-Pool also won the USSA National championships. Majority of other
codes were awarded silver and bronze medals at the USSA Winter Games. Majority of TUT
athletes and staff represented TUT at the World Student games in Chinese, Taipei from
16 to 31 August 2017, led by the Director of Sport and Recreation after he was appointed
as the Deputy Chef de Mission. The athletes also won continental FASU Cross Country
competition which demonstrated that our programmes are of international standards.
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The Women’s football team continued with their exceptional performance as they were
crowned 2017 Varsity Football champions for the 4th consecutive year; and their star player,
Refiloe Jane, was appointed as the Captain of the Banyana Banyana squad, which was
crowned as 2017 COSAFA champions.
TUT Sport continues to afford the University the PR value through participation in different
competitions. The Memorandum of Understanding with Mamelodi Sundowns Soccer Club
also contributed towards the enhancement of the University image. Some of the most
notable achievements of the year 2017 are shown in table 53 below.
Table 53: Activities and achievements in 2017
ACTIVITIES

OUTCOME/IMPACT

TUT won the Men and Women
USSA Football championship
TUT won USSA Softball,
Hockey, and Supa-Pool
championships
Mbombela Campus Golf Day

Improving the University image

Hosted Minister of Arts and
Culture in celebration of 100
years of OR Tambo
Election of Director of Sport
and Recreation in the USSA
NEC
Appointment of 30
CATHSSETA interns
Athletics and Football players
selected to represent SA at the
Universiade 2017 in Taipei
MoU with Mamelodi Sundowns

Improving the University image

Appointment of the Director of
Sport and Recreation as the
Deputy Chef de Mission for the
World Student Games in Taipei
Gold medal at the FASU Cross
country in Rwanda
Female Rugby players invited
for the Springbok Senior
women rugby training camp
Vodacom sponsorship –
Mbombela Campus
TUT Football, Netball and
Athletics outreach programmes
USSA Winter Tournaments –
TUT hosted Karate, Softball
and Supa-Pool. Tournaments
won by TUT: = Football men
and women, Hockey C section,
Supa-Pool women, Table
Tennis men and women, and
Softball men

RECOMMENDATIONS
AND FUTURE PLANS

Improving the University image

3rd stream income

Improving the University image

Continued hosting of
annual event to raise funds

Collaborate with ExtraCurricular Directorate

Exposure of students to industry
International exposure

Improving the University image
and access to quality football
players
Improving the University image

International exposure for TUT
Improving the University image
and access to quality Rugby
players
Save costs through strategic
partnership
Improving the University image
Market the institution through
success in sport
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ACTIVITIES

OUTCOME/IMPACT

TUT Aerobics participated at
the World Championship in
Leiden, Netherlands
Varsity Football – TUT
Women’s Football team won
the competition for the 4th
consecutive year
Table Tennis made history
when they won the 2017 Super
League
National Recreation Day hosted
at the Soshanguve Campus
South

International exposure for our
athletes

Prestige Sport Awards – first
time a Differently Abled
Sportsman and –women was
announced

Compliance with the federations,
positive publicity

RECOMMENDATIONS
AND FUTURE PLANS

Improving the University image
and producing a well-rounded
graduates
Improving the University image

Improving University image,
advocate a healthy lifestyle for
both staff and students

To collaborate with the
Department of Sport and
Recreation department in
2018
Maintain high quality
standards

Table 54: Challenges experienced
CHALLENGES
Unauthorised usage of
sport facilities
Fleet for sport
Pitch invasion during
Varsity Football matches

6.5

SOLUTIONS
Fence erected, but the challenges
persist
Sport must be prioritised with the
new allocation for University vehicles
Supporters education, improved
security, and SRC Sport Officer
incorporated into the LOC

RECOMMENDATIONS
AND FUTURE PLANS

SLA with Institutional
Support
University should consider
incorporating violent
behaviour on the
Orientation Programme

Student Governance and Leadership Development (SGLD)
The Directorate of SGLD held a Strategic Planning Review Workshop to review progress
on the implementation of the SGLD Strategic Plan for 2014 - 2019 and to develop a
Business Plan for 2017. A Business Plan has been developed for 2017 and new strategic
priorities have been set.
Main Achievements: The highlights of the Directorate’s achievements included the
following:
a. Enhancement of International endeavours goal has been given serious attention by
sending students and staff members to attend international conferences. Two (2) staff
members and three (3) SRC members attend the NASPA Conference in US Texas,
San Antonio; two staff members and two SRC members attended the ACPA Student
Global Summit in the US Ohio; and one staff member and four SRC members attended
the NACA Summer Leadership Programme in the US California – Disney World. The
Directorate also managed to send seven (7) SRC members and three (3) staff
members to the United Nations University Symposium which was held in Bangkok,
Thailand.
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b. The Polokwane Campus Intensive Learning Campaign is a community engagement
project which is aimed at helping local Grade 10-12 learners to tackle difficult school
subjects through the provision of extra classes. This year, the project managed to
recruit and assist 193 leaners in the following subjects; Mathematics, Mathematical
Literacy, Physical Sciences, Life Sciences, Accounting, Business Studies, and
Economics across the FET Phase. The project utilises 8 professional teachers from the
local high schools together with the TUT students to manage the project. The
Directorate has resolved to expand this project to other campuses from 2018.
c. Recognition and Registration of structures was successfully managed by the
Directorate working with the SRC with at least 205 student structures registered. The
funding of the student structures adequately done at R3 000 per student structure and
R4 500 per seat for the student structures who have seats in the Campus SRC’s. The
budget for the funding of student structures has been set at R829 000. The Directorate
has also managed to formally organise the student structures’ advisors into a forum and
took them through induction.
Table 55: Student Structures in 2017
Soshanguve
15

GaRankuwa
9

Advocacy

4

Religious

Pretoria

Mbombela

eMalahleni

Polokwane

Total

13

7

5

4

48

2

12

3

3

3

24

29

13

30

2

3

6

80

Talent

8

3

5

6

0

1

23

Academic

6

2

9

0

1

1

18

Total

62

29

69

18

12

15

205

Political

Disbursement of Leadership Bursaries: 35 beneficiaries obtained R5 000 grants
each from the R200 000 allocated to the Directorate by the Financial Aid Directorate.
Top Junior Leadership Development Programme (TJLDP): is functioning properly
in all six learning sites and 9 campuses in the University. This year, the Directorate
managed to recruit at least 1 008 participants who commit to the programme for the
duration of 1 year and receive certificates at the end of the programme.
The TUT motivational series tour: conducted in all 6 campuses which features a
prominent motivational speaker, Hector “The motivator” and popular gospel star Zaza
Masike was a great success. The event was attended by at least 3 000 students. The
students gained a lot of inspiration.
The Soshanguve Campus Winter Shoe Project 2017: was completed successfully
with 112 pairs of school shoes being donated to two different institutions namely:
Madidi Primary School: eighty six pairs (86) and Ya Bana Orphanage: thirty six pairs
(36).
The first Student Leadership Summit: was held on the on 20 May 2017 which was
attended by more than 400 student leaders. The event was a success with minor
glitches. A follow up session is planned in the second semester.
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The Student Representative Council (SRC): is functioning properly at both campus
and institutional levels. The Campus SRC’s have managed and are all still in good
standing despite minor changes that came as a result of various developments which
included resignations, expulsions, and recall, and replacements.
The Campus SRC’s together with the Directorate managed to establish the SRC sub
structures which include amongst others: all Sports Councils, Student Faculty
Councils, Political Desks, Religious Desks, and Campus Student Parliaments.
Management of the Students Representative Council (SRC): The Student
Representative Council (SRC) is functioning properly at both campus and institutional
levels. The Campus SRC’s have managed are all still in good standing despite minor
changes that came as a result of various developments which included resignations,
expulsions, recall, and replacements.
The Campus SRC’s together with the Directorate managed to establish the SRC sub
structures, which include amongst others, the All Sports Councils, Student Faculty
Councils, Political Desks, Religious Desks, and Campus Student Parliaments. At least
23 members of the SRC received their qualifications in the 2017 graduation
ceremonies.
The Directorate continues to monitor the academic success of the SRC members and
refers students at risk to the Department of Student Development and Support.
The TUT Class Rep Training Programme: progressed well in all the 7 faculties in the
University. This year, the Directorate and the Campus SRC’s managed to facilitate the
elections of 884 class reps. The students were trained in order to ensure that they
execute the duties properly.
Staff development: Staff development and staff training is viewed as an important
aspect of the work of the Directorate, and it is a requirement for staff to stay informed
and engaged in terms of work, evaluations, research and conferences. Thirteen
events, including workshops, conferences (local & international), courses and
empowerment sessions were attended by staff members.
The Directorate thrives to ensure that it keeps up with well-established Student Affairs
standards which include Council for the Advancement of Standards in Higher Education
(CAS).
The Directorate is registered with Adventure Recreation Association (ARA) for all its
outdoor recreation and training initiatives. All the certificates of the Directorates are quality
assured by the TUT Certification Department. The use of the updated competencies as
adopted by ACPA and NASPA.
On 8 and 9 June 2017, all the staff in the Directorate attended a workshop on General
Assessment concepts and practices based on the CAS. This is part of an effort to improve
quality in the delivery of services in the Directorate.
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7.

ACADEMIC AND SERVICE RELATIONSHIPS WITH THE COMMUNITY
This section of the report focuses on community engagement activities across all TUT
environments, particularly faculties. Community engagement is a key priority for the
University in its thrust to empower surrounding communities through education, talent
development, and an array of opportunities aimed at fostering social inclusion.
In this section, a sample of some of the community engagement projects are discussed.

7.1

TUT Community Farmers Projects in North West and Gauteng Province: the project
provides agricultural management mentorship in small scale for emerging farmers in the
following agricultural streams: vegetables, poultry, piggery feedlot, women, disability and
youth projects. Work Integrated Learning: Students were very delighted and keen to form
their co-operatives, more especially when they saw the support from TUT, Department of
Agriculture and Rural Development.

7.2

Community Based Primary Health Care: This service entails the provision of primary
health care services by the Department of Nursing to the community of Soshanguve
extension 12, 13, 14; and informal settlements in the area. Provision of various services to
8 475 clients was the highlight of the year. These services include lifestyle disease clinic:
chronic management of hypertension and diabetes mellitus, provision of nurse-initiated
management of antiretroviral treatment, family health clinic: vaccination of children and
family planning; and addressing men’s health needs.
Furthermore, preventative oncology care was provided. The project handled over 32 000
patient consultations and had more than 8 000 registered patients since its
implementation. TUT’s students from the Adelaide Tambo Nursing School conducted their
work integrated learning experience through this project.
A research study conducted by Tshwane University of Technology indicated that taxi
drivers’ occupational risk factors, physical health and well-being are a cause for concern,
more so because taxis account for 65% of public transport in this country. The
recommendations of the report led to inter alia, the extension of the TUT mobile clinic
services to the Dairy Mall Taxi Rank (formerly known as Bosman Taxi Rank) at Bosman
Station on Friday, 13 October 2017.
The City of Tshwane’s MMC for Roads and Transport, Cllr Sheila Lynn Senkubuge, in
partnership with the Tshwane Taxi Industry, unveiled the mobile clinic services at the Dairy
Mall Taxi Rank, which included the Gauteng Department of Health, Vision Masters
Optometry, and the Tshwane University of Technology’s Adelaide Tambo School of
Nursing Sciences. These stakeholders reached consensus on modalities for implementing
the recommendations from the study.

7.3

Edakeni Muthi Futhi Trust: This small community project in rural KZN produces medicinal
plant material and will improve their production of specific plant species. There is an
existing MoU in place to assist the community (through research outputs) with cultivation
technologies, and three (3) M Tech students will graduate from this collaboration.

7.4

The TUT Radiography community: Students and staff have given their support in 2017 to
the “Lions Club” at Steve Biko Hospital Children’s Project. This charity organisation is
aiming to provide educational accessories and gifts to paediatric patients, in order to make
their hospital stay more comfortable under difficult conditions.
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The Radiography students spent time on 27 October 2017 at Steve Biko Hospital to assist
and to hand over the toys to the little ones. TUT Radiography community donated R7 500
to this project and assisted the organisation to obtain the necessary educational
accessories.
7.5

The Veterinary Technology programme collaborated with Loreto Convent School
(Pretoria Central) and Ratshepo High School (Hammanskraal). The two (2) schools were
visited by the fourth year students, who engaged with the learners and gave them an
opportunity to experience the usage of microscopes and other relevant instruments first
hand.
The initiative educated learners on different topics covered in their Agricultural Science
and/or Life Science curriculum, and enhanced their understanding of difficult concepts and
techniques used in the veterinary and life science fields. The learners were exposed to the
mobile laboratory to see the application of their school science subjects in the relevant
industry.

7.6

SAASTA-DST National Science Week (NSW), 7-8 August 2017: About fifty six (56)
Grade 11 and 12 learners from fifteen (15) high schools around Pretoria were invited by
TUT to attend the Science Week. Staff, a postgraduate student, and an educator from Dr S
Mutsuenyane High School were invited to give a public lecture about the challenges faced
by science educators. High school learners in collaboration with TUT students participated
in activities such as building a science jigsaw puzzle and the weakest link. Field trips were
undertaken by first-year students to the Roodeplaat Dam Laboratory whilst the third-year
students visited the SCI-BONO exhibition.

7.7

The Ndumo Nature Conservation Community Project – 2000: Embracing the spirit of
Ubuntu, the Department of Nature Conservation joined hands with the Ezemvelo KZN
Wildlife to train the surrounding communities, especially the youth, about the importance of
conservation and their co-existence with nature in order to become self-sustainable. TUT
students gained experience in their field of study, community development, and in
conservation related research. The project offers 15 environmental education programmes
in twenty (20) schools. This project is financially supported by the generous donor funding
of HCI Foundation. The project is currently educating all grade three, seven and eight
learners in all the 20 schools i.e. a total of 2 500 learners. The project is working in two
local municipalities i.e. Jozini and the Umhlabuyalingana which are located in tribal
authorities’ land.
The Environmental Education (EE) centre area is on the tribal land, even though comanaged by Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife and TUT. The tribal authorities in the area are also
exposed to environmental sessions at the EE centre, as they have to make ‘greener’
decisions pertaining to the community’s environmental impact. The project has presented
ten (10) educational sessions at the schools and has celebrated six (6) special days/weeks
during the year i.e. Water Week, World Environmental Week, Rhino Day, Harbour Week,
Clean Up Week and Marine Week.
Researchers from the Department of Crop Sciences recently established a transfer of
technology programme jointly with the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development,
to disseminate and implement the outcome of the research findings of SARChI research
chair research programme on Phytochemical food network to improve the nutritional quality
of food. In addition, the aim of this programme is to educate the small-scale subsistence
farmers to become successful commercial farmers.
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The broad objective of this programme is to improve the income and the livelihoods of the
farmers by transferring the technologies on production, cost-effective technical knowledge
on getting the product ready for marketing, and postharvest loss reduction especially for the
farmers involved in the production of traditional vegetables.
7.8

National Agriculture Rural Youth Coop Project (NASRYSEC): From May 2016 to June
2017, the NARYSEC Project was conducted in collaboration with the Department of Rural
Development in North West Province, Waterberg TVET College, and Prempie Solutions.
The project was designed to capacitate rural youth with basic vocational skills in different
fields of agriculture (animal production, landscaping, mixed farming and agriculture
equipment’s and repairs). Learners from the community were capacitated with necessary
skills to become employed in the sector and also to initiate their own businesses.

7.9

Community Fire-fighting Cart: The design and construction of the cart continued
throughout 2017 and the first five units were completed. Field trials have been completed
and the production and distribution of the fire-fighting carts will contribute significantly to the
making of fire-breaks, and to the quick reaction by community members for fire
suppression. To aid poor rural communities in water security and fire protection
involvement in design and development of equipment to aid in conservation actions.

7.10 Academic Partner Institution of the Boys2Men Project: TUT is the exclusive Academic
Partner Institution of the Boys2Men Project, providing career and study guidance. We are
partnering with the Moving Ahead Development Agency (MADA). The understanding is that
the candidates would enrol in their chosen field of engineering at the University post-matric.
7.11 The Technology Station in Electronics (TSE), Technology Station in Chemicals (TSC)
and Institute for Advance Tooling (IAT) have each secured R1.6 million from the
Department Science and Technology, through the Technology Innovation Agency for 2017
and 2018 as part of community engagement projects in various communities in the
Mpumalanga, North West, Gauteng and Free State Provinces. The project involves skills
development in the identified communities.
7.12 Information Community Engagement Project (ICEP) is a project for undergraduate
students, where they engineer software solutions (with the help and training of industry
experts in the latest engineering techniques) to assist SMMEs around Soshanguve. The
aim of this programme is to educate the small scale-subsistence farmers to become
successful commercial farmers.
The broad objective of this programme is to improve the income and the livelihoods of the
farmers by transferring the technologies on production, cost-effective technical knowledge
on getting the product ready for marketing, and postharvest loss reduction, especially for
the farmers involved in the production of traditional vegetables.
7.13 TUT Early Childhood Development Programme: The Faculty of Humanities, through its
School of Educational Studies, offers training to community individuals for becoming day
care mothers. Over 300 day care mothers have been trained to date. The Faculty
established a Centre of Excellence in Early Childhood Development, which will elevate its
training and provide an opportunity to individuals to enrol for the formal programmes after
attending the Community Capacity Building and other short learning programmes.
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1.

COMPOSITION OF THE SENATE
In terms of the Tshwane University of Technology Statute, the Senate consists of –
a) the Vice-Chancellor, who is the Chairperson;
b) all Deputy Vice-Chancellors;
c) the Registrar, as Secretary to Senate;
d) the Executive Deans;
e) all full Professors of the University;
f) two Heads of Department per faculty;
g) two non-professorial academic employees per faculty;
h) the Head of Research Directorate;
i) the Executive Director of Institutional Effectiveness and Technology;
j) the Campus Rectors;
k) two representatives of the Institutional SRC, elected by the Institutional SRC;
l) one member of the campus SRC per campus elected, by the campus SRC;
m) two non-academic employees, elected by the non-academic employees;
n) one member of the Council who is not an employee or student of the University,
designated by the Council;
o) one member of the Convocation designated by the Convocation;
p) all Assistant Deans; and
q) such additional members as approved by the Senate on the recommendation of the
Executive Committee of Senate.
The Executive Committee of Senate consists of –
a) the Vice-Chancellor, who is the Chairperson;
b) the Deputy Vice-Chancellors;
c) the Registrar, as Secretary of Senate;
d) the Executive Deans; and
e) such other members as the Senate may determine, provided that the majority of the
members must be academic employees.

2.

ACADEMIC STRUCTURE
The academic structure of the Tshwane University of Technology, on 31 December 2017,
was as follows:
Chairperson of the Senate: (Prof LR van Staden)
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Teaching, Learning and Technology: (Prof S Mukhola)
Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Postgraduate Studies, Research and Innovation: (Dr T
Mgwebi)
Faculty of The Arts (Executive Dean: Prof M Sirayi)
• Department of Performing Arts
• Department of Drama and Film
• Department of Entertainment Technology
• Department of Fashion Design and Technology
• Department of Fine and Applied Arts
• Department of Visual Communication
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Faculty of Economics and Finance (Executive Dean: Prof R Rugimbana)
• Department of Accounting
• Department of Economics
• Department of Auditing
• Department of Managerial Accounting and Finance
• Department of Public Sector Finance
Faculty of Engineering and the Built Environment (Executive Dean: Prof B van Wyk)
• Department of Architecture
• Department of Building Sciences
• Department of Chemical, Metallurgical and Materials Engineering
• Department of Civil Engineering
• Department of Geomatics
• Department of Industrial Engineering
• Department of Mechanical Engineering, Mechatronics and Industrial Design
• Department of Electrical Engineering
Faculty of Humanities (Executive Dean: Prof E Coetzee)
• Department of Applied Languages
• Department of Journalism
• Department of Law
• Department of Public Management
• Department of Integrated Communication
• Department of Safety and Security Management
• School of Education
Faculty of Information and Communication Technology (Executive Dean: Prof MI
Mphahlele)
• Department of Informatics
• Department of Computer Systems Engineering
• Department of Computer Science
• Department of Information Technology
• ICT First Years’ and Foundation Unit
Faculty of Management Sciences (Executive Dean: Dr AE Nesamvuni)
• Business School
• Department of Management and Entrepreneurship
• Department of Office Management and Technology
• Department of Operations Management
• Department of People Management and Development
• Department of Hospitality Management
• Department of Marketing, Logistics and Sport Management
• Department of Tourism Management
Faculty of Science (Executive Dean: Prof P Ngobeni)
• Adelaide Tambo School of Nursing Science
• Department of Animal Sciences
• Department of Biomedical Sciences
• Department of Biotechnology and Food Technology
• Department of Chemistry
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
3.

Department of Physics
Department of Crop Sciences
Department of Environmental Health
Department of Environmental, Water and Earth Sciences
Department of Horticulture
Department of Mathematics and Statistics
Department of Nature Conservation
Department of Sport, Rehabilitation and Dental Sciences
Department of Pharmaceutical Sciences

MEETINGS OF SENATE
The Senate constituted in accordance with the Institutional Statute and functioned
effectively. The Senate convened four ordinary meetings during 2017. A special meeting to
deal with annual reports from the Teaching and Learning environment, including Higher
Education Development and Support, took place on 9 October 2017.

4.

ENROLMENT
Continuous engagements with key role players, including recognised student leaders,
assisted in ensuring that potential challenges were proactively identified and resolved. The
Admissions and Registration Committee and role player meetings were also held to do the
following:
• Identify potential admission and registration challenges and take appropriate decisions.
• Monitor functionality and quality of the admissions and registration processes and
make recommendations regarding process improvement.
• Ensure effective communication between the different stakeholders.
• Ensure coordination of the admission and registration functions across the University.
The Institutional Management Committee also met on a regular basis to resolve issues that
had to be addressed at that level of management.

4.1

Late applications 2017
Though most of the qualifications were already full when the University closed in December
2016, spaces became available after the official publication of the Grade 12 final results.
After the Grade 12 final results were official published, the Admissions Office analysed the
results and removed, from the list of accepted students, those prospective students who
were originally accepted but failed to maintain the level of performance required for them to
register for the qualifications of their choice. This process included working through the
waiting list compiled before the University closed in December 2016, as well as the list of
applicants who were originally rejected but had since improved their results. This was done
in order to ensure that all spaces were filled.
In view of the expected large number of prospective students who would walk onto various
campuses of the TUT to apply for admission in January 2017, a no walk-ins campaign was
promoted throughout the fourth quarter of the 2016 academic year. A late application
enquiry system was used as the main late application functionality during the 2017 January
late application period. The TUT Call Centre was extended and the extended Call Centre
was utilised specifically for late application telephone enquiries.
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Successful late applicants were requested to only report to their respective campuses on
the day of registration, or even better, make use of the online registration facility and
register online from outside TUT.
A functionality for online checking of application status, viewing, and printing of application
feedback letters was available for applicants to check and verify their admission status
during the 2017 January late application period. Experienced application and admission
staff members were deployed to the different campuses of the Tshwane University of
Technology to attend to enquiries where human intervention was required. This assisted in
ensuring that problems were dealt with and finalised at campus level without having to be
referred to the Central Admissions Office.
4.2

Registration 2017
The official 2017 first-semester registration period was from 18 January to 10 February
2017. The closing date for late registration was 17 February 2017. The normal secondsemester registration commenced on 17 July and ended on 4 August 2017. The secondsemester late registration closing date was 11 August 2017.
All the Tshwane University of Technology students were urged to register online before
they came to the University to avoid standing in long queues. Even though all the students
were urged to register online before coming to the University, in view of the Gap Grant
application process, more students registered online at the different campuses of the
University as compared to the previous academic year. To accommodate such students,
computer labs at all campuses were arranged so that they could be used by students for
online registration.
Students who came to register online at the University computer labs were expected to
register in accordance with the University registration schedule. The registration schedule is
drawn up with the purpose of limiting and controlling the number of students who report for
registration at the different campuses per day. The registration schedule provided for a
maximum of 4 500 students to report for registration per day. Once-off registration was
implemented across the University; a system through which students were able to register
for both first- and second-semester subjects at the beginning of the year.
All students who qualified for Gap Grant funding were considered in accordance with the
DHET guidelines. Students with arrear payments had to meet certain criteria to qualify for
special arrangements; such as academic achievement, previous payment record, and proof
of financial position or that of their sponsor. Extreme care was exercised to avoid increasing
institutional debt where the prospect of academic success and debt recovery seemed
remote. All students who excelled academically were assisted in order for them to continue
with their studies. It is imperative to indicate that the University always strived to limit the
accumulation of financial liabilities on the side of the students by advising them to avoid
falling into a debt trap.

5.

CERTIFICATION
The first of the 38 planned graduation ceremonies took place at the Soshanguve Campus
on Tuesday, 18 April 2017. The last 2017 ceremony was held at the Pretoria Campus on
Friday, 20 October 2017. During the 2017 graduation ceremonies, the Tshwane University
of Technology received approximately 56 040 guests, including graduating candidates.
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All candidates who complied with all the requirements for the issuing of their respective
qualifications were invited to come and graduate regardless of whether they were owing the
University or not. However, certificates of candidates whose accounts were in arrears were
withheld and were only issued after settlement of the outstanding balance.
Positive feedback was received from both internal and external stakeholders regarding the
excellent manner in which the 2017 graduation ceremonies were conducted. Suffice to say
that the 2017 graduation ceremonies were, in general, fairly conducted.
Paragraph 76 of the Institutional Statute authorises the University to confer an honorary
degree in any faculty on any person who has rendered distinguished service in the
advancement of any branch of learning or technology, or upon any person the University
deems worthy of obtaining such a degree. In accordance with this paragraph, two honorary
degrees were conferred upon Dr L Dube and Prof J Karger-Kocsis.
5.1

2017 Graduation statistics
Table 56: Graduation Statistics for 2017

Undergrad
Diplomas

General 1st
B Degrees

Prof B
Degrees

Postgrad
Diplomas

Honours

Masters

Doctoral

32

-

612

460

-

-

-

36

14

1 154

-

363

626

288

-

-

-

2

-

1 279

22

59

765

696

-

-

-

26

6

1 574

THE ARTS

-

-

338

153

-

-

-

7

-

498

HUMANITIES

-

74

1 398

581

498

-

149

18

10

2 728

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION

-

-

385

130

-

-

-

27

-

542

-

Faculty

TOTAL

Undergrad
Certificates

Post Graduate

Degrees

Under Graduate

April/May 2017
ENG. AND THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT
ECONOMICS & FINANCE
SCIENCE

MANAGEMENT SCIENCES

-

-

1 612

735

-

54

496

5 736

3 043

498

ENG. AND THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT

2

-

509

275

-

ECONOMICS & FINANCE

-

158

274

212

-

SCIENCE

3

12

144

232

21

THE ARTS

-

-

38

55

-

HUMANITIES

-

13

412

255

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION

-

-

380

MANAGEMENT SCIENCES

-

-

210

Total

5

183

59

679

Total
October 2017

TOTAL FOR 2017 (April/May and October)
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-

39

6

2 392

149

155

36

10 167

-

-

16

10

812

-

-

2

1

647

-

34

8

454

-

-

1

2

96

99

2

24

16

7

828

168

-

-

-

32

1

581

161

-

-

-

48

6

425

1 967

1 358

120

2

24

149

35

3 843

7 703

4 401

618

2

187

300

55

14 757
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5.2

Identification of graduating candidates
The identification of candidates who would possibly qualify to graduate started before the
end of the 2016 academic year. The identification of candidates was accomplished by using
the following:
• Applications received from students
• Academic staff informing the Certification Management Office of possible completing
students
• ITS finalist identification list
• List of Senate approved M Tech and D Tech graduation candidates.
Certificates were printed by an official security printing company. All certificates were
printed and delivered in time for Certification Management staff members to finalise
preparations before the first graduation ceremony i.e. 18 April 2017. A total of 14 757
certificates were printed. Certificates of candidates who graduated in absentia were posted
to those candidates who requested that their certificates be mailed to them. The bulk of the
certificates of candidates who graduated in absentia were collected after the graduation
ceremonies from the Certification Management Office.

5.3

Graduation venues
Candidates graduated at the campuses where they studied, except for the Polokwane
Campus candidates as well as candidates from Economics and Finance, The Arts, and
Science faculties. The graduation ceremony for the candidates of the Faculty of Economics
and Finance was held at the Soshanguve South Campus due to the lack of a suitable
venue at the Ga-Rankuwa Campus. Candidates from the Science and The Arts faculties
graduated at the Pretoria West Campus (TB Hall). The graduation ceremonies for the
Polokwane Campus were conducted at the Polokwane Town Hall (Jack Botes).

5.4

Chancellor’s medal
The Chancellor’s medals for outstanding academic achievement were awarded to the
following candidates:
Table 57: Academic achievement awards

Economics and
Finance –
Ga-Rankuwa Campus
Engineering and the
Built Environment –
Pretoria Campus
Humanities –
Soshanguve Campus

Thapelo

Lebese

Student
No.
214411296

Werner
Ewald

Robinson

214105950

Male

Akou Kate
Pheebee
Karelle

Okoue

212062812

Female

Information and
Communication
Technology –
Soshanguve Campus

Sihle

Gawuzela

213445073

Male

Management Sciences
– eMalahleni Campus

Thabiso
Seun

Zitha

214435519

Male

Faculty

Name/s

Surname
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Gender

Qualification

Date

Male

National Diploma:
Internal Auditing

18 April

National Diploma:
Engineering:
Mechanical
Baccalaureus
Technologiae:
Public Relations
Management
National Diploma:
Information
Technology:
Technical
Applications
National Diploma:
Human Resources
Management

9 May

20 April

24 April

19 May
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1.

INTRODUCTION
The report highlights the work of the Institutional Forum (IF) during the period under review.
The IF at Tshwane University of Technology (TUT) remains in good standing and is able to
fulfil its mandate of playing an advisory role to Council as stated in the Higher Education
Act and the University Statute.
The IF held 5 meetings, 4 ordinary meetings, and 1 special meeting, which were held on
the 3 March, 2 June, 19 June, 18 August, and 20 November. The attendance of IF
members during the year under review was good; and the IF managed to reach the
required quorum in all its meeting.
The IF, informed by its mandate, considered many issues and accordingly formulated and
gave advice to the University Council. The highlights of IF’s advice to Council included the
following:
a. TUT relations with the State of Israel, Israeli institutions and organisations.
b. Position of the Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular
Development - IF members unanimously supported the recommendation of the
Selection Committee on the appointment of Dr RE Moraka as Deputy Vice-Chancellor:
Student Affairs and Extracurricular Development.
c. Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Postgraduate, Research, Innovation and Engagements - IF
members unanimously supported the recommendation of the Selection Committee on
the appointment of Dr T Mgwebi as Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Postgraduate, Research,
Innovation and Engagements.
d. Appointment of Vice-Chancellor: The IF members recommended the appointment of
Prof LR van Staden as the Vice-Chancellor of the Tshwane University of Technology.

2.

MEMBERSHIP
The membership of IF is composed of 29 members from various constituencies comprised
of representatives from Management, Council, Senate, Convocation, the Student
Representative Council, the Student Services Council, Organised Labour, support staff,
academic staff, and a representative from the Transformation, Employment Equity and
Diversity Directorate. Below is a list of full members of the IF as at 31 December 2017:
Table 58: Membership of the Institutional Forum
CONSTITUENCY

NAME

Chairperson
Council

Mr G Xaba
Mr N Motsatse
Prof J Grobbelaar
Prof M Sirayi
Prof E Coetzee
Prof MS Mukhola
Mr T Bhengu (resigned)
Ms MJ Mokobane
Mr MH Vilakazi
Dr W Tshamano
Dr S Dockrat

Senate
Management
Convocation
Student Services Council
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CONSTITUENCY

NAME

Central Student Representative Council

Ms L Molepo
Mr T Mahlangu
Ms S Mathonsi
Dr H Kabir (Resigned)
Dr R Mukonza
Ms MA Masethe
Dr E Pule (Resigned)
Dr J Malange
Ms M Khotsa
Mr E Moganedi
Mr T Mnisi
Ms G Tshabalala
Mr P Hlatshwayo
Mr MP Maraba (Resigned)
Mr K Tladi
Mr G Xaba (Chairperson)
Dr Y Senne (Deputy Chairperson)
Mr J Moeketsi
Vacant

Academic Staff

Non-academic Staff

Transformation, Employment Equity and Diversity
NEHAWU
NTEU

3.

SUMMARY OF THE ISSUES DISCUSSED IN THE IF MEETINGS HELD IN 2017

3.1

Meeting: 3 March 2017
This was an ordinary meeting which considered the following:
•
•
•
•

3.2

Principles guiding the Future Positioning of Distant Campuses and moving towards a
TUT relations with the State of Israel, Israeli institutions and organisations.
Call for submissions by the Naming and Renaming Committee.
Review of the Transformation Plan and its new targets.
Transformation in Academic Leadership.

Meeting: 2 June 2017
This was an ordinary meeting which considered the following:
•
•
•
•

3.3

Update on the Transformation Summit.
An update on the Finances of the University.
The IF Report to Council: Feedback from the Task Team.
Attendance of the meetings of the Institutional Forum.

Meeting: 19 June 2017
This was a special meeting which considered the following:
•
•

The appointment of the Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Postgraduate, Research, Innovation
and Engagements.
The appointment of the Deputy Vice-Chancellor: Student Affairs and Extracurricular
Development.
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1.

BACKGROUND
The University has adopted a proactive system of risk management which consist of a
policy and framework. This policy document provides guidance to management on
managing risk in a holistic, integrated manner. A strategic risk assessment is conducted
annually to ensure that the risk profile of the institution reflects all the key risks that have a
potential to impact strategic objectives negatively, while at the same time taking advantage
of any opportunities related to these objectives. This system causes the risks to be
managed in a co-ordinated structured manner across the institution and promotes the
achievement of strategic goal-oriented outcomes. The university is in the process of
capacitating the Risk Unit to ensure that the Policy and Framework are applied across the
operational activities of the institution in the new financial year.

2.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1

Council
The TUT Council is ultimately accountable for the oversight of enterprise risk governance
within the University. The Council is supported by the Audit and Risk Committee of Council.

2.2

Audit and Risk Committee of Council
The Audit and Risk Committee of Council was established in 2013, to assist the Council in
executing its responsibilities. This Committee is responsible for the oversight of the
corporate governance requirements of risk management and the monitoring of risk
management activities as reported on a quarterly basis by Management, supported by the
Chief Risk Officer.

2.3

The Chief Risk Officer
The Chief Risk Officer has the responsibility to co-ordinate the ERM activities within the
University, through the engagement with the Executive Management Committee (EMC) and
the University community.

2.4

Executive Management Committee
The Executive Management Committee of TUT is responsible for embedding and
monitoring activities of Risk Management into their respective environments. Each
executive member is responsible for ensuring that risk management is integrated in the
daily activities of their unit and cascaded down to all the operational levels.

3.

PROGRESS MADE
In 2017, the University identified and assessed the strategic risk profile and the following
risks were included in the Strategic Risk Register:
Risk #1 - Financial sustainability of the Institution.
Risk #2 - Poor quality. teaching, learning and research.
Risk #3 - Poor Governance and unsupportive culture.
Risk #4 - Exposure to Fraud & Corruption.
Risk #5 - Inability to manage our reputation.
Risk #6 - Inability to safeguard and ensure adequate and effective usage of Property, Plant
and Equipment.
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Risk #7 - Business Continuity.
Risk #8 - Non-compliance to Health and Safety related Legislation.
Furthermore, the University has developed the Risk Appetite and Tolerance statement,
which is expected to provide parameters within which risk can be pursued and set
thresholds beyond the University can venture. Council has approved this tool which is
expected to guide management on the amount of risk that the University can pursue in
setting goals, in accomplishing objectives, in policy development, and in making decisions,
all these within the bounds determined by it.
The University management have subsequently developed Risk Mitigation Action Plans
which are being implemented and monitored to ensure risks are managed in a structured
manner. The office of the Chief Risk Officer has also embarked on Risk Management
Awareness training to the University community which is expected to improve the risk
maturity level of the institution from the current ad hoc level to a managed level in the next
period.
4.

OTHER RISK MANAGEMENT FACTORS
In its 2017 South African Risk Report, the Institute of Risk Management South Africa
“(IRMSA)” the risk of “Education and Skills Development” has moved from number four (4)
of its Top 10 South African Country Level Risks to number 10 of its South African Industry
Level Risks. This shows a great improvement in our industry, and encourages institutions of
higher learning to make a concerted effort to manage risk in a structured, and systematic
manner, as this will significantly enhance achievement of National Skills Development
objectives.
In view of the above, the University continues to integrate its assurance functions through a
Combined Assurance Forum. This Forum seeks to ensure that Management is empowered
to provide the level of assurance required of them as the sponsors of risk. The Out-sourced
internal audit function is providing the required training and technology transfer. The Risk
Management Coordinator works collaboratively with directorates and divisions to enable
holistic reporting on risk management. Roles within the combined assurance are defined as
follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The EMC for providing leadership in the management of Risk and the internal control
environment
The Risk Management Champions – for ensuring the embedment of risk within
faculties/departments/divisions/directorates etc.
The SHE Manager – for the purpose of Employees Health and Safety Risks.
The Deputy Registrar – for the purpose of TUT Compliance Risks.
The Director: Information and Technology – for the purpose of Business Continuity
Management and Technology Risk.
The Treasurer – for the purpose of insurance and the insurance claims.
The Combined Assurance Forum – for insuring the integration of assurance function
and subsequent reporting to Council and to the University Stakeholders (this is an
infant project but the concept has been completed).
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1.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) submits its report for 2017 in terms of the
Regulations for Reporting by Public Higher Education Institutions, Government Notice No.
37726 (9 June 2014). The ARC is accountable to the University Council for the
performance of its duties. The ARC oversight role is to ensure that TUT’s assets are
safeguarded, that the University maintains adequate accounting records, and develops and
maintains an effective system of internal control and risk management.
The ARC oversees the implementation of effective risk and internal control management
across the institution. The Committee periodically assesses the risk profile of the institution
and reviews Management reports in conjunction with Internal Audit Reports on a routine
basis in order to advise Management and Council on appropriate risk management
strategies as well appropriate action to strengthen the internal control environment. The
ARC also recommends external auditors to Council, approves the Audit fees and engages
with external auditors in order to obtain assurance that the Annual Financial Statements are
fairly presented in accordance with DHET Reporting Regulations.
The ARC enjoys unrestricted access to the Chairperson of Council (who is not a member of
the Audit Committee), the Vice-Chancellor, the Chief Financial Officer, The Chief Audit
Executive and the internal and external auditors.

2.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
The composition of the Committee is as follows:
Chairperson
Ms MJ Ramataboe

External Member of Council

Deputy Chairperson
Mr SAB Ngobeni

Independent Expert

Members
Ms L Nare
Prof J Grobbelaar
Dr RE Moraka
Prof TL Nedambale
Mr JT Chiloane
Prof LR van Staden

External Member of Council
External Member of Council
Internal Member of Council
Internal Member of Council
Chair: ICTGC
Vice-Chancellor and Principal

Independent Experts
Ms MT Ramuedzisi
Dr P Masegare

2.1

Internal Auditors

SizweNtsalubaGobodo

External Auditors

PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Meetings held during the period under review
Four ordinary meetings of the Audit and Risk Committee and two special meetings were
held in 2017.
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Table 59: Attendance of meetings in 2017
DATES OF MEETINGS
23-02-2017

01-06-2017

17-08-2017

02-11-2017

03-11-2017

10-11-2017

% PER
MEMBER

x
Prior to
Membership

x

x

x

x

x

100%

x

x

L Nare (Ms)

A

A

x

x

A

A

33%

JI Grobbelaar (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

LR van Staden (Prof)

x

x

x

x

x

x

100%

JT Chiloane (Mr)

x

A

x

x

A

x

67%

ER Moraka (Dr)

x

x

A

x

x

x

83%

x

x

x

x

A

A

67%

x
Prior to
Membership

x

A

x

x

x

83%

x

x

x

x

x

100%

MEMBERS

Full members
M Ramataboe (Ms)
TL Nedambale (Prof)

100%

Membership Expired

Independent Experts
TR Ramuedzisi (Ms)
SAB Ngobeni (Mr)
P Masegare (Dr)
x – Present
A – Apology

3.

REPORTING FOR THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW

4.1

Expertise of the Finance Function
The ARC is satisfied with the expertise of the Finance Section and with the Chief Financial
Officer who is a Chartered Accountant and Head of the Division.

4.2

Reports to Council
The ARC submits quarterly reports to the Council on its statutory duties as well as functions
assigned to it by Council.
The ARC interrogates reports submitted by Executive Management, Internal Audit, External
Audit (Financial and ICT), Risk Management as well as ad hoc reports commissioned by it
and those submitted by Executive Management on issues that fall within its mandate and
terms of reference.

4.3

Independence of External Auditors
The ARC is satisfied with the independence of the external auditor,
PriceWaterhouseCoopers, as well as with the documentation and reports emanating
therefrom.

4.4

Financial Statements and Accounting Practices
The ARC reviews annual financial statements, including quarterly management accounting
reports, and has comfort that accounting practices conform to the Regulations for Reporting
Framework prescribed for Public Higher Education Institutions.
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1.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
The normal operational management structures were maintained up to and including the
Finance Committee. The latter prepares proposals for submission to the Executive
Management Committee, which in turn makes recommendations to the Finance Committee
of Council for approval by the Council.

2.

BUDGET PLANNING AND CONTROL PROCESS
The budgetary function of the institution is monitored by the Finance Committee as a
subcommittee of the Executive Management Committee (EMC) of the University. The Chief
Financial Officer chaired this Committee in 2017.
The Finance Committee meets once a month to evaluate budget performance and to
advise the EMC on strategic and corporate financial issues of the University. In addition, a
special Budget Task Team comprising of the Chief Financial Officer, Executive Director
(Human Resources & Transformation), Executive Director (Institutional Effectiveness and
Technology) and other Finance Committee members was established to oversee the
budget 2017 process.
The functions and responsibilities of the Finance Committee are as follows:
• To develop financial control measures, and maintain the financial policies.
• To advise the EMC through formulated substantiated proposals on all financial matters.
• To ensure fiduciary governance and financial control.
• To develop and monitor the:
- Financial plan
- Main budget
- Operational budget
• To facilitate the improvement in operational results of the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
• To facilitate the improvement in the financial health of the Statement of Financial
Position.
• To translate the Strategic Plan for TUT into financial terms.
• To develop a three-year financial rolling plan as contained in the Financial Growth
Strategy for 2014 - 2019.
• To draft the annual budget according to the goals and objectives for the year.
• To continuously evaluate the operational results and determine corrective action.
• To co-opt specialists and advisors if and when necessary.
• To appoint task teams for special assignments.
The University subscribes to the going-concern concept, which, in essence, means that
sufficient financial resources should be generated through operational activities to ensure
that all operational commitments are met and sustainable growth is achieved.
Operational budgets are therefore drawn up in a transparent and consultative manner, with
a view to meeting predetermined strategic goals. These are funded from cash resources.
Capital loans are concluded only for the funding of building projects and infrastructure
improvements based on viability studies. No capital loans were secured for the 2017
Financial Year.
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The Directorate of Strategic Management Support assisted in the execution of the budget
process, applying financial information to a Resource Allocation Model (RAM), which is
linked to:
• the funding framework of the Department of Higher Education and Training; and
• the benchmarks indicated in the Merger Guidelines.
The RAM was used as a benchmark and guideline to assist the budgeting process by
indicating what total amounts should be allocated to the various expenditure categories,
according to the University Strategic Plan.
The budgeting process consisted of the following steps:
a) Computation of revenue by the Directorate of Strategic Management Support and the
Finance Directorate.
b) Allocation of remuneration of staff based on the calculations computed by the Human
Resource Department.
c) Allocation of leave pre-funding, medical pre-funding, and retirement fund guarantees as
computed by Finance.
d) Allocation of the finance cost expenditure as computed by the Treasurer in conjunction
with the Chief Financial Officer.
e) Allocation of corporate accounts expenditure as requested by the respective Executive
Directors.
f) Allocation of provision for strategic funds based on the recommendation of the Finance
Committee.
g) Allocation of capital expenditure based on the recommendation of the Finance
Committee.
h) Once the above revenue and expenditure had been provided for, the balance available
was allocated for operational costs.
The Finance Committee matched the top-down RAM process (resources) with the zerobase bottom-up process (needs) with the goal to draw up a balanced budget. Monthly
year-to-date reports with reviewed budget forecasts were submitted to the Finance
Committee and the EMC.
3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

Accounting policies
The regulations for annual reporting by higher education institutions issued by the
Department of Higher Education and Training in terms of the Higher Education Act required
that all institutions report their financial information in a standardised format as from 2003.
During 2017 there was no change in the accounting policies of the University.

3.2

Statement of Financial Position
Table 60: Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Asset category
Land
Buildings

2017
Net book value
R’000
27 117
444 787
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Asset category
Elevators
Central air-conditioning
Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment and software
Vehicles

2017
Net book value
R’000
3 448
1 493
321 426
128 814
13 701
940 786

2016
Net book value
R’000
3 628
2 015
327 762
136 332
12 424
983 023

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write-off the cost of each asset to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. Library items, museum pieces, art
collections, and fixed assets whose cost is less than R2 000 per item are fully depreciated
in the year of acquisition.
The movement in the net book value comprised the following:
•
Additions of R47 million.
•
Depreciation of R74,5 million.
The majority of additions to fixed assets were furniture and equipment worth R26,7 million,
computer equipment worth R16,9 million, and vehicles worth R3,4 million. Additions to
furniture and equipment and computer equipment consisted of a high volume of
transactions with a low value. Furniture and equipment and computer equipment were
funded using both unrestricted funds and restricted funds. The majority of the disposals
related to equipment, computer equipment and software.
Expenditure relating to the Infrastructure Efficiency Funding (IEF) Grants received from the
Department of Higher Education and Training to the value of R133,1 million (2016:
R78,1 million) was capitalised and offset under Property, Plant and Equipment, as this
related to capital expenditure.
3.2.1 Investment properties
Investment properties are defined as property held by the owner to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both, rather than for use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business.
Investment properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. There were no
additions for investment properties, and depreciation amounted to R0,4 million for the
current year. The net book value of investment properties was R11,4 million.
3.2.2 Non-current investments
Non-current investments consist of available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity
investments. Both are disclosed at market value.
Available-for-sale investments consisting of unlisted investments amounted to R330,4
million.
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the University’s management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. These investments amounted to R115,6 million.
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The University has an Investment Committee that oversees the investments and makes
recommendations to the EMC and Finance Committee of Council.
3.2.3 Current investments
Held-to-maturity investments under current assets are those with maturities less than
12 months from the statement of financial position date. These investments amounted to
R681,7 million. Current investments comprises of funding from restricted and unrestricted
funds.
3.2.4 Accounts receivable
Doubtful debt provision
The doubtful debt provision amounted to R118,9 million on 31 December 2017 (2016:
R139,1 million), namely 31% (2016: 39%) of student debts were effectively provided for.
Student debts
Of the R386,8 million student debts outstanding at the end of 2017 (2016: R352,1 million),
R36,1 million was received in cash during the subsequent registration period in 2018.
It must be noted that included in the R386,8 million is an amount of R46,4 million that
relates to non-current student debtors. This R46,4 million relates to loans granted by the
University similar to NSFAS loans and is reflected at fair value.
The non-current loan receivable was fair valued using a five year period which is the
earliest time to receive the cash for the loan repayment and 9.25% interest based on prime
rate. The loans will be recovered after the students graduate and are employed.
Other receivables
Other receivables comprised mainly of funds to the amount of R29,2 million due from the
National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS).
3.2.5 Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing debt comprised mainly borrowings from banking institutions to the value of
R15,1 million. The amount repayable within one year in respect of those loans is R3 million.
The post-employment benefit obligations concerned were in respect of post-retirement
health-care obligations worth R575,9 million (2016: R540,9 million). The total liability
increased by 6% since the last valuation. The main reasons for this increase are:
The average in-service member liability has increased by 9% since the last valuation due
to the following factors:
• an increase in the average age which means members are closer to retirement (less
discounting) and less likely to leave before retirement;
• an increase in the average future employer contribution; and
• an increase in the average past service.
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These impacts were partially offset by an increase in the net discount rate.
The total in-service member liability has increased by 3% due to the above, partially
offset by a decrease in the number of members.
The average in-service non-member liability has increased by 68% primarily because they
are now assumed to be on Discovery KeyCare Plus’s highest income band at
retirement (previously, without salary information, they were assumed to be on the
second highest income band at retirement). Furthermore, the reasons listed above for
the increase in the average in-service member liability also apply here.
The total in-service non-member liability has increased by 53% due to the above,
partially offset by a decrease in the number of non-members.
The average continuation member liability has increased by 4% due to an increase in the
average employer contribution. This impact was partially offset by a slight decrease in the
proportion of members with spouses receiving the subsidy, an increase in the net
discount rate and an increase in the average age.
The total continuation member liability has increased by 6% due to the above, combined
with an increase in the number of members.
The other post-employment benefit obligations concerned were in respect of pension fund
guarantees worth R92,6 million (2016: R66,8 million). This liability has increased by 38%
since the last valuation. The main reason for the increased liability is:
• In the previous valuation, salaries were projected to retirement age less one year for
the value of the defined benefits. The reason for projecting the salary to one year less
than the retirement age was to make some allowance for the averaging of
pensionable salary in the two years before retirement. In the current valuation model,
actuaries projected salaries to retirement age, and allowed for a two-year salary
averaging factor to apply.
Annual actuarial valuations were performed in order to recognise movements in these
liabilities.
The above non-current liabilities are reflected in more detail in note 16, 17, and 18 of the
annual financial statements.
3.2.6 Current liabilities
Current liabilities consisted mainly of trade and other payables amounting to R307,7 million,
provision for accrued leave amounting to R154,5 million, and the accrual for long service
award amounting to R29,4 million.
TUT continues to pay its trade and other payables in line with its policy on a month by
month basis.
Actuarial valuations were performed in order to recognise movements in the long service
award liability.
The majority of the trade and other payables are funded from the unrestricted funds of the
University.
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3.2.7 Funds employed
The financial statements are drawn up in such a manner that a distinction with regard to
financial consequences is made between assets representing restricted funds and assets
representing unrestricted funds.
“Unrestricted operations” is funded directly from appropriations of revenues that fall under
the absolute discretion/control of the Council. These include resources and the utilisation
thereof, which the Council has designated for specific purposes, concerning which the
Council retains an option to change its decisions.
“Restricted funds” represents income received for designated purposes from external
contracts, grants, donations, and income on specifically purposed endowments. Surpluses
remaining in this segment are transferred to the relevant restricted fund.
“Residences” comprises all income and expenditure from the provision of staff members
and student residence accommodation, and directly related catering services.
Details of the financial consequences relating to the above are reflected in Table 61 and
Table 62 below:
Table 61: Consequences for Statement of Comprehensive Income (R’000)

Description
Income

Unrestricted
funds
Education and
General
3 098 859

Specifically
funded
64 912

3 224 962

Restricted funds
Residences

TOTAL
2017

242 059

3 405 830

82 723

237 329

3 545 014

(126 103)

(17 811)

4 730

(139 184)

63 592

2 730

-

66 322

(1 706)

-

(437)

(2 143)

(Deficit)/surplus for the year

(64 217)

(15 081)

4 293

(75 005)

Other comprehensive income

(1 689)

-

-

(1 689)

(65 906)

(15 081)

4 293

(76 694)

Less expenses
Operating loss/(surplus) for
the year
Investment income
Finance expense

Total comprehensive
(loss)/income

Table 62: Consequences for Funds employed (R’000)
Unrestricted
funds
Education
and General
839 974

Specifically
funded
15 763

(Loss)/surplus for the year

(64 217)

Other comprehensive income
Balance at year end

Description
Opening balance

Restricted funds

TOTAL
2017

5 413

Fair value
reserves
121 153

(15 081)

4 293

-

(75 005)

(33 753)

-

-

32 064

(1 689)

742 004

682

9 706

153 217

905 609
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4.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4.1

Total income
The total income for the 2017 Financial Year amounted to R3 472,1 million (including
investment income).
Income recognised from the government amounted to
R1 779,8 million, or 51.3% of the total income. This indicates the extent of the University’s
reliance on government funding.
Included in the R1 779,8 million are grants from the government for recapitalisation and
implementation of the IEF. During the 2017 Financial Year, R146,9 million was expended
for the year, R13,8 million of which was included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and R133,1 million was capitalised and offset under Property, Plant and
Equipment.
Income received from tuition, residence, and other fees amounted to R1 267,5 million, or
36.5% of the total income for the year. This also indicates the extent of the University’s
reliance on income from students. The University had exceeded the amount budgeted for
tuition fees in 2017.
Of the balance of income, R424,8 million, or 12.2% of the total income was received mainly
from the sale of goods and services, such as short learning programmes, consultations,
research contracts, and donations, as well as investment income. This 12.1% represents
the third-stream income of the University. A significant amount of this 12.1% comprises of
earmarked funding and cannot be used to cover the operational expenditure of the
University.

4.2

Total expenditure
The total expenditure for the Financial Year 2017 amounted to R3 547,1 million (including
finance costs).
Human Resource costs (excluding medical and leave provisions) amounted to
R2 238,9 million, or 63.1% of the total expenditure.
The general operating expenses for supplies and services amounted to R1 159,2 million, or
32.6% of the total expenditure for the year. Other significant expenditure items were
depreciation of R74,8 million (2.1%) and finance costs of R2,1 million (0.1%).
The post-employment medical and pension expenses amounted to R72,1 million (2.1%) of
the total expenditure.
A significant amount of the Human Resources costs are funded from the unrestricted funds
of the University. As a result of this, there are generally insufficient funds available to invest
in capital expenditure at the University. During 2017, TUT concluded the insourcing of the
Landscaping staff. These staff were insourced from 1 May 2017.

4.3

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income consisted of:
• Fair value adjustments on available-for-sale assets: R32,1 million
• Actuarial loss on defined benefit medical plan: R8,6 million
• Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension plan: R25,1 million.
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Council
Controlled –
Unrestricted
Notes

Recurring income:
State appropriation - Subsidies and Grants
Tuition and other fee income
Income from contracts - Research
Sale of goods and services
Private gifts and grants
Non-recurring income:
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

242 059

3 405 830

3 068 585

1 759 053
1 046 309
3 609
224 717
64 989

50 494
14 418
-

1 759 053
1 046 309
54 103
239 135
64 989

20 830
221 229
-

1 779 883
1 267 538
54 103
239 135
64 989

1 609 807
1 171 146
52 069
208 035
27 374

182

-

182

-

182

154

3 224 962

82 723

3 307 685

237 329

3 545 014

3 323 281

2 150 164
72 102
919 922
7 900
74 504
370

37 128
45 513
82
-

2 187 292
72 102
965 435
7 982
74 504
370

51 606
185 723
-

2 238 898
72 102
1 151 158
7 982
74 504
370

2 041 109
71 466
1 133 161
8 886
68 289
370

(126 103)

(17 811)

(143 914)

4 730

(139 184)

(254 696)

63 592
(1 706)

2 730
-

66 322
(1 706)

(437)

66 322
(2 143)

94 956
(2 449)

(64 217)

(15 081)

(79 298)

4 293

(75 005)

(162 189)

(1 689)

-

(1 689)

-

(1 689)

(13 716)

11

32 064

-

32 064

-

32 064

8 504

17

(8 635)

-

(8 635)

-

(8 635)

3 968

17

(25 118)

-

(25 118)

-

(25 118)

(26 188)

(65 906)

(15 081)

(80 987)

4 293

(76 694)

(175 905)

2
3
4

6

7.1
7.2
7.3
8
9
10

5
7.4

(Deficit)/Surplus for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss
- Fair value adjustments on available-for-sale
financial assets
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Actuarial gain/(loss) on the defined benefit medical
plan
- Actuarial (loss)/gain on the defined benefit pension
plan

Total
2016

3 163 771

OPERATING (LOSS)/SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
Investment income
Finance expense

Total
2017

64 912

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Recurring expenditure:
Personnel costs
Post-employment medical and pension plan expenses
Other current operating expenditure
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation – Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation – Investment properties

Sub Total

Student and Staff
Accommodation –
Restricted

3 098 859

TOTAL INCOME

R’000

Specifically
funded
activities Restricted
R’000

- 125 -

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

1 444 883

1 449 535

940 786
11 499
330 477
115 633
46 488

983 023
11 869
298 413
105 403
50 827

980 848

857 843

681 723
8 092
289 293
1 740

465 782
7 674
380 034
4 353

2 425 731

2 307 378

Funds Utilised/Available

905 609

982 303

Unrestricted Use Funds - Education and General
Restricted Use Funds – Specifically Funded Activities
Unrestricted Use Funds – Residence Funds
Fair value reserve

742 004
682
9 706
153 217

839 974
15 763
5 413
121 153

Non-Current Liabilities

680 757

622 930

12 128
668 629

15 180
607 750

839 365

702 145

579 287
257 034
3 044
-

481 305
218 137
2 703
-

2 425 731

2 307 378

Notes
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Accounts receivable and other receivables

9
10
11
12
14

Current Assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets
Inventories
Accounts receivable and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

12
13
14
15

TOTAL ASSETS

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Borrowings
Post-employment benefit obligations

16
17

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred income
Borrowings
Cash and cash equivalents

18
19
16

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
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Notes

2017
R'000

2016
R'000

359 336
(2 143)
44 307

(53 115)
(2 449)
42 612

401 500

(12 952)

(180 140)
14 958
(258 235)
22 015

(149 140)
501
113 001
52 344

(401 402)

16 706

(2 711)

(2 419)

Net cash used in financing activities

(2 711)

(2 419)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

(2 613)

1 335

4 353

3 018

1 740

4 353

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
27
7.4
5

Cash generated from/(utilised in) operations
Finance expense
Investment income
Net cash generated from/(utilised in) operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(Increase)/Decrease in investments
Investment income

9
11, 12
5

Net cash (utilised in)/generated from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
16

Other loans repaid

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR
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Education
and GeneralUnrestricted

Specifically
Funded
ActivitiesRestricted

Residence
FundsUnrestricted

R'000

R’000

R'000

Fair Value
ReserveNondistributable
reserve
R'000

Total

R'000

1 023 587

10 354

11 618

112 649

1 158 208

(183 613)
(161 393)
(22 220)

5 409
5 409
-

(6 205)
(6 205)
-

8 504
8 504

(175 905)
(162 189)
(13 716)

Balance at 1 January 2017

839 974

15 763

5 413

121 153

982 303

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

(97 970)
(64 217)
(33 753)

(15 081)
(15 081)
-

4 293
4 293
-

32 064
32 064

(76 694)
(75 005)
(1 689)

Balance at 31 December 2017

742 004

682

9 706

153 217

905 609

Balance at 1 January 2016
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
(Deficit)/surplus for the year as previously reported
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

General Information
The University is domiciled in South Africa. The registered address is Staatsartillerie Road,
Pretoria West.

1.2

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(‘IASB’) and in the manner required by the Department of Higher Education and Training in
terms of section 41 of the Higher Education Act, 1997 (Act No. 101 of 1997 as amended).
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and incorporate
the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands,
rounded to the nearest thousand Rand. The accounting policies are consistent with the
previous year, unless otherwise stated. The financials are prepared on the going concern
basis.

1.3

Basis of preparation
(a) New and revised standards:
Early adoption of standards
There were no standards or interpretations which were early adopted in the current
financial year.
International Financial Reporting Standards and amendments effective for the first
time for 31 December 2017 year-end:
• Amendment to IAS 7 – Cash flow statements (Statement of cash flows on
disclosure initiative). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
In January 2016, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued an
amendment to IAS 7 introducing an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
The amendment responds to requests from investors for information that helps them
better understand changes in an entity’s debt. Preparers should consider how best to
present the additional information to explain the changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities.
• Amendment to IAS 12 – Income taxes (Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
The amendment was issued to clarify the requirements for recognising deferred tax
assets on unrealised losses. The amendment clarifies the accounting for deferred tax
where an asset is measured at fair value and that fair value is below the asset’s tax
base. It also clarifies certain other aspects of accounting for deferred tax assets. The
amendment clarifies the existing guidance under IAS 12. It does not change the
underlying principles for the recognition of deferred tax assets.
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(a) New and revised standards (continued):
International Financial Reporting Standards, interpretations and amendments
issued but not effective for 31 December 2017 year-end. The effects of the
amendments will neither be material nor applicable to the University:
•

Amendments to IFRS 9 – ‘Financial Instruments (2009 and 2010)’ (Financial
liabilities, Derecognition of financial instruments, Financial assets, General hedge
accounting). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
This standard replaces the guidance in IAS 39. It includes requirements on the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an
expected credit losses model that replaces the current incurred loss impairment
model.

•

Amendments to IFRS 9 – ‘Financial Instruments’ (On general hedge
accounting). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The IASB has amended IFRS 9 to align hedge accounting more closely with an
entity’s risk management. The revised standard also establishes a more principlesbased approach to hedge accounting and addresses inconsistencies and
weaknesses in the current model in IAS 39.
Early adoption of the above requirements has specific transitional rules that need to
be followed. Entities can elect to apply IFRS 9 for any of the following:
• The own credit risk requirements for financial liabilities.
• Classification and measurement (C&M) requirements for financial assets and
financial liabilities.
• The full current version of IFRS 9 (that is, C&M requirements for financial assets
and financial liabilities and hedge accounting).
The transitional provisions described above are likely to change once the IASB
completes all phases of IFRS 9.

•

Amendments to IFRS 9 – ‘Financial Instruments’ (Prepayment features with
negative compensation and Modification of financial liabilities). Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The narrow-scope amendment covers two issues:
• The amendments allow companies to measure particular prepayable financial
assets with so-called negative compensation at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income if a specified condition is met—instead of
at fair value through profit or loss. It is likely to have the biggest impact on banks
and other financial services entities.
• How to account for the modification of a financial liability. The amendment
confirms that most such modifications will result in immediate recognition of a
gain or loss. This is a change from common practice under IAS 39 today and
will affect all kinds of entities that have renegotiated borrowings.
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(a) New and revised standards (continued):
•

IFRS 15 – Revenue from contracts with customers. Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.
The FASB and IASB issued their long awaited converged standard on revenue
recognition on 29 May 2014. It is a single, comprehensive revenue recognition
model for all contracts with customers to achieve greater consistency in the
recognition and presentation of revenue. Revenue is recognised based on the
satisfaction of performance obligations, which occurs when control of goods or
services transfers to a customer.

•

Amendment to IFRS 15 (Revenue from contracts with customers). Annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The amendments comprise clarifications of the guidance on identifying
performance obligations, accounting for licences of intellectual property and the
principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net revenue presentation). New
and amended illustrative examples have been added for each of these areas of
guidance. The IASB has also included additional practical expedients related to
transition to the new revenue standard.
The IASB has amended IFRS 15 to clarify the guidance, but there were no major
changes to the standard itself. The amendments comprise clarifications of the
guidance on identifying performance obligations, accounting for licences of
intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment (gross versus net
revenue presentation).
New and amended illustrative examples have been added for each of these areas
of guidance. The IASB has also included additional practical expedients related to
transition to the new revenue standard.

•

IFRS 16 (Leases). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 – earlier
application permitted if IFRS 15 is also applied.
This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a far reaching change
in accounting by lessees in particular.
Under IAS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease
(on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now
requires lessees to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and
a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB has included an
optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets;
however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees.
For lessors, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the IASB has
updated the guidance on the definition of a lease (as well as the guidance on the
combination and separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new
standard.
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(a) New and revised standards (continued):
At the very least, the new accounting model for lessees is expected to impact
negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17, ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4, ‘Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC 15, ‘Operating Leases – Incentives’ and SIC
27, ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease’.
•

IAS 28 (Investments in associates and joint ventures). (Long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures). Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.
The amendments clarified that companies account for long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture, to which the equity method is not applied, using IFRS 9.

•

IAS 40, ‘Investment property’ (Transfers of investment property). Annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
These amendments clarify that to transfer to, or from, investment properties there
must be a change in use. To conclude if a property has changed use there should
be an assessment of whether the property meets the definition. This change must
be supported by evidence.

•

Amendments to IFRS 2, (Share-based payments). (Clarifying how to account
for certain types of share-based payment transactions). Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.
This amendment clarifies the measurement basis for cash-settled, share-based
payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cashsettled to equity-settled. It also introduces an exception to the principles in IFRS 2
that will require an award to be treated as if it was wholly equity-settled, where an
employer is obliged to withhold an amount for the employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax authority.

•

Amendments to IFRS 10, (Consolidated financial statements) and IAS 28
(Investment in associates and joint ventures). (On sale or contribution of
assets). Effective date postponed (initially 1 January 2016).
The postponement applies to changes introduced by the IASB in 2014 through
narrow-scope amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and
IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’. Those changes affect how
an entity should determine any gain or loss it recognises when assets are sold or
contributed between the entity and an associate or joint venture in which it invests.
The changes do not affect other aspects of how entities account for their
investments in associates and joint ventures.
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(a) New and revised standards (continued):
The reason for making the decision to postpone the effective date is that the IASB
is planning a broader review that may result in the simplification of accounting for
such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.
•

Annual improvements 2014-2016.
1 January 2018.

Annual periods beginning on or after

These amendments impact 2 standards:
• IFRS 1,’ First-time adoption of IFRS’, regarding the deletion of short-term
exemptions for first-time adopters regarding IFRS 7, IAS 19, and IFRS 10.
• IAS 28,’Investments in associates and joint ventures’ regarding measuring an
associate or joint venture at fair value. IAS 28 allows venture capital
organisations, mutual funds, unit trusts and similar entities to elect measuring
their investments in associates or joint ventures at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL). The Board clarified that this election should be made separately
for each associate or joint venture at initial recognition.
•

Annual improvements cycle 2015-2017. Annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019.
These amendments include minor changes to:
•
•

•

•

IFRS 11,'Joint arrangements', - a company does not remeasure its previously
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.
IAS 12,' Income taxes' - The amendment clarified that the income tax
consequences of dividends on financial instruments classified as equity should
be recognised according to where the past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognised.
IAS 23,' Borrowing costs' - a company treats as part of general borrowings any
borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its
intended use or sale.

IFRIC 22 (Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration). Annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where
there is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency. The
interpretation provides guidance for when a single payment/receipt is made as well
as for situations where multiple payment/receipts are made. The guidance aims to
reduce diversity in practice.
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(a) New and revised standards (continued):
•

IFRIC 23 (Uncertainty over income tax treatments). Annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019.
IFRIC 23 provides a framework to consider, recognise and measure the
accounting impact of tax uncertainties. The Interpretation provides specific
guidance in several areas where previously IAS 12 was silent. The Interpretation
also explains when to reconsider the accounting for a tax uncertainty. Most entities
will have developed a model to account for tax uncertainties in the absence of
specific guidance in IAS 12. These models might, in some circumstances, be
inconsistent with IFRIC 23 and the impact on tax accounting could be material.
Management should assess the existing models against the specific guidance in
the Interpretation and consider the impact on income tax accounting.

1.4

Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the University has
control. The University controls an entity when the University is exposed to, or has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the University. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.
The financial statements include those of the University and its subsidiaries. The results of
any subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included from the effective
date of control and up to the effective date control ceased.
At the date of acquisition of a subsidiary, the cost of the investment is allocated to the fair
value of individual identifiable assets and liabilities.
Any remaining difference between the purchase price of shares in subsidiaries and net
asset value is dealt with as follows:
• The excess of the purchase price over net asset value is capitalised as goodwill, which
amount shall be assessed annually for possible impairment.
•
The excess of net asset value over the purchase consideration is recognised as income
in the year of acquisition.
Inter-University transactions, unrealised income arising from transactions within the
University and inter-University balances are eliminated.
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the University.
The carrying value of subsidiaries is compared with their attributable net asset value or
market value. Provision is made for any permanent diminution in value.
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1.5

Statement of Comprehensive Income: Separate activities reporting
The format of the Statement of Comprehensive Income is designed to disclose separately
(i) the utilisation of the resources of the University that are under the absolute control of its
Council and (ii) those for which the utilisation is prescribed in terms of the legal requirements
of the providers of such resources. In addition, because universities vary significantly in the
provision of accommodation for students and/or staff, the component, (iii) student and staff
accommodation, is also treated separately.

1.6

Significant accounting judgements and estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the University's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the annual consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed below:
Critical judgements in applying the University's accounting policies
Investments
All investments, with the exception of specific investments which are available-for-sale, are
considered to be held-to-maturity.
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The University makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, rarely equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined
below:
Depreciation
During each financial year, management reviews the assets within property, plant and
equipment to assess whether the useful lives and residual values applicable to each asset
are appropriate.
Post-employment benefits
The cost of certain guaranteed minimum benefits in terms of defined benefit plans and other
post-employment medical benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long term nature of
these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty however actuarial
valuations are performed annually.
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Student debtors
At year-end management makes an estimate of the amount that it expects to recover from
outstanding balances. Students are grouped together on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics that are indicative of the ability of the student to pay according to the
contractual terms. Assumptions for impairment of long-term debtors are based on the
average drop-out rate of students at the University. A provision for impairment is raised
based on these estimates.
1.7

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the annual consolidated financial statements of the University are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the University
operates ("the functional currency"). The annual financial statements are presented in
South African Rands (ZAR), which is the University's functional and presentational currency
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.
Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

1.8

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for tuition fees
and for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the University's activities.
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the University and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Subsidies and grants
State appropriations and grants for general purposes are recognised as income in the
financial year to which the subsidy relates. Appropriations for specific purposes, i.e. capital
expenditure, are recognised as deferred income (current liabilities) and then applied against
the cost of the relevant asset as the asset is obtained/developed or expensed in the
statement of comprehensive income if it relates to repairs and maintenance.
Tuition and other fee income
Tuition fees, residences and other fee income are recognised as income in the year to which
they relate and at the time these are formally billed. The income is recognised as realisable
and, to the extent that it is not, a provision is realistically made for the estimated unrealisable
amount. Deposits provided by prospective students are treated as current liabilities until the
amount is billed as due.
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Tuition fees for distance education courses are recognised over the period of instruction.
Fees received are apportioned and amounts relating to future financial years are disclosed
as deferred income, classified under current liabilities.
Income received from contracts
Income received for designated specific purposes will arise from contracts, grants,
donations and income on specifically purposed endowments. These amounts are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income to the extent that expenditure has
been incurred for the specified purpose. Any unused funds are transferred at year end to
deferred income.
Investment income
Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding
and the effective interest rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such
income will accrue to the University.
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Interest,
dividends and other income on assets representing endowment and trust funds are credited
directly to the respective funds and are transferred to income only in terms of the legal or
other appropriate conditions relating to the respective funds.
1.9

Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, except for donated assets which are capitalised at current
replacement values. Historical costs include expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each asset, to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Elevators
50 years
Buildings
50 years
Vehicles
15 years
Computer equipment and software
10 years
Furniture
20 years
Equipment
15 years
Air-conditioners
25 years
Audio-visual equipment
10 years
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.
Library books, museum and artworks and movable assets with an individual cost less than
R2 000, are written off in the year of acquisition.
Land is not depreciated and is deemed to have an indefinite useful life and is therefore
stated at cost.
Routine maintenance costs are charged to surplus or deficit during the financial year in
which it is incurred.
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Costs of major maintenance or overhaul of an item of property, plant or equipment are
recognised as an expense, except if the cost had been recognised as a separate part of the
cost of the asset, and that amount has already been depreciated to reflect the benefits that
had been replaced or restored, and it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of
the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the
University. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related
asset.
To the extent that the use of an asset is impaired for reason of deferred maintenance, an
additional depreciation provision is created by a charge to surplus or deficit, the
accumulated amount of which is included in the depreciation deduction to arrive at the
carrying value of the asset.
Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it
is immediately written down to its recoverable amount through the statement of
comprehensive income.
Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and are charged to surplus or deficit and
recorded as income or expense.
1.10

Investment property
Investment property is defined as property held by the owner to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both, rather than for use in the production of supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of each investment
property, to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Elevators
50 years
Buildings
50 years
Investment property principally comprising flats is held for long-term rental yields and is not
occupied by the University. Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses as the cost outweighs the benefits of carrying the
investment property at fair value.

1.11

Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example land, are not subject to
amortisation/depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cashgenerating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that were impaired are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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1.12

Leases
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the University assumes substantially all the
benefits and risks of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the estimated fair value of the leased assets, or,
if lower, the present value of the underlying lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in other long-term payables. The interest element of the finance charge is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period. The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leasing contracts are depreciated over the useful life of the asset to its
residual value.
Leases of assets, under which the lessor effectively retains all the risks and benefits of
ownership, are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.
When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment
required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the
period in which termination takes place.

1.13

Financial assets
The University classifies its financial assets in the following categories: Loans and
receivables, available-for-sale or held-to-maturity. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the University's management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the University were to sell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the whole category would be
tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assets are included
in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12 months from the
reporting date; these are classified as current assets.
Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this
category or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in noncurrent assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the reporting date.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date. These are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables includes the following: "Accounts receivable
and other receivables" and "Cash and cash equivalents".
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Recognition
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date
on which the University commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognized when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the University has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Subsequent measurement
Available-for-sale investments are subsequently carried at fair value. Held-to-maturity
investments and loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The movements in the amortised cost are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the statement of comprehensive
income as other comprehensive income/loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit of loss as
investment income when the University's right to receive payments is established.
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices (Level 1). If the
market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the University
established fair value by using valuation techniques (Level 2 and 3).
Impairment
The University assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on equity
instruments are not reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.
A provision for impairment of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are
established when there is objective evidence that the University will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables based on a review of all
outstanding amounts at the year-end. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor or class
of debtors and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The impairment allowance account is used to record the provision
for impairment. Actual bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to the statement of
comprehensive income.
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Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
in hand and amounts in current account, net of bank overdrafts. In the statement of financial
position, bank overdrafts are disclosed as short term borrowings.
1.14

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is determined by
applying the average cost method. The carrying amounts of different classifications of
inventory are disclosed separately.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the costs of completion and selling expenses.

1.15

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include accounts payable and other creditors (excluding non-financial
instruments), leases and borrowings. The particular recognition methods adopted are
disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.
Measurement
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition
these instruments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Accounts payable are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accrued liabilities are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
Provisions
Provisions represent liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognised
when the University has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at present value of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision is recognised
as an expense in surplus or deficit.
Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at cost, net of transaction costs. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the University has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
The financial liabilities are derecognised when, it is extinguished, when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
1.16

Post-retirement benefits
The costs of post-employment benefits are made up of those obligations which the
University has towards current and retired employees. These obligations can be separated
into the following categories, and are determined as follows:
Defined contribution plans
Retirement and provident funds
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the University pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The University has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees
the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Defined benefits plans
Pension Fund
A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation.
The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit
pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised pastservice costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value for the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the changes to the
pension plan are conditional on the employees remaining in service for a specified period
of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-service costs are amortised on a straightline basis over the vesting period.
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Post-retirement medical aid costs
The University provides for post-retirement medical aid benefits for certain of its employees.
Their entitlement to these benefits is dependent on the employee remaining in service until
retirement and is subject to periodic review. The accumulated post-retirement medical aid
obligation and annual cost of those benefits is determined by independent actuaries
annually. The actuarially determined liability based on the University’s current practice of
funding a portion of its retiree’s and in-service members’ medical aid contributions has been
provided for in the statement of financial position. The present value of the obligation is
determined by independent qualified actuaries. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income in the year it occurs.
1.17

Funds and reserves
Funds and reserves comprise of:
• “Education and general” is funded directly from appropriations of revenues that fall
under the absolute discretion/control of the Council.
• “Specifically funded activities” represents income received for designated purposes
from external contracts, grants, donations and income on specifically purposed
endowments.
• “Residence funds” comprises all income and expenditure from the provision of staff and
student residence accommodation and directly related catering services.
• "Fair value reserve” is the movement of the fair value adjustments for the available-forsale investments.

1.18

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost expenses will be capitalised against the qualifying assets if it is directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Other
borrowing costs will be expensed in surplus or deficit.

1.19

Research and development expenditure
Research and development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that costs
incurred on development projects are recognised as development assets (intangible assets)
to the extent that such expenditure is expected to have future benefits. However,
developments costs initially recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period.
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2.

3.

4.

STATE APPROPRIATIONS – SUBSIDIES AND GRANTS
Operation - education
- Current year subsidy
- Subsidy for 0% fee increase
- Redemption of government loans
- Utilisation of conditional grants

TUITION AND OTHER FEE INCOME
Tuition fees
- Class fees
- Class levies
Residence fees
Electronic resource centre levy
Registration and other fees
Student Representative Council levies

SALE OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Sundry income*
Insurance claims
Bad debts recovered
Short learning programmes

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

1 678 860
86 052
1 073
13 898

1 455 440
148 953
1 073
4 341

1 779 883

1 609 807

841 878
103 686
221 747
12 247
55 716
32 264

775 856
102 203
197 202
11 604
53 348
30 933

1 267 538

1 171 146

171 061
25 094
30 562
12 418

147 791
35 746
14 519
9 979

239 135

208 035

28 209
38 113
25 590
12 523

58 339
36 617
22 392
14 225

66 322

94 956

182

154

975 912
1 138 966
124 020

837 928
1 078 734
124 447

2 238 898

2 041 109

* Sundry income represents income from Institutes and Centres,
Campus Businesses, Culture Funds, Departmental Funds, etc.

5.

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest from held-to-maturity investments
Other interest
Deemed interest on NSFAS bursaries1
Deemed interest on student debts1

1

Deemed interest represents payments received later in the year from NSFAS
and students but recorded as revenue at beginning of year.

6.

PROFIT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

7.

STAFF, OPERATING EXPENSES AND FINANCE COSTS

7.1 Personnel costs
Academic personnel
Other personnel
Other staff related costs
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2017
R’000
7.

STAFF, OPERATING EXPENSES AND FINANCE COSTS (continued)
Number of employees during the year:
- permanent employees
- temporary employees

7.2 Post-employment medical and pension plan expenses
Current service costs on defined benefit medical plan
Current service costs on defined benefit pension plan
Interest cost on defined benefit medical plan
Interest cost on defined benefit pension plan

7.3 Operating expenses by nature
The following items have been charged in arriving at a net surplus:
- Supplies and services
- Cost of services outsourced
- Operating lease rentals
- Maintenance of property, plant and equipment
- Bursaries
- Bad debts written off
- (Decrease)/Increase in provision for impairment of student
debtors
- Legal fees
- Impairment of assets
- Loss on write-off of assets

7.4 Finance expense
Long-term borrowings:
- Bank borrowings
- Finance leases

8.

2016
R’000

3 274
6 329

3 087
6 328

9 603

9 415

8 467
3 951
47 687
11 997

8 535
3 053
50 084
9 794

72 102

71 466

492 968
148 539
95 950
250 584
81 830
81 615

466 443
213 403
88 825
162 980
67 643
104 872

(20 208)

23 569

5 097
12 678
2 105

5 426
-

1 151 158

1 133 161

2 143
-

2 449
-

2 143

2 449

3 389
712

3 740
785

4 101

4 525

2 167
1 714

2 435
1 926

3 881

4 361

7 982

8 886

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

8.1 External
Audit fee
Other services
8.2 Internal
Audit fee
Other services

Total
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9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

9.1 For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Opening net carrying amount
Additions
Additions as a result of government
grants
Utilisation of government grant against
additions
Disposals – cost
Disposals – accumulated depreciation
Depreciation
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net carrying amount

Elevators

Central
airconditioning

Furniture
and
equipment

R’000
758 805
(285 060)
473 745
-

R’000
10 427
(6 799)
3 628
-

R'000
13 047
(11 032)
2 015
-

R’000
591 537
(263 775)
327 762
26 760

Computer
equipment
and
software
R’000
299 838
(163 506)
136 332
16 876

-

133 097

-

-

-

-

(133 097)

-

-

27 117
29 716
(2 599)

(12 678)
(16 280)
444 787
746 127
(301 340)

(180)
3 448
10 427
(6 979)

27 117

444 787

3 448

Land
[2]

Buildings
[2]

R’000
29 716
(2 599)
27 117
-

R’000
21 081
(8 657)
12 424
3 407

Finance
leased
assets
[1]
R’000
12 535
(12 535)
-

R’000
1 736 986
(753 963)
983 023
47 042

-

-

-

133 097

-

-

-

-

(133 097)

(522)
1 493
13 047
(11 554)

(4 370)
3 481
(32 207)
321 426
613 927
(292 501)

(7 746)
7 042
(23 690)
128 814
308 968
(180 154)

(849)
344
(1 625)
13 701
23 639
(9 938)

12 535
(12 535)

(25 643)
10 867
(74 504)
940 786
1 758 386
(817 600)

1 493

321 426

128 814

13 701

-

940 786

[1] Assets leased under finance lease comprise digital and computer equipment and vehicles.
[2] Includes carrying value of land and buildings encumbered (refer to note 9.3).
[2] Land and buildings cannot be sold without the prior approval of the Minister of Higher Education and Training.
[3] The cumulative effect of utilisation of government grants against additions is R545,6 million since 2008.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

9.2 For the year ended 31 December 2016

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Opening net carrying amount
Additions
Additions as a result of government
grants3
Utilisation of government grant against
additions3
Disposals – cost
Disposals – accumulated depreciation
Depreciation
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net carrying amount

Elevators

Central
airconditioning

Furniture
and
equipment

R’000
756 521
(270 389)
486 132
2 284

R’000
10 427
(6 619)
3 808
-

R'000
13 047
(10 510)
2 537
-

R’000
546 438
(218 910)
327 528
46 372

Computer
equipment
and
software
R’000
286 410
(165 071)
121 339
20 317

-

78 196

-

-

-

-

(78 196)

-

-

27 117
29 716
(2 599)

(14 671)
473 745
758 805
(285 060)

(180)
3 628
10 427
(6 799)

27 117

473 745

3 628

Land
[2]

Buildings
[2]

R’000
29 716
(2 599)
27 117
-

R’000
19 662
(7 408)
12 254
1 971

Finance
leased
assets
[1]
R’000
12 535
(12 535)
-

R’000
1 674 756
(694 041)
980 715
70 944

-

-

-

78 196

-

-

-

-

(78 196)

(522)
2 015
13 047
(11 032)

(1 273)
1 121
(45 986)
327 762
591 537
(263 775)

(6 889)
6 694
(5 129)
136 332
299 838
(163 506)

(552)
552
(1 801)
12 424
21 081
(8 657)

12 535
(12 535)

(8 714)
8 367
(68 289)
983 023
1 736 986
(753 963)

2 015

327 762

136 332

12 424

-

983 023

[1] Assets leased under finance lease comprise digital and computer equipment and vehicles.
[2] Includes carrying value of land and buildings encumbered (refer to note 9.3).
[2] Land and buildings cannot be sold without the prior approval of the Minister of Higher Education and Training.
[3] The cumulative effect of utilisation of government grants against additions is R412,6 million since 2008.
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TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
9.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
2017
R’000

9.3 Carrying value of land and buildings encumbered
- Zaragosa Park Erf 1154

2016
R’000

4 000

4 000

In terms of a negative pledge, the University may not encumber any
assets without Standard Corporate and Merchant Bank’s prior
authority.
Registers containing details of land and buildings are available for inspection at the University's Pretoria
campus.
10. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Opening net carrying amount
Depreciation for the year
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net carrying amount

Land
R’000
1 474
1 474
1 474
1 474
-

Buildings
R’000
17 059
(7 506)
9 553
(341)
9 212
17 059
(7 847)

Elevators
R’000
1 491
(649)
842
(29)
813
1 491
(678)

Total
R’000
20 024
(8 155)
11 869
(370)
11 499
20 024
(8 525)

1 474

9 212

813

11 499

Land
R’000
1 474
1 474
1 474
1 474
-

Buildings
R’000
17 059
(7 165)
9 894
(341)
9 553
17 059
(7 506)

Elevators
R’000
1 491
(620)
871
(29)
842
1 491
(649)

Total
R’000
20 024
(7 785)
12 239
(370)
11 869
20 024
(8 155)

1 474

9 553

842

11 869

For the year ended 31 December 2016

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Opening net carrying amount
Depreciation for the year
Closing net carrying amount
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Closing net carrying amount

Registers containing details of land and buildings are available for inspection at the University's Pretoria
campus.
The buildings of the University are clustered together within campuses and therefore the fair value
cannot be obtained reliably. As a result, the range of estimates for fair values cannot be reliably
estimated.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
2016
R’000

2017
R’000
11. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Fair value gains
At 31 December
Less: non-current portion
Current portion

298 413
32 064
330 477
(330 477)

289 909
8 504
298 413
(298 413)

-

-

133 916
76 153
118 677
1 730

120 423
70 894
105 335
1 761

330 476

298 413

571 185
4 386 097
(4 159 926)
797 356
(115 633)
681 723

692 690
4 668 495
(4 790 000)
571 185
(105 403)
465 782

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:
Non-current investments
Unlisted securities
Allan Gray Unit Trust#
Foord Unit Trust#
Investec Unit Trust”
AIMS Investment Account#
Sabinet

# Unlisted Investments – fair values determined at their unit price.
Fair value estimation is discussed in note 22.4.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date in
respect of available-for-sale assets is the carrying value of the
unlisted investments classified as available-for-sale. Management
of credit risk is discussed in note 22.2.
None of these financial assets are either past due or impaired and
no impairment provisions were raised in either 2016 or 2017.
12. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
At 1 January
Additions1
Disposals2
At 31 December
Less: non-current portion
Current portion
1
2

Additions represents short term bank deposits that are reinvested after maturity
Disposals represents short term bank deposits that have matured
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
12. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

115 633

105 403

115 633

105 403

41 000
80 293
83 963
239 015
237 452

87 500
74 642
77 384
112 924
113 332

681 723

465 782

Held-to-maturity assets include the following:
Non-current investments
Investec: Guaranteed Capital Trust

Current investments
Investec call account
ABSA Absolute
Sanlam Global Absolute
Investec Money Market Fund
Sanlam Money Market Fund

The University has not reclassified any financial assets measured at amortised cost to fair value during
the year (2016: nil).
There were no gains or losses realised on the disposal of held-to-maturity financial assets in 2016 and
2017 as all financial assets were disposed of at their redemption date.
None of these financial assets are either past due or impaired and no impairment provisions were raised
in either 2016 or 2017. The carrying value of held-to-maturity-investments approximates its fair value.
Included under current investments are restricted funds relating to the Infrastructure and Efficiency funding
received from the Department of Higher Education and Training (refer to note 19).
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

13. INVENTORIES
Stationery and other
Technical inventories
Fuel

3 553
4 508
31

3 563
4 080
31

8 092

7 674

The cost of inventories recognised as expenditure and included in current operating expenditure is R14,7
million (2016: R13,3 million).
No provision for stock obsolescence was provided for at year end as obsolete stock is written-off when
identified.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

386 870
(118 958)
267 912
67 869
38 630
29 239

352 197
(139 166)
213 031
217 830
62 897
154 933

Less non-current portion: student debtors

335 781
(46 488)

430 861
(50 827)

Current portion

289 293

380 034

The movement in the provision for impairment during the year
was as follows:
- Balance at 1 January
- Impairment loss recognised
- Receivables written off during the year (bad debts)

139 166
61 887
(82 095)

115 597
128 441
(104 872)

- Balance at 31 December

118 958

139 166

The aging of student debtors is as follows:
- Students enrolled in current year
- Students enrolled in prior year
- Students enrolled more than two years ago

324 912
58 102
3 856

295 792
52 894
3 511

386 870

352 197

93 829
17 851
7 278

109 768
20 883
8 515

118 958

139 166

14. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Student debtors
Less: Provision for impairment
Other receivables
- Sundry receivables
- National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)

The aging of provision for impairment is as follows:
- Students enrolled in current year
- Students enrolled in prior year
- Students enrolled more than two years ago

The aging of student debtors at the reporting date was:

Gross

Impairment

2017
- Not past due
- Past due by 1 to 30 days
- Past due by 31 to 60 days
- Past due by more than 60 days

693
279
101 232
284 666

213
86
31 128
87 531

TOTAL

386 870

118 958

2016
- Not past due
- Past due by 1 to 30 days
- Past due by 31 to 60 days
- Past due by more than 60 days

977
439
77 500
273 281

387
173
30 623
107 983

TOTAL

352 197

139 166
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31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

14. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Apart from student debtors, none of the other receivables are past due
or impaired.
The provision for the impairment of student debtors is determined by
considering debts that are older than a year but not yet written off,
current debts that remained unpaid at the reporting date as well as any
recoveries from debts already handed over to collection agencies.
Students with debt outstanding who completed their degrees are not
considered to be impaired based on historical evidence that these
students do settle their debt in full in order to collect their degrees.
The non-current student debtors receivable was fair valued using a five
year period which is the earliest time to receive the cash for the loan
repayment and 9,25% interest based on prime rate. The loans will be
recovered after the students graduate and are employed.
For the current student debtors, the carrying value of accounts
receivable approximates its fair value.
15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand
Bank overdraft

1 740
-

4 353
-

Cash at bank and on hand

1 740

4 353

The weighted average effective interest rate on short term bank
deposits was 6,7% (2016: 6,8%). The total facilities with ABSA
Bank is as follows: Primary Lending: R18,000,000; Term Loan:
R40,000,000; ACB Direct Credit - Credit Limit: R200,000,000;
ACB Direct Debit - Credit Limit: R2,500,000; Bond Holding:
R35,000; Daylight Limit Credit - Limit: R150,000,000; Credit Card:
R2,850,000; ABSA Vehicle Asset Finance: R1,500,000; Letter of
credit: R2,000,000.
No facilities are held with FNB.
Standard Bank facilities:
- Mortgage bonds facilities of R5,5 million and R9 million.
Overdraft facilities are available with ABSA Bank to the value of
R18 million.
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates its
fair value.
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2017
R’000

2016
R’000

16. BORROWINGS
16.1 Government loans
Long term portion
Short term portion transferred to current liabilities

4 240
3 477
763

4 916
4 239
677

10 932
8 651
2 281

12 967
10 941
2 026

Total borrowings

15 172

17 883

Less: Current portion of borrowings

(3 044)

(2 703)

Long-term portion of borrowings

12 128

15 180

The interest rate exposure of the total borrowings was as follows:
- At fixed rates

15 172

17 883

Weighted average effective interest rates:
- Borrowings

12.13%

12.13%

Post-employment medical benefits – wholly unfunded
Provision benefits (National Tertiary Retirement Fund)
– wholly unfunded

575 966

540 947

92 663

66 803

Total post-employment benefit obligations

668 629

607 750

Interest was charged at varying rates between 5% and 13,5% per
annum. The loans are repayable in annual installments of R1,262
million (2016: R1,262 million) over 40 years. The annual interest
and capital installments are subsidised to an extent of
approximately 85% (2016: 85%).
16.2 Infrastructure Finance Corporation (INCA) loan - unsecured
Long term portion
Short term portion transferred to current liabilities
The INCA loan is repayable in semi-annual installments of R1,768
million (2016: R1,768 million) over a 18 year period. Interest was
charged at 12,1% per annum.

The carrying amounts approximates the fair values of borrowings.
The University has no undrawn borrowing facilities.

17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

17.1 Post-employment medical benefits
The University operates a post-employment medical benefit
scheme. The method of accounting and the frequency of valuations
are similar to those used for defined benefit pension schemes. The
most recent actuarial valuation was performed as at 31 December
2017.
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2017
R’000

2016
R’000

17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
The fund is required to comply with the Medical Schemes Act, fund
rules and any other relevant legislation.
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are
determined as follows:
- Present value of unfunded obligations

575 966

540 947

-

575 966

540 947

540 947
8 467
47 687

512 837
8 535
50 084

8 635

(3 968)

(29 770)

(26 541)

575 966

540 947

The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income are as follows:
- Current service cost
- Interest cost
- Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other
comprehensive income

8 467
47 687

8 535
50 084

8 635

(3 968)

Total included in statement of comprehensive income

64 789

54 651

Liability in the statement of financial position

Movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as
follows:
At beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other
comprehensive income
Contributions paid on behalf of members
At end of year

The principal actuarial assumptions used for the medical aid
provision were:
- Gross discount rate
- Healthcare inflation
- Normal retirement age
- Post-retirement mortality assumption
- Pre-retirement mortality assumption
- Number of active and pension members

9.11%
7.38%
65
PA (90) -2
SA 85-90
882

9.06%
7.79%
65
PA (90) -2
SA 85-90
895

Expected contributions to post-employment medical benefit plans on behalf of members for the year
ending 31 December 2018 are R32,8 million.
Sensitivity Analysis on the post-employment medical aid benefit scheme:
Assumption

Change

In-service
R’000

Continuation
R’000

190 520
223 840
163 225
163 114
224 596
197 127
195 465
166 933

385 447
419 190
355 898
354 961
420 882
401 145
385 447
385 447

Central assumptions
Healthcare inflation
Discount rate
Post-retirement mortality
Average retirement age
Continuation of membership at retirement

1%
-1%
1%
-1%
-1 yr
-1 yr
-10%
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Total
R’000
575 966
643 030
519 123
518 075
645 478
598 272
580 912
552 380

% change
effect on
liability
12%
-10%
-10%
12%
4%
1%
-4%

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
17.2 Pension benefits (National Tertiary Retirement Fund (NTRF))
The University operates both a defined benefit and a defined contribution pension scheme. The most
recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit scheme was performed as at 31 December 2017.
The Fund is required to comply with the Pension Funds Second Amendment Act 2001, Income Tax and
Fund Rules. The Fund is governed by the Fund Rules and the responsibilities of the Trustees are detailed
in the Fund Rules.
Present
value of
obligation
R’000
As at 31 December 2015
Current Service Cost
Interest expense
Cash movements:
Benefits payments (incl. risk premiums)
Member contributions
Employer contributions
Re-measurements:
Return on plan assets
Gain/loss-change in financial assumption
Gain/loss-change in demographic assumptions
Experience gains
Change in asset ceiling
As at 31 December 2016

Current Service Cost
Interest (expense)/income
Cash movements:
Benefits payments (incl. risk premiums)
Member contributions
Employer contributions
Re-measurements:
Return on plan assets
Gain/loss-change in financial assumption
Gain/loss-change in demographic assumptions
Experience losses
Change in asset ceiling
As at 31 December 2017

Impacting
of asset
ceiling
R’000

Total
R’000

(100 551)

64 695

-

(35 856)

(3 053)
(9 793)

-

-

(3 053)
(9 793)

8 088
-

(8 088)
8 088
-

-

8 088
-

(29 292)
(638)
-

6 562
(2 820)
-

-

6 562
(29 292)
(3 458)
-

(135 239)

68 437

-

(66 803)

Present
value of
obligation
R’000
As at 31 December 2016

Fair value
of plan
assets
R’000

Fair value
of plan
assets
R’000

Impacting
of asset
ceiling
R’000

Total
R’000

(135 239)

68 437

-

(66 803)

(3 951)
(11 997)

5 657

-

(3 951)
(6 340)

31 054
-

(27 180)
5 675

-

3 874
5 675

17 257
(43 789)
-

1 414
-

-

1 414
17 257
(43 789)
-

(146 665)

54 003

-

(92 663)
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17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Present
value of
obligation
R’000
As at 31 December 2017
Projected financial impact 2017:
Current Service Cost
Interest (expense)/income
Cash movements:
Benefits payments (incl. risk premiums)
Employer contributions
As at 31 December 2018

Fair value
of plan
assets
R’000

Impacting of
asset
ceiling
R’000

Total
R’000

(146 665)

54 003

-

(92 663)

(4 973)
(12 448)

4 109

-

(4 973)
(8 339)

17 082
-

(17 082)
-

-

-

(147 004)

41 030

-

(105 975)

The University is not exposed to any significant risks relating to plan assets.
The University does not hold any transferable financial instruments as plan assets.
Classes of plan assets based on the nature and risk of the assets:
2017
25%
45%
20%
10%
100%

Corporate Debt
Equities
Overseas Equities
Cash
Total

2016
25%
50%
15%
10%
100%

Significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligation:
2017
2016
Discount rate (per annum)
9.00%
9.14%
Annual allowance for salary increases (per annum)
6.80%
7.38%
Annual allowance for pension increases (per annum)
4.20%
4.39%
Long-term inflation rate (per annum)
5.80%
6.38%
PA(90)
Post-retirement mortality (males)
plus
p.a. improvements from 2005
2 year(s), with 0.5%
PA(90)
Post-retirement mortality (females)
plus
p.a. improvements from 2005
2 year(s), with 0.5%
A sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption as at the end of the reporting
period:
The results presented here are based on a number of assumptions. The extent to which the actual liability
faced in the future by the University differs from these results, will depend on the extent to which actual
experience differs from the assumptions made.
The liability at the Valuation Date was recalculated to show the effect of:
(i) A 1% increase and decrease in the assumed rate of salary inflation;
(ii) A one-year age reduction in the assumed rates of post-retirement mortality; and
(iii) A one-year increase in the assumed average retirement age.
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17. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Change in assumption

Changes

Discount rate
Salary inflation
Post-retirement Mortality
Average Retirement Age

1.00%
1.00%
(2 years)
(1 year)

Increase
assumption
Increase by 23%
Increase by 23%
Increase by 9%
Increase by 21%

Decrease
assumption
Decrease by 34%
Decrease by 20%
n/a
n/a

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined obligation calculated with the projected unit
credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability
recognised within the statement of financial position.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared
to the previous period.
Expected contributions to post-employment pension fund benefit plans shortfall for the year ending
31 December 2018 are R17,1 million.
The expected remaining working lifetime of the Defined Benefit members is 8.8 years.
Actual return on assets for the year ended 31 December 2017 are R4,1 million (2016: R6,2 million).
The University does not use any asset-liability matching strategies to manage risk.
17.3 Post-employment benefits (pension and medical)
2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

At 31 December
Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

R’000
722 631
(54 003)

R’000
676 187
(68 437)

R’000
613 388
(64 695)

R’000
588 994
(57 460)

R’000
580 073
(52 285)

Deficit in the plan

668 629

607 750

548 693

531 534

527 788

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

18. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Financial instruments
Trade and other payables
Grant deposits
Agency creditors
Student accounts in credit

352 140
307 732
22 178
371
21 859

262 434
220 278
20 000
248
21 908

Non-financial instruments
Deferred medical benefit
Accrual for 13th cheque bonus
Leave accrual
Accrual for long service awards

227 147
757
42 322
154 595
29 473

218 871
757
40 870
148 719
28 525

579 287

481 305

The carrying amount is an approximation of fair value.
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2017
R’000

2016
R’000

19. DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred grant – Department of Higher Education and Training

257 034

218 137

218 137
185 892
(133 097)
(13 898)

198 864
101 810
(78 196)
(4 341)

257 034

218 137

A grant of R257,0 million (2016: R218,1 million) was deferred and
can only be utilised as prescribed by the Department of Higher
Education and Training.
Reconciliation of deferred grant
Opening balance
Grant received during the year
Utilised during the year – capitalised under PPE
Utilised during the year – expensed as repairs and maintenance
Closing balance
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20. COMPENSATION PAID TO EXECUTIVES AND COUNCIL MEMBERS
20.1 Executives
Annualised gross remuneration
R’000
Basic
Salary

Name

Office held

Prof. LR Van Staden

Vice-Chancellor & Principal

Dr T Mgwebi1
Prof. MS Mukhola

DVC: Postgraduate Studies, Research
and Innovation
DVC: Teaching, Learning and
Technology

Dr RE Moraka

DVC: Student Affairs and
Extracurricular Development

R’000
Employment
Benefits

R’000
Other
Allowances

R’000
Total cost
to HEI

2 257

549

921

3 727

1 541

396

619

2 556

1 541

396

625

2 562

1 556

400

1 268

3 224

1 552

435

576

2 563

Mr SA Mahlalela

Registrar
Chief Financial Officer

1 491

383

576

2 450

Mr A Mashego6

Executive Director: Institutional Support

1 589

132

-

1 721

Executive Director: Institutional Support

1 160

298

474

1 932

Executive Director: Human Resources
& Transformation

1 160

113

757

2 030

1 160

298

728

2 186

Prof. P Ngobeni

Executive Director: Institutional
Effectiveness and Technology
Executive Dean

1 160

325

407

1 892

Prof IEM Coetzee

Executive Dean

1 160

319

604

2 083

Dr HM Sirayi4

Executive Dean

1 160

298

474

1 932

Prof. I Mphahlele

Executive Dean

1 160

325

402

1 887

Prof RO Rugimbana5

Executive Dean

1 160

298

409

1 867

Dr AE Nesamvuni

Executive Dean

1 160

298

473

1 931

Prof BJ van Wyk

Executive Dean

1 160

298

746

2 204

Mr I Tlhabadira

Research Chair

1 160

298

474

1 932

Prof FD Dakora

Research Chair

1 124

289

328

1 741

Dr AM Mushaathoni2

Mr N

Zingitwa3

Ms M Mokuele
Dr D Naidoo

Mr. R Maharaj

Chief Director

967

271

312

1 550

Prof. AS Erasmus

Senior Director

967

249

331

1 547

967

249

499

1 715

1 915

160

-

2 075

Prof. HE Klingelhofer

Senior Director

Prof M Hay

Strategic Support

1

Appointed 1 October 2017
Appointed 1 June 2017
3
Appointed 1 July 2017
4
Contract ended 31 December 2017
5
Contract ended 31 December 2017
6
Contract ended 1 June 2017
2

20.2 Exceptional amounts to individuals exceeding R249,999
Payment Details
Settlement
Settlement
Commutation of leave
Commutation of leave
Commutation of leave

Name
Kloppers WJ
Engelbrecht SJB
Stevens IE
Dakora FD
Erasmus AS
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Office held
Shop Steward
Lecturer
Full Professor
Research Chair
Senior Director

Amount
R’000
731
387
400
277
287

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
20. COMPENSATION PAID TO EXECUTIVES AND COUNCIL MEMBERS (continued)
20.3 Non-executive members of Council
Reimbursement of expenses

To whom paid

2017

2016

No. of members

No. of members

1
6
15
26

1
5
13
24

2017

2016

No. of members

No. of members

1
6
15
26

1
5
13
24

Chair of Council
Chairs of committees
Members of council
Members of committees

2017
R’000
Aggregate
amount paid

2016
R’000
Aggregate
amount paid

8
10
80
94

7
9
92
19

2017
R’000
Aggregate
amount paid
109
458
1 114
1 254

2016
R’000
Aggregate
amount paid
76
77
434
637

20.4 Attendance of meetings

To whom paid
Chair of Council
Chairs of committees
Members of council
Members of committees
21. TAXATION

No provision for taxation is made, as the University is exempt from income taxation.
22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
22.1 Market risk
Interest rate risk
As part of the process of managing the University’s interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics of new
borrowings and the refinancing of existing borrowings are positioned according to expected movements in
interest rates. Details of interest rates relating to borrowings are detailed in Note 16.
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the University's interest bearing financial instruments was as
follows:
2017
R’000
Variable rate instruments
- Cash, bank and cash equivalents
- Borrowings

Fixed rate instruments
- Held-to-maturity-investments
- Borrowings
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2016
R’000

1 740
(4 240)

4 353
(4 916)

(2 500)

(563)

797 356
(10 932)

571 185
(12 967)

786 424

558 218

TSHWANE UNIVERSITY OF TECHNOLOGY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased
and decreased surplus by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on the assumption that the
prime rate had increased/decreased by 100 basis points with all variables held constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2017 and a change of 100 basis points has no impact on funds.
Gain or (loss)
2017
2016
R’000
R’000
Increase of 100 basis points
Decrease of 100 basis points

11 144
(11 144)

8 560
(8 560)

Price risk
The University is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets
because of changes in market prices (other than changes in interest rates and currencies). To manage its
other market price risk arising from the available-for-sale financial assets, the investments are managed on
an individual basis and the buy and sell decisions are approved by the Council.
Price sensitivity analysis
There were no equity investments that were listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange in 2017 and 2016.
Foreign currency risk
The University is not subject to foreign currency risk as no financial instruments are denominated in a foreign
currency.
22.2 Credit risk management
Financial assets that expose the University to credit risk consist of available-for-sale investments, held-tomaturity investments, accounts receivable and other receivables (net of impairment of trade receivables
allowance) and cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure.
The University limits its counter party exposures from its money market operations by only dealing with wellestablished financial institutions of high quality credit standing. The credit exposure to any counter party is
managed by setting transaction/exposure limits, which are reviewed annually by management.
Student debtors comprise a large number of students. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on these
debtors. Student debtors are presented net of the provision for impairment.
At 31 December 2017, the University did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk
that had not been adequately provided for.
22.3 Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk arises from interest bearing borrowings, accounts payable and accrued liabilities (excluding nonfinancial instruments as per note 18) and short term borrowings. The University has minimised its liquidity risk
by ensuring that it has adequate banking facilities and reserve borrowing capacity.
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and represents principal payments:
Payable
within 1
month or on
demand
R’000

More than 1
month but
not
exceeding
1 year
R’000

More than 1
year but not
exceeding 2
years

More than 2
years

R’000

R’000

2017
Interest bearing borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

42 640

3 044
309 500

3 044
-

9 084
-

2016
Interest bearing borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

37 173

2 703
225 261

2 703
-

12 477
-

22.4 Fair value of financial instruments
Management is of the opinion that the carrying amounts reported in the statement of financial position for
financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. We consider the fair value of long-term
borrowings approximates their carrying values, on the assumption that the current rates on these borrowings
remain market related rates. The fair value of non-current and current investments is given in Notes 11 and
12.
Financial instruments that are measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, are disclosed by
level of the following fair value hierarchy:
- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)
- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3)
The information below presents the University’s assets that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2017:
Level 1
R’000
330 477

Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
There are no financial liabilities carried at fair value.
22.5 Capital risk

The University's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the University's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide benefits for its stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust this capital structure, the University may draw down on available banking facilities
and funds, or obtain long-term funding from stakeholders such as the government.
The University monitors capital on the basis of a gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings
as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
"funds utilised/available" shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)
22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
There were no changes to the University's approach to capital management during the year.
22.6 Financial Risk Management
The following table represents the financial instruments of the University per category:
As at 31 December 2017
R’000
Assets as per statement of financial position
Held-to-maturity financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments
Other receivables (excluding non-financial assets
(net of impairment))
Cash and cash equivalents
Student debtors

As at 31 December 2017
R’000
Liabilities as per statement of financial
position
Borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

As at 31 December 2016
R’000
Assets as per statement of financial position
Held-to-maturity financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments
Other receivables (excluding non-financial assets
(net of impairment))
Cash and cash equivalents
Student debtors

As at 31 December 2016
R’000
Liabilities as per statement of financial
position
Borrowings
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Loans
and
receivables

Available-forsale financial
assets

Held-tomaturity
financial
assets

Total

-

330 477

797 356
-

797 356
330 477

67 869

-

-

67 869

1 740
267 912

-

-

1 740
267 912

337 521

330 477

797 356

1 465 353

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Total

15 172
579 287

15 172
579 287

594 459

594 459

Loans
and
receivables

Available-forsale financial
assets

Held-tomaturity
financial
assets

Total

-

298 413

571 185
-

571 185
298 413

217 830

-

-

217 830

4 353
213 031

-

-

4 353
213 031

435 214

298 413

571 185

1 304 812

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Total

17 883
481 305

17 883
481 305

499 188

499 188
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2017
R’000

2016
R’000

23. COMMITMENTS
23.1 Operating leases
Operating lease commitments exist in respect of premises rented
and office equipment hired. These agreements have varying
terms and conditions including cancellation and renewal clauses.
Rental payments are not contingent and no restrictions are
imposed by the lease agreements.
Commitments:
- Within 1 year
- Within 2 – 5 years

69 581
72 813

79 829
120 624

142 394

200 453

206 615
-

242 461
-

75 257
-

79 312
-

281 872

321 773

23.2 Capital – building projects
Authorised and contracted for
- Within 1 year
- Within 2 – 5 years
23.3 Non-capital – operational expenditure
Goods ordered, not delivered
- Within 1 year
- Within 2 – 5 years

The operating leases and operational expenditure commitments will be financed out of own funds and/or
existing facilities. The commitment on the building projects will be financed from the capital grant received
from the Department of Higher Education and Training.
24. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
24.1 Guarantees from ABSA Bank
The following guarantees existed during the year/exist at year end:
Amount in
Rands
70,000
10,000
1,542,810

Beneficiaries
Eskom
Department of Finance Customs and Excise
Universities South Africa

Expiry Date

Special Conditions

01/01/2030
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

24.2 A contingent liability exist in respect of litigation with an employee who is claiming unfair dismissal.
25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
25.1 The Pension Fund for Associated Institutions
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act 1956 as amended. The nature of this
fund is that of a defined benefit plan. There is no contractual liability by the University to subsidise any
possible under-funded benefits. At 31 December 2017 there were 6 (2016: 6) employees who were
members of this fund. Actuarial valuations are the responsibility of the State.
Total expenses debited to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of contributions made by the
University amounted to R0,172 million (2016: R0,171 million).
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)
25.2 The National Tertiary Retirement Fund (NTRF)
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act 1956 as amended. The nature of this
fund is that of a defined contribution plan and a defined benefit plan (Refer to 17.2). At 31 December 2017
there were 2 367 (2016: 2 410) employees who were members of this fund.
Total expenses debited to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of contributions made by the
University amounted to R149,215 million (2016: R139,965 million).
25.3 The Orion Provident and Pension Funds
2553.1

The Orion Provident Fund
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act 1956 as amended. The nature
of this fund is that of a defined contribution plan.
At 31 December 2017 there were 18 (2016: 18) employees who were members of this fund.
Total expenses debited to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of contributions made by
the University amounted to R0,298 million (2016: R0,276 million).

26.3.2

The Orion Pension Fund
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act 1956 as amended. The nature
of this fund is that of a defined contribution plan.
At 31 December 2017 there were 18 (2016: 18) employees who were members of this fund.
Total expenses debited to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of contributions made
by the University amounted to R0,899 million (2016: R0,831 million).

25.4 The Sanlam Pension Fund
The fund is registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act 1956 as amended. The nature of this
fund is that of a defined contribution plan. At 31 December 2017 there were 745 (2016: 510) employees
who were members of this fund.
Total expenses debited to the statement of comprehensive income in respect of contributions made by the
University amounted to R18,827 million (2016: R13,317 million).
26. RELATED PARTIES
Related parties relates to the Department of Higher Education and Training, subsidiaries of the University Pretoria Institute of Technology, TUT Advancement Office (Non-Profit Company) and Continuing Education
at TUT (Pty) Ltd, which are dormant, and executives and council members. Transactions with related
parties are at arm’s length. Refer to Note 20 for compensation paid to executives and council members.
Refer to Note 2 and Note 19 regarding subsidies and grants received from the Department of Higher
Education and Training.
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2017
R’000

2016
R’000

(75 005)

(162 189)

74 504
370
(182)

68 289
370
(154)

133 097

78 196

(66 322)
(5 657)
2 143
32 064
(29 770)
(9 549)

(94 956)
2 449
8 504
(26 541)
(8 088)

56 154

58 619

15 949

12 847

(418)
95 080
97 982
38 897

(1 151)
(7 009)
(1 573)
19 273

359 336

(53 115)

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
27.1 Cash generated from operations
Deficit for the year
Adjustments for non-cash items and separately disclosable items:
- Depreciation - property, plant and equipment
- Depreciation - investment properties
- Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other adjustments
- Utilisation of government grant against additions to property plant
and equipment
- Investment income
- Investment income on planned assets
- Finance expense
- Fair value adjustments on available-for-sale financial assets
- Contributions paid on the post-employment medical benefits
- Contributions paid on the post-employment pension benefits
- Current service cost and interest cost on the post-employment
medical benefits
- Current service cost and interest costs on the post-employment
pension benefits
Changes in working capital
- Inventories
- Accounts receivables and other receivables
- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
- Deferred income
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2017
Issued
Capital
R

2016

%

Issued
Capital
R

% Held

% Held
%

Direct Subsidiary
Continuing Education at TUT (Pty) Ltd

1

100

1

100

Leur Beleggings (Pty) Ltd

1

100

1

100

TUT Holdings (Pty) Ltd

1

100

1

100

The above subsidiaries are dormant. Continuing Education at TUT are in the process of deregistration.
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